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Qhairman’s Statement
ENE &0

Chinlink International Holdings Limited (the “Company”
or "Chinlink”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) continues to expand and strengthen its position
as a financial services provider focused on the optimisation
of supply chain cash flow of small and medium-sized
enterprises (“SMEs"”) operating in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC” or “China”) and Hong Kong. The
Group also provides logistics services, targeting the same
SME customer base, which we use as a tool to control the
collateralised inventory under financing agreements. By
integrating financial services with logistics and business
operations we are able to create a unique “finance-
ecosystem” providing customised supply chain finance
solutions to our customers whilst building an effective

system to manage credit risk.

Although capital markets in China are maturing, SMEs
in China still face tight credit conditions and difficulties
in obtaining bank financing due to inadequate credit
reference systems and prevailing monetary policies.
However, our established finance-ecosystem is able to
provide SMEs with comprehensive financial services,
including financing guarantee, supply chain finance,
and finance leasing services, due to launch in Q3 of
2017/2018.
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Chinlink continues to actively seek new partnerships as
we look to increase the scale of financing business. In
April 2017, the Group officially signed an agreement
with Hanzhong City Hantai District Hanjiang Industrial
Park Construction Investment Development Company
Limited* (“Hanjiang"”), whose major shareholder is Hantai
District Bureau of Finance of Hanzhong Municipality,
Shaanxi Province, in relation to a capital injection of
approximately RMB100.0 million into Shaanxi Chinlink
Financial Guarantee Limited* (the “Financial Guarantee
Company”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. This cooperation with the government has
provided additional capital for us to expand our business
and we expect further benefits from the injection of state-
owned capital including an increase in the diversity of our
customer base and greater access to bank financing. Also
in April 2017, the Group signed an agreement with Zhong
Jinlv Investment Holding Company Limited* (“Zhong
Jinlv”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Shaanxi Tourism
Group Company Limited*, for a capital injection into
Chinlink Finance Lease Company Limited* (the “Finance
Lease Company”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, of approximately RMB120.0 million. With
this, the Group will be able to fast-track the growth of
the business and capitalise on the financial and political
advantages brought by state-owned capital.

As at the date of this report, the Group is finalising the
detailed terms and conditions of the cooperation with

Hanjiang and Zhong Jinlv, respectively.

In addition, in order to further enrich our financial service
offerings and enhance the synergistic effects, we are in
the progress of applying the Internet micro finance and
factoring licences. Hopefully, the approvals will be granted
in 2017/2018 financial year.

*  For identification purpose only
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Qhairman’s Statement
ENE &0

The development of ChinlinkeWorldport Integrated
Logistics Park located in Hantai District, Hanzhong City
of Shaanxi Province, the PRC (”ChinlinkeWorldport”)
will not only generate stable rental income for the
Group, but the launch of the Daminggong (Hanzhong)
Building and Construction Materials Wholesale Center
(the “DMG (Hanzhong) Center”), which is located
in Phase One of ChinlinkeWorldport, is expected to
accelerate the development of ChinlinkeWorldport into
a significant regional trade and logistics hub. We expect
ChinlinkeWorldport to generate rental income and
management fees and to create synergies with the other
Group businesses, supporting our expansion in financial
services and providing an expanded customer base for our
comprehensive supply chain services, allowing us to realise

attractive financial returns over the following years.

We expect our new investments in properties to greatly
benefit the Group. In May 2017, the Group acquired a
100.0% interest in the parcel of land with a site area
of approximately 9,100.0 square meters situated at the
junction of Fengcheng Tenth Road and Wenjin Road,
Weiyang District, Xi‘an, Shaanxi Province, the PRC, and
the construction in progress thereon (the “Commercial
Building”). The Commercial Building comprises a 25-level
office development plus a 2-level basement carpark which
are currently under construction. On completion, which is
expected by Q2 of 2018, the approximate 55,491.0 square
meter gross floor area office complex will be leased. We
expect the Commercial Building project to strengthen and
expand our client base as new tenants move in, and the
rental income generated will enhance our cash flow for

investment into our current and new businesses.
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Also, we are continuously looking for new investment
opportunities in financial services. On June 2017, the
Company, Trillion Up Limited (a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) (“Trillion Up”), Instant
Karma Global Holdings Limited (“IK Global”) and two
independent third parties (the “MCM Founders”) entered
into the an agreement (the “Agreement”), which enables
us to expand our business into dealing in securities,
dealing in futures contracts, advising on securities, and
asset management upon approval from the Securities and
Futures Commission in Hong Kong, which will ultimately
allow us to become a more comprehensive financial
services provider. With our strong presence in Xi‘an, we
are optimistic in our ability to introduce other Xi'an, and
greater Shaanxi area, companies to the Hong Kong capital
markets under the new partnership.

Looking forward, with the recent rapid development of
Xi‘an brought about by the Belt and Road (“the Belt
and Road”) and the launching of the Shaanxi Free Trade
Zone (“Shaanxi Free Trade Zone”)on 1 April 2017, we
are confident that the region will continue to grow in the
coming years, and that we will be able to take advantage
of this growth by expanding our businesses through
ongoing cooperation with stakeholders and through
new partnerships. Our finance-ecosystem business model
provides a solid foundation for the integrated supply
chain and financial services businesses, and the Group will
continue to seek experienced and talented individuals, as
well as select appropriate partnerships in China, to help us

build a stronger business.

Last but not least, | would like to express my appreciation
for the continued support from our shareholders, and the
diligent contribution from the management team and all
co-workers throughout the year. | look forward to working
closely with every one of you, in leading Chinlink towards

becoming an outstanding financial services provider.

Chairman’s Statement
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Financial Highlights
St % 4 2
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For the year ended 31 March
BEZA=t-HLEE

Revenue

Gross profit

Profit (loss) before taxation
Income tax (charge) credit
Profit (loss) for the year

Profit (loss) before non-controlling

interests
Non-controlling interests
Profit (loss) attributable to

owners of the Company
Dividends paid

Basic earnings (loss) per share
Diluted earnings per share

At 31 March
R=A=+-AH

Non-current assets

Current assets

Bank balances and cash
Current liabilities

Net current (liabilities) assets
Non-current liabilities

Net assets
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2017
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HK$'000
TER

518,834
93,636
53,303

(28,479)
24,824

24,824
(23,487)

1337

HK0.42 cent# Al
HK0.42 cent# Al

2017
“E-t%
HK$'000
FHEL

2,875,043
704,081
95,988
1,103,149
(399,068)
911,028
1,564,947

2016
ZE-RF
HK$'000
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201,297
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(1,397)

157,663
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HK139.76 cents &l
HK139.47 cents &l

2016
“ERE
HK$'000
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401,366
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(730,287)
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1,111,810

Financial Summary
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o B o B o Bt

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31 March 2017 (the "“Year”),
the Group has made significant progress towards the
transformation into a comprehensive financing solutions
provider for SMEs in China, through its platform of
property, supply chain finance, multi-licensed, alternative

financial services and logistics.

Capital markets in China are still maturing, particularly
in the less developed central and western regions, and
there exists considerable commercial opportunities for
licensed financial institutions providing financing solutions
to the growing SME segment. SMEs in China have long
faced challenges in obtaining bank financing due to
inadequate credit reference systems, and the inability of
SME borrowers to provide standard types of collateral.
This, together with tighter credit conditions, influenced by
tightening monetary policy in China, has further limited
the financing options available to SMEs and increased
their financing costs. As China continues to promote
its the Belt and Road, SMEs in cities such as Xi‘an and
Hanzhong, where the Group has its operations, and
the greater Shaanxi Province, are increasingly looking
to benefit from the expected economic growth, thus
increasing the demand for financing. The Group is well
positioned to meet the demands of its SME clients through
its comprehensive and integrated package of financial
services, including financing guarantee, supply chain
finance, and finance lease services. As part of the Group's
growth we have continued to rapidly expand our business,
in particular our supply chain finance services, which
includes procurement financing and inventory financing, in

both Hong Kong, Shenzhen and Xi'an City.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s comprehensive financial services platform
forms part of a broader finance-ecosystem business model
together with our property and logistics businesses. This
unique business model allows the Group to maximise
cross-selling opportunities, whilst creating a high level
of customer loyalty, and facilitates the more effective
management of credit risk. For example, the Group offers
financing guarantee services to SMEs supported by its
inventory-as-collateral risk management system. Under
financing guarantee business, SME clients pledge their
inventory to the Group as collateral, in exchange the
Group agrees to provide guarantee to the lending banks
in favor of the SME clients for procuring them in obtaining
the bank loan. As a credit risk mitigation measure,
the Group will often take physical custody of pledged
customer inventory and provide logistics services including
warehousing, inventory management, transportation and
delivery. Although these logistics services are ancillary
to the Group’s financial services and are not a material
contributor to Group's revenue, the provision of logistics
services is a critical part of the financial services credit
risk management system. At the same time, many of the
Group’s target clients are tenants of the Group, allowing
for a higher level of monitoring.

The Group's property operations currently consist
of the Daminggong Construction Materials and
Furniture Shopping Center (Dongsanhuan Branch)*
(the "Commercial Complex”) in Xi‘an City, and two
development projects: ChinlinkeWorldport and the
Commercial Building.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o B o B o Bt

The Commercial Complex was acquired by the Group
together with a parcel of land (with the Commercial
Complex, collectively the “Property”) with undeveloped
construction area of about 119,000 square meters
(“Phase Two"), through the acquisition of 100.0% of the
equity interest in E-Innovation Limited (“E-Innovation”)
in 2015 (the “Acquisition”). The Commercial Complex
comprises nine-floors (seven above-ground and two
basements), and is situated in a prime location in Xi'an
City. Because of its favorable location, the Commercial
Complex enjoys an occupancy rate of above 90.0%, and
the Group is able to be selective in accepting prime and
anchor-grade tenants. The Commercial Complex generates
steady cash flow from rental income and management
fees, and the tenants become a pool of potential
customers for cross-selling of the Group’s financial
services. The Property has further development potential
with the construction of a mixed-use commercial and
residential building in Phase Two. Detailed development
planning of Phase Two is currently underway as the Group
continues to assess the best way to optimise and increase
financial returns from the Property.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ChinlinkeWorldport is an integrated logistics park located
within the greater Hanzhong Baohe Logistics Park which
covering a total area of 3,800 mu and its phase one covers
an area of 330 mu. ChinlinkeWorldport is strategically
located at the nexus of three major logistics regions:
the Central (Wuhan-Zhengzhou), Northwest (Xi'an-
Lanzhou-Urumgi), and Southwest (Chongging-Chengdu-
Nanning), and three major economic zones: Jianghan
Economic Zone, Chengdu-Chongqing Economic Zone,
and Guanzhong-Tianshui Economic Zone. Phase one of
ChinlinkeWorldport will include DMG (Hanzhong) Center
which is expected to due for completion in late 2017,
the Warehousing and Distribution Center, Qinba Chinese
Herbal Medicine Trading Center, a custom import bonded
warehouse and other facilities. ChinlinkeWorldport will be
a critical component of the comprehensive supply chain
services, the Group offers to the SME clients while the
Group will be able to extend its full range of financial
services to tenants, including procurement financing and

inventory financing.

For the Year, the Group’s revenue was HK$518.8 million,
representing an increase of 157.7% from HK$201.3
million for the year ended 31 March 2016 (the “Previous
Year"”). Gross Profit increased by 82.5% from HK$51.3
million in the Previous Year to HK$93.6 million during the
Year. The significant increase in revenue and gross profit
was mainly due to the expansion of the international
trading business, and a full year contribution from the
Commercial Complex recorded in the Year compared to
only seven months contribution recorded in the Previous
Year. The Group’s revenue and gross profit increase is
an indication of the success of the transformation of the
business and the effective allocation of resources into

financial services and property investment.
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Segmental Performance
International Trading

Since the introduction of supply chain finance services in
June 2015, the segment continues to record significant
growth. For the Year, the Group generated HK$405.4
million of revenue from international trading segment,
representing a significant increase of 257.5% from
HK$113.4 million in the Previous Year. The increase
was mainly attributable to the high level of demand
for procurement financing from electronic components
customers in Hong Kong and commencement of financing
of oil and grain trading activities in Xi‘an. The Group will
continue to explore growth opportunities in supply chain
finance, targeting customer sectors with relatively stable

demand and short trading cycles.

Financing Guarantee Services

For the Year, the Group generated HK$18.3 million of
revenue from financing guarantee services, reflecting a
decline of 9.4% from HK$20.2 million in the Previous Year.
The decline in segment revenue was mainly attributable
to the depreciation of Renminbi (“RMB”) during the Year
and the PRC Government's tax reforms. The financing
guarantee business however remains a profitable business
for the Group with a gross profit margin of about 97.0%
in the Year. There are opportunities for the financing
guarantee segment to expand its business further
through collaboration with the Group’s supply chain
finance and finance leasing segments, assisting them in
obtaining bank financing for their clients through the
provision of financing guarantees. These joint financing
services could enhance the Group’s overall income from
a single transaction against the same credit exposure.
The financing guarantee segment is expected to provide
relatively stable income to the Group whilst offering
considerable potential synergies with the Group’s other

financial operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Logistics Services

For the Year, the Group generated HK$1.0 million of
revenue from logistics services, reflecting a 42.9% increase
from HK$0.7 million in the Previous Year. The increase
was mainly due to the demand for warehousing and
distribution services generated by international trading
customers. The provision of logistics services allows the
Group to monitor the physical flow of goods and observe
customer’s inventory levels and enables the Group to
capture customer’s trade and transaction data and
subsequently identify new opportunities for the Group's

financial services.

Property Investment

For the Year, the Group generated HK$77.6 million of
revenue from property investment, reflecting an increase
of 72.8% from HK$44.9 million in the Previous Year. The
increase was mainly attributable to increased income
from the Commercial Complex which contributed a full
twelve-month of revenue during the Year versus just seven
months of revenue in the Previous Year. The Commercial
Complex not only generates stable rental income and
management fees income for the Group but also broadens
the potential customer base for the Group's other business

segments.

Interior Decoration Work Business

For the Year, the Group generated HK$2.1 million of
revenue from interior decoration work, reflecting a 87.3%
decline from HK$16.5 million in the Previous Year. The
decrease in revenue was mainly due to the strategic
repositioning of the Group away from this segment as the
Group sees limited opportunities for any new and large-
scale projects.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Profitability Analysis

Revenue of HK$518.8 million for the Year represented
a significant increase of 157.7% as compared with
HK$201.3 million in the Previous Year. Revenue
contribution by segment comprised: property investment
of HK$77.6 million (2016: HK$44.9 million), interior
decoration work of HK$2.1 million (2016: HK$16.5
million), international trading of HK$405.4 million (2016:
HK$113.4 million), financing guarantee services of
HK$18.3 million (2016: HK$20.2 million), logistics services
of HK$1.0 million (2016: HK$0.7 million) and other
revenue of HK$14.6 million (2016: HK$5.6 million).

Gross profit of HK$93.6 million for the Year, represented a
significant increase of 82.5% as compared with HK$51.3
million in the Previous Year, although the gross profit
margin declined to 18.0% from 25.5% in the Previous
Year. The increase in gross profit was mainly due to the
higher contribution from property investments with a
full year contribution from the Acquisition in the Year
compared to only seven months contribution recorded in
the Previous Year and significant increase in international
trading business. The decrease in overall gross profit
margin in the Year was due to the increased contribution
of 78.1% (2016: 56.3%) to total Group revenue, from
the international trading business with relatively low gross

profit margin.

Other income, gains and losses recorded a gain of
HK$14.8 million (2016: a loss of HK$2.9 million) for
the Year, primarily from a gain on fair value change of
derivative components of convertible bonds and interest

income.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gain on fair value change of investment properties of
HK$142.1 million (2016: HK$16.6 million) for the Year
was mainly attributable to the fair value changes of
ChinlinkeWorldport and the Property.

Gain on bargain purchase in acquisition of a subsidiary in
the Previous Year amounted to HK$310.0 million, relating
to the Acquisition, while no such gain was recognised in
the Year.

Administrative expenses amounted to HK$82.9 million for
the Year, representing an increase of HK$2.2 million as
compared with HK$80.7 million in the Previous Year. The
increase was mainly due to a full year of administrative
expenses from the Acquisition recorded in the Year
compared to only seven months’ administrative expenses
recorded in the Previous Year and partially set off by the
reduction in equity-settled share-based payments as no

new share options were granted in the Year.

Finance costs amounted to HK$105.5 million for the Year,
representing a decrease of HK$13.7 million as compared
with HK$119.2 million in the Previous Year.

Profit for the Year was HK$24.8 million (2016: HK$159.1
million) and profit attributable to owners of the Company
during the Year was HK$1.3 million (2016: HK$157.7
million). The decrease in profit was mainly attributable
to the absence of a gain on bargain purchase (negative
goodwill) in the Year whereas a HK$310.0 million one-off
gain was recognised in the Previous Year as a result of the
Acquisition.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2017, bank balances, cash and pledged
bank deposits, amounted to HK$456.0 million in total
(2016: HK$284.2 million), representing an increase of
HK$171.8 million from the Previous Year. The increase was
mainly due to the deposit arrangement in relation to the

Loan Facility (as defined below).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s loans from staff
amounted to HK$5.2 million (2016: HK$11.8 million).
These are denominated in RMB and repayable within one

year.

As at 31 March 2017, bank and other borrowings of
the Group totaled HK$1,076.8 million (2016: HK$379.7
million), representing an increase of HK$697.1 million
from the Previous Year. The increase was mainly due to
the net effect (1) the drawdown of the Loan Facility (as
defined below) amounting to HK$630.0 million during
the Year; (2) the increase in bills payable and trust receipt
loans of HK$185.2 million in relation to the international
trading business; and (3) the decrease in bank loans
from Bank of Xi'an of HK$93.1 million. Bank and other
borrowings are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and RMB. HK$414.5 million is repayable within
one year and HK$662.3 million is repayable within two to

five years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 10 March 2016, Esteemed Zone Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a loan facility agreement
with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Ltd.
("ICBC"), pursuant to which, ICBC agreed to provide a
3-year-term secured loan facility (the “Loan Facility”) of
HK$630.0 million in two tranches. The Loan Facility was
secured by the Commercial Complex and was drawn down
during the Year and was used as to: (i) approximately
HK$385.0 million for partial repayment of the short-term
12.0% coupon bonds; (ii) approximately HK$90.0 million
for repayment of the bridging loan for refinancing a loan
from a PRC bank; (iii) approximately HK$140.0 million was
placed as pledged bank deposit for international trading
business; and (iv) approximately HK$15.0 million as the
direct costs for obtaining the Loan Facility and others as
intended.

During the Year, the short-term 12.0% coupon bonds,
long-term 12.0% coupon bonds and 8.0% coupon bonds

were fully repaid.

As at 31 March 2017, the 7.5% coupon bonds with a
total carrying amount of HK$206.7 million (31 March
2016: HK$198.5 million) were repayable within one year,
denominated in HK$, and interest bearing at 7.5% per

annum.

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying value of the liability
component and conversion option derivative portion of
the 10.0% convertible bonds were valued at HK$76.7
million and HK$0.1 million respectively. The 10.0%
convertible bonds are due 18 months from the issue date
of 30 December 2015 and interest bearing at 10.0% per
annum, and convertible into shares of the Company at
the adjusted conversion price of HK$6.75 per conversion
share as at 31 March 2017. Subject to the completion of
Possible Acquisition (as defined below) on 22 May 2017,
the conversion price was further adjusted to HK$6.41 per
conversion share.
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As at 31 March 2017, the Group recorded net current
liabilities of HK$399.1 million (31 March 2016: HK$730.3
million) and the current ratio of the Group, calculated
as the Group’s current assets over its current liabilities,
was 0.64 (31 March 2016: 0.35). The improvement in the
current ratio was mainly attributable to the Rights Issue (as
defined below) and obtainment of the Loan Facility during
the Year. The Group will explore alternatives to diversify its
funding base so as to enhance the financial flexibility and
liquidity in future periods.

On 29 March 2016, the Group entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to issue convertible
bonds under general mandate with principal amount
of approximately HK$300.0 million in two tranches.
The placing agreement (as supplemented) lapsed on
22 April 2016. Details of which were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 March 2016,
8 April 2016 and 22 April 2016 respectively. On 16 June
2016, the Company and the placing agent entered into an
engagement letter to continue the proposed placement.
As at the date of this annual report, the transaction has
not yet been materialised.

Capital Structure

During the Year, the Company conducted a series of
capital restructuring and capital injection transactions,
which included (i) an increase in authorised share capital;

(i) a rights issue; and (iii) a share consolidation.
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Increase in Authorised Share Capital

On 7 September 2016, the board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Directors”) of the Company proposed
to increase the authorised share capital of the Company
from HK$62.5 million, divided into 5.0 billion shares of
the Company with nominal value of HK$0.0125 each (the
“Shares”, each a “Share”), to HK$250.0 million divided
into 20.0 billion Shares by the creation of an additional
15.0 billion Shares (the “First Increase in Authorised
Share Capital”), which shall rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing Shares. The First Increase in Authorised
Share Capital was approved by the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) at the special general
meeting held on 19 October 2016.

Details of the First Increase in Authorised Share Capital
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
7 September 2016, 20 September 2016, 26 September
2016, 30 September 2016 and 19 October 2016 and in
the Company'’s circular dated 3 October 2016.

After the First Increase in Authorised Share Capital became
effective, on 8 February 2017, the Company proposed to
further increase the authorised share capital (the “Second
Increase in Authorised Share Capital”) and implement
a share consolidation (the “Share Consolidation”). The
Second Increase in Authorised Share Capital was proposed
to increase the authorised share capital of the Company
from HK$250.0 million, divided into 20.0 billion Shares,
to HK$625.0 million, divided into 50.0 billion Shares, by
the creation of an additional 30.0 billion Shares which
shall rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
shares of the Company. The Share Consolidation was
on the basis that every 25 issued and unissued Shares
of HK$0.0125 each be consolidated into 1 consolidated
share of HK$0.3125 (the “Consolidated Share(s)”) and
the authorised share capital of the Company be changed
from HK$625.0 million divided into 50.0 billion Shares
to HK$625.0 million divided into 2.0 billion Consolidated
Shares upon the approval of the Share Consolidation. The
Second Increase in Authorised Share Capital and the Share
Consolidation were approved by the Shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 27 March 2017. The Share
Consolidation took effect on 28 March 2017.
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Details of the Share Consolidation and the Second
Increase in Authorised Share Capital were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 7 February 2017, 7
March 2017, 8 March 2017 and 27 March 2017, and the
Company's circular dated 9 March 2017, respectively.

Rights Issue and Issued Share Capital

On 7 September 2016, the Company announced its
proposal to raise funds by way of a rights issue of five
rights shares for every one Share held by the qualifying
shareholders at the subscription price of HK$0.04 per
rights share (the “Rights Issue”). The Rights Issue was
subject to the First Increase in Authorised Share Capital
becoming effective. It was considered that (i) the Rights
Issue would reduce the total debt of the Group, and hence
lower finance costs; (ii) the Rights Issue would simplify the
capital structure of the Group, providing greater flexibility
for future funding initiatives; and (iii) up to the date of
the announcement of 7 September 2016, the funding
proposals received from certain other financial institutions
for amounts of HK$200.0 million to HK$300.0 million
were inadequate when compared to the scale of the
funding available from the Rights Issue. The subscription
price of HK$0.04 per rights share represented (i) a discount
of approximately 76.19% to the closing price of HK$0.168
per Share as quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 7 September 2016;
(i) a discount of approximately 34.43% to the theoretical
ex-rights price of approximately HK$0.061 per Share based
on the closing price of HK$0.168 per Share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on 7 September 2016; (iii) a discount
of approximately 75.61% to the average closing price of
approximately HK$0.164 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the five consecutive trading days up to and
including 7 September 2016; (iv) a discount of 66.10% to
the closing price of HK$0.118 per Share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 30 September 2016, being the latest
practicable date prior to the printing of the circular of the
Rights Issue dated 3 October 2016; and (v) a discount of
37.50% to the closing price of HK$0.064 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 27 October 2016, being
the latest practicable date prior to the printing of the
prospectus of the Rights Issue dated 31 October 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Rights Issue was fully-underwritten by Emperor
Securities Limited (the “Underwriter”) pursuant to the
underwriting agreement dated 7 September 2016 (as
supplemented on 30 September 2016), entered into
by and between the Underwriter, the Company, Mr. Li
Weibin (“Mr. Li”), the chairman and managing director
of the Company and Wealth Keeper International Limited.
The Rights Issue was approved by the Shareholders at
the special general meeting held on 19 October 2016
and completed on 18 November 2016 with a total of
13,958,384,095 new Shares, with an aggregate nominal
value of approximately HK$174.5 million issued on 21
November 2016, on the basis of 2,791,676,819 Shares in
issue on 28 October 2016, being the record date of the
Rights Issue. The gross proceeds and net proceeds from
the Rights Issue amounted to approximately HK$558.3
million and HK$550.0 million respectively and were used
for the repayment of: (i) approximately HK$68.0 million,
for the principal and interest of the 12.0% coupon bonds
due on 30 November 2016; (ii) approximately HK$232.0
million, for the revolving shareholder’s loan from Mr. Li to
the Company; (iii) approximately HK$135.0 million, for the
debts incurred for re-financing the principal and interest
of the 8.0% coupon bonds due in October 2016; and (iv)
approximately HK$115.0 million, for the principal and
interest of the 12.0% coupon bonds due in 2020. The net
price per rights share after deducting the related expenses

of the Rights Issue was approximately HK$0.039.

Details of the Rights Issue are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 7 September 2016,
20 September 2016, 26 September 2016, 30 September
2016, 19 October 2016, 21 October 2016 and 18
November 2016, the Company’s circular dated 3 October
2016 and the Company's prospectus dated 31 October
2016 respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 1 April 2016, the issued share capital of the
Company amounted to HK$34.9 million divided into
2,791,676,819 Shares. After completion of the Rights
Issue on 18 November 2016, the issued share capital
was increased to HK$209.4 million (divided into
16,750,060,914 Shares) by the creation of an additional
13,958,384,095 new Shares with an aggregate nominal
value of approximately HK$174.5 million. Upon
completion of the Share Consolidation on 28 March 2017,
the issued share capital of the Company changed to
HK$209.4 million divided into 670,002,436 Consolidated
Shares.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the share

capital structure of the Company during the Year.

Material Acquisition

On 2 February 2017, the Company, Glorious Harvest
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (the
"Purchaser”), Bestwin International Investment Limited
(@ company wholly-owned by Mr. Li) (the “Vendor”)
and Mr. Li (as guarantor to the Vendor) entered into the
acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”)
in relation to the proposed acquisition of the entire issued
share capital (“Sale Share"”) of Zhong Hui Global Limited
(the "Target”) (a company wholly-owned by the Vendor)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Target Group”) at
a consideration of HK$96.0 million. Simultaneously, the
Company, the Purchaser and Mr. Li entered into the loan
purchase and financing agreement (the “Loan Purchase
and Financing Agreement”) in relation to the proposed
acquisition of all obligations, liabilities and debts (the
“Sale Loan") owing or incurred by the Target Group to
Mr. Li and his affiliated companies at a consideration of
HK$216.0 million and the possible provision of financing
(the "Possible Financing”) by Mr. Li to the Group of
HK$58.0 million. The Acquisition Agreement and the Loan
Purchase and Financing Agreement are inter-conditional

and shall complete contemporaneously.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Target Group owned a parcel of land situated in
Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC, with construction in
progress of the Commercial Building with total gross floor
area of approximately 55,491 square meters.

In return for the acquisition of Sale Share, the acquisition
of Sale Loan (together, the “Possible Acquisition”) and
Possible Financing, the Company will issue convertible
bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) with principal amounts
of HK$96.0 million, HK$216.0 million and HK$58.0 million
respectively. The Convertible Bonds will bear interest at
3.0% per annum and will mature on the day falling on
the second anniversary of the date of issue of the relevant
bonds. The initial conversion price of the Convertible
Bonds is HK$0.565 per conversion share (after Share
Consolidation).

The Vendor is wholly owned by Mr. Li and accordingly
is a connected person of the Company. The Possible
Acquisition and the issue of Convertible Bonds therefore
constitute connected transactions for the Company
and are subject to the reporting, announcement and
Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

The Possible Acquisition was completed on 22 May 2017.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 7 February 2017, 7 March 2017, 13
March 2017, 28 March 2017 and 28 April 2017, and the
Company’s circular dated 31 March 2017 respectively.
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On 11 June 2017, the Company, Trillion Up, IK Global
and the MCM Founders entered into the Agreement,
pursuant to which (i) IK Global has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for new shares (“Deemed Disposal”) in Alpha
Yield Limited (a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Trillion
Up) (“Alpha Yield”), the consideration of which shall be
satisfied by the transfer of the entire issued share capital
of MCM Holdings Limited (“MCM Holdings”) by IK Global
to Alpha Yield (the “MCM Acquisition”); and (ii) Trillion
Up has conditionally agreed to subscribe for additional
new shares in Alpha Yield in the amount of US$4.0
million in cash (the “Subscription”, together with the
MCM Acquisition and Deemed Disposal, collectively the
“Transactions”).

Upon completion of the Transactions (the “"MCM
Completion”), the entire issued share capital of Alpha
Yield shall be held as to 51.0% by Trillion Up and 49.0%
by IK Global.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group shall also provide
a shareholder’s loan of US$2.4 million to MCM Holdings
after the MCM Completion which shall be used as general
working capital of MCM Holdings and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “MCM Group”).

In addition, the MCM Founders shall have the right to
exercise a put option during the period of four years from
the date of MCM Completion to require the Company to
purchase the shares in Alpha Yield held by IK Global at a
consideration based on the value of the Alpha Yield and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Alpha Yield Group”) as a
whole of US$50.0 million.

The Transactions and grant of the put option together
constitute discloseable transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

MCM Completion is conditional upon fulfillment of the
conditions precedent stated in the Agreement and as at
the date of this annual report, the Transactions have not
yet completed.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 12 June 2017 and 14 June 2017.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 March 2017 was 0.56
(2016: 0.65) which was calculated based on the Group's
total liabilities of HK$2,014.2 million (2016: HK$2,041.4
million) and the Group's total assets of HK$3,579.1 million
(2016: HK$3,153.2 million). The improvement in the
gearing ratio was mainly due to the fair value change of
investment properties and the addition of assets facilitated
by the Rights Issue.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group's revenue and expenses are mainly
denominated in HK$, RMB and United States dollars
("US$"). Pledged bank deposits were denominated in RMB
and HK$. Other bank deposits are dominated in HK$, RMB
or US$. Other monetary assets and liabilities are mainly
denominated in HK$, RMB and US$. During the Year, the
RMB to HK$ exchange rate weakened slightly whilst the
MOP to HK$ was stable. As the HK$ is pegged to the
US$, the Directors consider the foreign currency risk of the

Group to be relatively low.

Contingent Liabilities and Charge on Assets

Save as disclosed in note 34 on page 262 of this annual
report, the Group did not have any significant contingent

liabilities.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had pledged bank
deposits of HK$360.0 million to certain banks as security
in return for the banks’ provision of loans to the Group’s
financing guarantee services customers, and to support
the Group's international trading business. In addition,
the Group pledged assets with carrying values of HK$1.9
million and HK$2,678.5 million to secure obligations under

finance leases and banking facilities, respectively.
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had capital commitments
contracted but not provided for in respect of the
development of ChinlinkeWorldport. Details of the
commitment are set out in note 37 on page 265 of this

annual report.

The Group will fund the capital commitments through cash
generated from operations, bank and other borrowings
and borrowings from the controlling shareholders of the

Company.

Events after the reporting period
Deemed Disposal Transactions

On 1 March 2017, Chinlink Alpha Limited (“Chinlink
Alpha”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Hanjiang entered into a non-legally binding
letter of intent (the “LOI 1”) in relation to the possible
capital injection into the Financial Guarantee Company,
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinlink Alpha. The
proposed gross investment to be contributed by Hanjiang
to the Financial Guarantee Company will be approximately
RMB100.0 million and the Financial Guarantee Company

will issue new shares to Hanjiang.

On 16 March 2017, Chinlink Alpha and Zhong Jinlv
entered into another non-legally binding letter of intent
(the “LOI II”) in relation to the possible capital injection
into the Finance Lease Company, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Chinlink Alpha. The proposed gross
investment amount to be contributed by Zhong Jinlv to the
Finance Lease Company will be approximately RMB120.0

million and in the form of equity interest.

For the Year, the parties to the LOI | and LOI Il are still
in negotiating for the possible transactions. Details of
the LOI | and LOI Il are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 1 March 2017 and 16 March 2017

respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 26 April 2017, Chinlink Alpha, Hanjiang, and the
Financial Guarantee Company entered into the financial
guarantee cooperation agreement in relation to Hanjian
has agreed to invest RMB100.0 million to the Financial
Guarantee Company and the Financial Guarantee
Company has agreed to increase its registered capital by
the same amount. As a result, the Financial Guarantee
Company will be held as to approximately 67.0% by
Chinlink Alpha and approximately 33.0% by Hanjiang.

On the same day, Chinlink Alpha, Zhong Jinlv and the
Finance Lease Company entered into the finance lease
cooperation agreement in relation to Zhong Jinlv has
agreed to invest RMB120.0 million to the Finance Lease
Company and the Finance Lease Company has agreed
to increase its registered capital by the same amount. As
a result, the Finance Lease Company will be held as to
approximately 63.0% by Chinlink Alpha and approximately
37.0% by Zhong Jinlv.

As at the date of this annual report, the above transactions
have not yet completed. Details of the above transactions
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
26 April 2017.

Save as disclosed above and excepted the section headed
“Material Acquisition” above, the Group did not have any

significant events after the reporting period.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

MAJOR RISKS
The major risks that may affect the Group’s business are
outlined below:
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Economic Risk

The Group's core businesses and properties are located
in Hong Kong and China. As such, the general policies
and politics, and fiscal and monetary policies of the
governments of Hong Kong and China may have a direct
or indirect economic impact on the Group. The Group
closely monitors the economic environment, evaluates the
situation and adjusts its strategy as needed to mitigate

these risks.

Credit Risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk results from trade
debtors and loan receivables arising from the sale of
goods, rendering of services to customers and providing
loans to customers, and the provision of guarantees to
lending banks in favour of customers obtaining loans
provided by the lending banks. The Group has a credit
policy in place and credit risk is monitored on an on-going
basis. Individual credit assessments are carried out to
determine the credit limits and terms which are reviewed

on a regular basis.

Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by closely monitoring
its current and expected liquidity requirements, ensuring
that there is sufficient liquid cash, committed bank
facilities and/or loans from its controlling shareholders
to meet its funding needs. In addition, the Group

continuously monitors its compliance with loan covenants.

Compliance Risk

The Group recognizes the risks of non-compliance with
regulatory requirements. The Group conducts on-going
reviews of laws and regulations affecting its operations
and provides relevant training and guidance to staff.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

As at 31 March 2017, the Group employed 37 employees
in Hong Kong and 290 employees in China (31 March
2016: 36 employees in Hong Kong and 313 employees
in China). Employees are remunerated based on their
performance and relevant working experience, taking into
account of the prevailing market conditions. Discretionary
performance bonuses may be awarded to employees with
reference to the financial performance of the Group. Other
employee benefits include contributions to mandatory
provident funds, medical insurance, and professional

development and training.

The Group is dedicated to fostering close working
relationships with its customers and suppliers. The
maintenance of good relationships with customers and
suppliers is fundamental to the Group’s operational

performance and ongoing financial success.

Prospects

Under the Belt and Road, Xi‘an is expected to thrive
given its position as an international financial center at
the starting point of the Silk Road. On 1 April 2017, the
Shaanxi Free Trade Zone was formally launched, becoming
the first free trade zone in Northwest China, further
accelerating the pace of development in Xi‘an. The Group
has been committed to doing business in Xi‘an for many
years and has a unique positioning, offering diverse
funding services to SMEs through an integrated financial
services, logistics and property platform. The Group
expects to continue to benefit from the transformation of
Xi'an due to its early mover advantage, its local market

knowledge, and its extensive business networks.
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To build on this enormous regional opportunity, in April
2017, the Group officially signed an agreement with
Hanjiang in relation to a capital injection of approximately
RMB100.0 million into the Financial Guarantee Company.
Hanzhong City is a fast growing city in Shaanxi Province
and as such the Group could benefit from further
cooperation between the two major industrial parks,
Hanzhong Baohe Logistics Park and Hanjiang Industrial
Park, located in Hantai District of Hanzhong City, and
the provision of financing services to the tenants of both
parks.

Looking forward, the Group expects to launch its finance
leasing business in Q3 of 2017/2018, with a focus on
tourism, medical equipment, and aircraft. In April 2017,
the Group signed an agreement with Zhong Jinlv, for
a capital injection into the Finance Lease Company of
RMB120.0 million. With this, the Group will be able to
fast-track the growth of the business and capitalise on the
financial and political advantages brought by state-owned

capital.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

After the completion of the MCM Acquisition, subject to
approvals from the Securities and Futures Commission
in Hong Kong, Chinlink will become a substantial
shareholders of MCM Group. The Group expects to
benefit from the cooperation abovementioned by using
the financial services licenses held by MCM Asia Limited
to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing
in futures contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities), as
well as Type 9 (asset management)’, regulated activities
under Securities and Futures Ordinance in Hong Kong.
The Group will also consider applying for or acquiring
other necessary licenses to carry out additional regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, as
well as to explore an application for similar permissions
to conduct similar activities within the Shaanxi Free Trade
Zone. The cooperation leverages the financial services
expertise of the MCM Group with the local presence and
strong network of the Group to create a dynamic financial
services group that bridges the needs and opportunities
of Shaanxi Province, provided by the Belt and Road and
the launching of the Shaanxi Free Trade Zone, with the
international contacts and clients of MCM Group to
provide access to PRC opportunities in capital markets.
It will expand the Group’s international presence and
access, along with the sourcing of investment projects for
investors in the region and across the PRC. Once approved
by the Securities and Futures Commission, the Alpha Yield
Group will provide advisory services, execution capabilities
and research services to its domestic and international
clientele, and position itself as a key participant in the
“One Belt, One Road” initiative for international investors
to invest in related enterprises. The Alpha Yield Group
will also build wealth and asset management capabilities
across Hong Kong and the PRC. The transactions are in
line with the Group’s long term development plan and
provide an opportunity for the Group to explore new

business opportunities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o B o B o Bt

Furthermore, the Group is optimistic about the prospects
for its property investment segment. Specifically, the
launch of DMG (Hanzhong) Center will accelerate the
development of ChinlinkeWorldport into a significant
regional trade and logistics hub. The Group believes
ChinlinkeWorldport will provide support for the Group's
expansion in financial services, with a strong base of cash
flow generated from rental income and management
fees, as well as the significant opportunities to extend
its financing solutions including financing guarantee,
supply chain finance, and finance leasing services to the
captive tenant base. In May 2017, the Group acquired the
Commercial Building located in Xi‘an City, and is currently
under construction. On completion, which is expected in
the Q2 of 2018, the approximate 55,491 square meter
gross floor area office complex will be leased. In the
future, the Group will continue to develop its integrated
finance-ecosystem business model in order to strengthen
its competitive advantages and improve the sustainability
of its business.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Weibin (“Mr. Li"), aged 47, joined the Group as
an executive Director since 27 January 2012 and was re-
designated as Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company on 18 February 2012. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor's
degree in Applied Electronics from Xi'an Technological
University and an Executive Master in Business
Administration from Xi'an Jiaotong University. Since early
2000, Mr. Li has been engaged in research, production and
sales of electronic components and materials, computer
software and hardware as well as research and sales of
computer related equipment. He has also been engaged in
property development, planning and sales, management,
and other property related investments, cultural and
entertainment businesses. His businesses are present in

Beijing, Xi"an and Hong Kong.

Mr. SIU Wai Yip ("Mr. Siu”), aged 61, joined the Group
as an executive Director since 27 January 2012. Mr. Siu
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The University
of Hong Kong. He has over 10 years' of experience in
banking and financing and previously held executive
positions at various major international banks, with
specialization in trade financing and corporate banking.
Prior to joining the Group, he was appointed as an
executive director of Matsunichi Communication Holdings
Limited (now known as Goldin Properties Holdings Limited,
stock code: 283) from January 2005 to February 2006. He
was an executive director of Vincent Intertrans (Holdings)
Limited (now known as Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited, stock code: 563) from July
1998 to May 1999. The shares of these two companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

HRARBABHANE

Ms. LAM Suk Ling, Shirley (“Ms. Lam”), aged 50, joined
the Group since 27 January 2012 and is currently in the
role of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary for
the Group. She was appointed as an executive Director
on 18 February 2012. She holds a Master in Business
Administration from The University of Adelaide, Australia
and a Bachelor of Science degree from Murdoch University,
Western Australia. She is qualified as a Certified Public
Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA
Australia. Ms. Lam has over 20 years' of experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management, and also
worked for various international audit firms and listed
companies. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Lam was an
executive director of Jackin International Holdings Limited
(now known as AMCO United Holding Limited, stock
code: 630), a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from February 2010 to
December 2011.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. LAU Chi Kit ("Mr. Lau”), aged 72, joined the Group
as an independent non-executive Director since 18
February 2012, and he was re-designated as an executive
Director on 18 September 2013. Mr. Lau retired from The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
("HSBC") in late December 2000 after more than 35
years’ of service. Amongst the major positions at HSBC,
he served as Assistant General Manager and Head of
Personal Banking Hong Kong and Assistant General
Manager and Head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. Mr. Lau is a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers (the “Institute”). He served as the
Chairman of the Institute’'s Executive Committee (from
January 1999 to December 2000) and is currently the
Honorary Advisor of the Institute’s Executive Committee.
He has served as a Member on a number of committees
appointed by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, including the Advisory Council
on the Environment (from October 1998 to December
2001), the Advisory Committee on Human Resources
Development in the Financial Services Sector (from June
2000 to May 2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory
Committee of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption (from January 2000 to December 2003),
the Environment and Conservation Fund Committee
(from August 2000 to October 2006), the Innovation
and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects Vetting
Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004) and
the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee
(from February 1990 to March 2006). Mr. Lau also served
as a Chairman of Business Environment Council Limited
(from September 1998 to December 2001). Currently, he
is also an independent non-executive director of Highlight
China loT International Limited (previously known as Ford
Glory Group Holding Limited, stock code: 1682), Century
Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 509), Royale
Furniture Holdings Limited (stock code: 1198), Leoch
International Technology Limited (stock code: 842) and
Janco Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8035). The shares of
the first four companies mentioned above are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the last company
mentioned above is listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

HRAREABHANE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. FUNG Sau Mui (“"Ms. Fung”), aged 61, joined the
Group in 1976. Ms. Fung was an executive Director,
director of Finance and Administration as well as Chief
Financial Officer of the Group and resigned from her
positions and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director with effect from 18 February 2012. Ms. Fung has
over 30 years’ of experience in financial management,
accounting, costing, material sourcing and purchasing, and
personnel management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. HO Chung Tai, Raymond (“Dr. Ho"), aged 78,
joined the Group as an independent non-executive
Director since 17 December 2013. Dr. Ho is a former
member of the Legislative Council (1996-2012), a
former Hong Kong Deputy to the 10th & 11th National
People’s Congress and the past President of the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers (1987-1988). He holds a
Doctorate in Civil Engineering from City University of
London, United Kingdom; an Honorary Doctorate of Laws
from The University of Manchester, United Kingdom; an
Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration from City
University of Hong Kong; a Bachelor of Science degree
in Engineering from The University of Hong Kong; and a
Postgraduate Diploma in Geotechnical Engineering from
The University of Manchester, United Kingdom. Currently,
Dr. Ho is the Chairman of the Advisory Committee for the
Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Plant and LingAo Nuclear
Plant Safety Consultative Committee (2005-present) and
Professional Advisor to The Ombudsman of Hong Kong
(Engineering and Surveying) (1995-2013, 2015-present).
He has served as a Board Member of the Airport Authority
Hong Kong (2008-2014), the former Chairman of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council Infrastructure
Development Advisory Committee (2009-2013) and
the Founding Council Chairman of City University of
Hong Kong (1992-1994). He is also an independent
non-executive director of China State Construction
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 3311),
GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 3800),
Deson Development International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 262) and AP Rentals Holdings Limited (stock code
1496). The shares of these four companies mentioned
above are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. LAI Ka Fung, May (“Ms. Lai"), aged 51, joined the
Group as an independent non-executive Director since
18 February 2012. Ms. Lai obtained a Master of Arts in
International Accounting from City University of Hong
Kong in 2001. She has been a Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1999
and is a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since 2003. She is the sole proprietor of May
K. F. Lai & Co., Certified Public Accountant, and has been
engaged in the audit field for more than 20 years. She is
also an independent non-executive director of Emperor
Watch & Jewellery Limited (stock code: 887) and Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (stock code: 296), the shares
of these two companies mentioned above are listed on the

Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. CHAN Sim Ling, Irene (“Ms. Chan”), aged 54,
joined the Group as an independent non-executive
Director since 18 February 2012. She graduated with a
Bachelor of Laws degree from The University of Hong
Kong in 1985. Ms. Chan is a retired solicitor with over
18 years’ of experience serving as an independent
non-executive director of listed companies. She is an
independent non-executive director of Emperor Culture
Group Limited (previously known as See Corporation
Limited, stock code: 491) and Emperor Watch & Jewellery
Limited (stock code: 887). She was also an independent
non-executive director of Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Limited (stock code: 296) and New Media Group Holdings
Limited (now known as Evergrande Health Industry Group
Limited, stock code: 708), and retired in August 2013
and March 2015 respectively. The shares of these four
companies mentioned above are listed on the Main Board

of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

HRARBABHANE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. LEE Wing Yan, Joanne (“Ms. Lee"), aged 41, joined
the Group on 17 October 2011. She is currently the
Corporate Development and Communications Director and
is responsible for the Group's strategic planning, corporate
communications and investor relations. Ms. Lee holds
a Master in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. She also obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Studies from City University of Hong
Kong and graduated with first class honors. Ms. Lee has
over 10 years’ of marketing and business development
experience in consumer electronics and IT industries. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Lee served as a Visiting Fellow
at City University of Hong Kong, Department of Marketing
from July 2008 to October 2011. Her teaching areas
included Strategic Marketing, Relationship Marketing and
Services Marketing.

Mr. MAG Chiu Fai ("Mr. Mag”), aged 42, joined the
Group on 26 March 2012. He is the Financial Controller
and is responsible for the Group's financial management
and accounting matters. Mr. Mag holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is qualified as a Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and is a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Mag has over 15 years’ experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. He also
worked for two international audit firms. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Mag was a Senior Accounting Manager of
Nan Hai Corporation Limited (stock code: 680), a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from November 2005 to July 2010.
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The Company is dedicated to maintaining good standard
of corporate governance as it believes that corporate
governance practices are fundamental to the smooth
and effective operation of a company and can enhance
shareholders’ value as well as safeguard shareholders’
interests.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with all code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2017, save as
certain deviations disclosed herein.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of
the management of the business and affairs of the Group

with the objective of enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility
to the executive Directors and senior management who
perform their duties under the leadership of the Managing
Director.

Corporate Governance Report
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The Board currently comprises eight Directors including
four executive Directors, a non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors. The number
of independent non-executive Directors represents one-
third of the Board as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. The list of the Directors and their biographical
details are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section of this annual report.

The Board meets regularly four times a year, i.e. at
approximately quarterly intervals. During the Year, the
Board convened a total of four regular meetings and the
attendance of the Directors are set out as below section
headed “Attendance Record of the Meetings”.

For all such meetings, notice of regular Board meetings is
given to all Directors at least 14 days before meeting and
all Directors are given the opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for discussion at the Board meetings. The
agenda and meeting materials are normally sent to all
Directors at least three days before the regular Board
meeting to ensure that they have sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company. In addition
to regular Board meetings, the chairman of the Board
met with the non-executive Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) without the presence
of the executive Directors.

All Directors have direct access to the company secretary
of the Company who is responsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance and compliance issues as well as
taking the minutes of the Board and committee meetings.
Such minutes are open for inspection by the Directors.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no
financial, business and family relationship among members
of the Board.

The Board oversees the overall management and
operations of the Company. Major responsibilities include
approving the Company's overall business, financial and
technical strategies, setting key performance targets,
approving budgets and overseeing the performance of
management.

E=xgRRh/\REEAN BEOANT
EF —EHATEETR=RBFIFNTE
Z-RIEBLEMARAEII0AGZIRE B
WITEFAREESEEARZ=DZ—&
SRERNEZREFRBRENAERIEF
LREREBRAE] —f-

EXgEFARNRERGE ANEF
BR-—XR - NAFE EFSHXERANRE
FEEHRERZIBERENTXX[EFLE
RCER| —Hfi

AR eRNE EFEPe2BNR
¢E§%%ﬁmMi%L% RBEE M2
RBEZRTROFAZEPZEEUHRES
@@%um°—hﬁﬂm%$ﬁﬂéﬁﬁm
ROZRFEBELERENTE2RES
NHERFEEERNERBERAARZER-
BREHCEFTRERIN EFSXFENTSEHN
TEEREHFEZBATHEIERTESZ (B
EBMIFMITES) G-

PREFHAEEBRARRIZAGIME -
AREAMEAERLEEARAHREFERNES
SREHER URBERSEFEREES
BRI -BHSRAEAHESSER-

%&%W%%°

EFe R ERARAIZEREEREE-
E=gZIERE @%m&m P43
X5 WIS RN REMRBZEERS
iR #HEMBER M&?$"EEZ%E

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% I it 45 B B #% 47 BR 24 %) | Annual Report 2017 44t



Ms. Fung Sau Mui, a non-executive Director, and Ms.
Lai Ka Fung, May and Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene, the
independent non-executive Directors, have letters of
appointment with the Company for a specified period of
one year. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond, an independent
non-executive Director, has a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of service for three years.
All of them are subject to retirement and rotation at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-Laws"”).

Pursuant to bye-law 87 of the Bye-Laws, at each annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. All retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-Laws provided that (i) any
director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy
shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company, and (ii) any director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the following annual general meeting of
the Company, and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting.

The emolument payable to Directors is determined by the
Board with reference to the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee’s recommendation as well as the Directors’
duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
conditions.

The Company has received annual written confirmation
of independence from all independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board considers them to be independent in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company deviates
from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
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Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Li
Weibin is the chairman and the managing director of the
Company (the Company regards the role of its managing
director to be the same as that of chief executive under
the CG Code). The Board considered that the non-
segregation would not result in considerable concentration
of power in one person and has the advantage of a strong
and consistent leadership which is conducive to making

and implementing decisions quickly and consistently.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Ms. Lai Ka Fung,
May, possesses appropriate professional qualifications
in finance and accounting and meets the requirements
of Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules. All of the
members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors and none of them are members of the

former or existing auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the risk management and internal
control and financial reporting matters and made
recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee
meets at least twice a year with management and external

auditor and reviews their reports.

Members of the Audit Committee and the attendance
of members during the Year are set out as below section
headed “Attendance Record of the Meetings”.

EEERTUZTANRXFEA2MGERE £
BERATHAAR 2B DR XA EHRRF—
ARE-ARAEIEREFTHEE ZBMY
MFERBELEEET(ARARBESALE—
BEMREATAMER ZTTRAEERF
—B%) EFERS URETRBETS(ER
NBDEFE-AF L MABMRELR
ER—B2EE - FARAEARNER—E
A R EITRERE °

BEREEE
ARPERBELEDTRARIERZES I
AR BREE - B RE e BERE
REE R R AR B 2 Ak ERHER -

ERZESXIRBRBLTHBHBRE
HAEZEESEER WHE LEMHRRE
310 KE32MG 2 RE -BREEG A
REYABIFRNTES BRFHAIIER
RNEIZ AR IBRAE B ZKE -

ENZESCRERERNASEMERMAL
At RAI B DI T W R E IR N R AR ER R
AEMBEREZTE ARAEFSELIERS
EE-BERZBSHEREEMINEZBME
FELEEMA LEMARFZHSE -

RAREER BERZEGZKERKEBHE
SRZBABN T X [@F L Fok] —&e

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% I it 45 B B #% 47 BR 24 %) | Annual Report 2017 44t



During the Year, the Audit Committee performed the

following duties:

(a) reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2016 and the unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 September 2016 with

recommendation to the Board for approval;

(b) reviewed reports on risk management and internal
control systems covering financial, corporate
governance, internal control and operational

functions;

(c) considered the independent auditors’ independence
and fee in relation to the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016, the unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 September 2016 and non-
audit related services; and

(d) recommended the Board on the adoption of the risk

management policy.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the audit and non-audit fees payable/
paid to external auditors was made up of an audit fee of
approximately HK$1.85 million and a non-audit related
service fee of approximately HK$1.15 million. The latter

included taxation service and professional service.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Listing Rules. The terms of
reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualification, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the

benefits of diversity on the Board.

Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and the attendance of members during the Year are set
out as below section headed “Attendance Record of the

Meetings”.

During the Year, the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee performed the following duties:

(a) reviewed the structure, size and diversity (including
without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service)
of the Board and made recommendations on
suitable changes to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy;

(b) assessed the independence of all independent non-

executive Directors; and

(c) reviewed the remuneration packages or fees
(including salary adjustments) of the executive
Directors, non-executive Director and the
independent non-executive Directors and senior
management with recommendations to the Board
for approval.

Details of the remuneration paid to Directors and members
of senior management of the Company by band for the
year ended 31 March 2017 are disclosed in the notes 11
and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE MEETINGS eRHEL®
Individual attendance of each Director at the Board RAFEN BUEEEEFEEHE K%
meetings, the Audit Committee meetings, the Nomination EggE RERFMWEZEESEE ARFKR
and Remuneration Committee meetings, the annual RAFARg (IBRRBFERE]) MBRERFAX
general meeting ("AGM") and the special general g (IRREBKRE]) 2 ERHE BRI 0
meetings ("SGMs") of the Company held during the Year I
is as follows:

Attendance/Number of meetings

HE/ EERY

Nomination and
Audit  Remuneration

Name Board Committee Committee AGM SGMs
BERk BR T
4 Exg ENEES fMzee BFEXE BEAE

Executive Directors

HITEF

Mr. Li Weibin 3/4 N/A N/A 11 2/2
(Chairman and Managing Director)

FRELE (TEREFLHE) @R @R

Mr. Siu Wai Yip 3/4 N/A 7 1”n 2/2

BRERLE TER

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley 4/4 N/A N/A 1”n 212

WLt el NER

Mr. Lau Chi Kit 4/4 N/A N/A 11 12

BEBREE @R @R

Non-executive Director

HFHITEE

Ms. Fung Sau Mui 3/4 N/A N/A 11 0/2

BAEEIL TEA NER

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFNHTEE

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond 474 4/4 7 1”n 212

MERE L

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May 4/4 4/4 ”n 1”n 22

RERBUL

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene 4/4 4/4 11 11 212

FRER LT
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Company provides regular updates
on the business performance of the Group to the
Directors. The Directors are continually updated on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance

and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company has maintained a training record in order
to assist the Directors to record the training they have
undertaken and they are asked to submit a signed training

record to the Company on annual basis.

ESREAAR

%R

RAFEAN ARARERRAEFTEHAKE
CEBRAEN BEERHEESERLTR
AN HEMBEREZEREZRNERER N
BREEREFRIEFEREREM

ARBEBEF2HABBEEXER UER
WEMEMBL G - EEERAYE
EZEMER ZERMD A FE R AERE - A A7)
FEBICBEABESCRREMSHEL
BEIRE YCBKREFHFALARARER
EREEZIEIICE-
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During the Year, each individual Director has attended
training courses or workshops or reading materials
relevant to his/her professional and/or duties as Director.

A summary of the training they have received for the year

ended 31 March 2017 is as follow:

Name

e

Executive Directors

HiTEE

Mr. Li Weibin (Chairman and Managing Director)
PEEEE (LTEREFLLIE)

Mr. Siu Wai Yip

RERLE

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley

MR 2+

Mr. Lau Chi Kit

BEHEE

Non-executive Director
HHTEFE

Ms. Fung Sau Mui

Vo S

Independent Non-executive Directors
BUIHHTEF

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond
fERE L

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May

REBL L

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene

BRIEIC &+

A: attending course/seminars and/or conferences and/

or forums provided/accredited by Professional Body

B: reading materials relevant to the directors’ duties

and responsibilities
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate

governance duties as set out below:

(a)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and

practices on corporate governance;

to review and maintain effective risk management

and internal control systems;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to

employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance

Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged insurance cover to indemnify

Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,

charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in

the execution and discharge of their duties or in relation

thereto.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
good corporate governance practices and sound systems
of risk management and internal control, as well as for
the review of effectiveness of these systems. To achieve a
more effective control environment, the Company’s risk
management framework is designed to be an integral part
of the Company's corporate governance framework as
well as strategic and business planning processes, and it

also embeds into each key activity and/or function.

Risk Management

The Company adopts a risk management approach that is
systematic and forward-looking to evaluate and manage
current and emerging risks related to the achievement of

the Company'’s strategic and operational objectives.

The risk management framework provides our key decision
makers and management team with better understanding
of risks faced by the Group so that potential issues are

flagged before they occur. The benefits of the framework

are:

o Improve business performance and reduce
operational surprises and associated costs or losses;

o Integrate risk management to corporate governance
practices;

o Provide assurance to the Board that significant risks
are being appropriately managed;

o Enhance capability to reach consensus regarding
potential risks and the appropriate responses;

o Define accountabilities and assign roles and
responsibilities; and

o Establish risk awareness across the organization

involving people at every level.
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Risk Management Process

The risk management process is a continuous process.
After the initial assessment, risks are re-evaluated and
updated on an on-going basis to reflect new information
and changes to circumstances so that all, including new,
risks are appropriately identified and addressed. The steps
of an on-going monitoring process is illustrated in the
diagram below.

1

Establish .Context
BAREIRIEE =

~

ke B R AR

EREE R —EEENBRE ML EER
AT RRFEERMAEEZERER - B
MEMBHOMBAENRARBEE G H
PUMBEIE - 7N 62 B & 15 B 0 AT A0 ST g
THNERZGAFEEZEARNBIE-

N

5. 2.
Reporting Risk Identification
I =R [ B On-going B2 2% 71
Monitoring
BHEER
4. 3
e Resp_onse T Risk Assessment
and Action A ST
[\ s FE 3§ K AT & o
Establish Context BA IR 5 B &

Risks are to be managed through active collaboration
from all levels within the Group, as such, this step involves
establishing the overall risk management governance
structure which defines the designation and enactment
of responsibility for the risk management process. Roles
and responsibilities are defined at the first time of the risk
management process being initiated, and will be revisited
as required.

Risk Identification

Identification of risks occurs on an on-going basis for
existing processes and on an ad hoc basis as required
when there is any change to existing businesses and
processes such as new services/products and projects, or
to the external environment such as changes in laws and
regulations.
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Risk Assessment

The purpose of risk assessment is to determine significant
risk which are risks that are material and will have an
impact on the business goals and objectives. The judgment
on significance and material involves the consideration
of likelihood and impact of the risk. In this stage, the
risk rankings of all risk events will be identified, and all
significant risks should be addressed in the next stage: Risk
Response and Action.

Risk Response and Action

Risk response and action plans should be formulated for
each of the significant risk event identified during the risk

assessment stage.

A risk treatment, being part of the response and action

plans, is to be selected for each significant risk event.

o Acceptance of Risk: No action is taken to reduce
the risk. The risk is accepted.

o Mitigation: The risk is accepted but risk mitigation
controls and action plans will be established to
minimise the negative impacts. The mitigation
should be new measures instead of existing
controls.

o Transfer: Transfer the risk by the sharing it with
third parties.

o Avoidance: Adopt risk avoidance measures by
ceasing the activity associated with the risk event.

Reporting

Management will submit risk reports to the Board or its
designated Audit Committee regularly, at least on an
annual basis. Management who owns and manage risks
on a day-to-day basis will, on an annual basis, provide a
confirmation to the Board of Directors on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems.
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On-going Monitoring

The Risk Management Working Group revisits the
Group's risk exposure regularly and will provide advices
on additional risk mitigation plans accordingly. The
internal audit is an independent monitoring function
responsible for reviews of adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems using a risk-
based assessment methodology. Audits will be performed
to evaluate the proper functioning of these systems.

Risk Management Governance Structure

All personnel in the Group has the responsibility in
maintaining good risk management and internal control
systems, collectively all personnel in the Group forms
the risk management governance structure which is
illustrated below.

Board of Directors/ Audit Committee
(Oversight)
E5g E%ELEg
==)

Risk Management Working Group
(Advising and Reporting)
[\ f & 1B T {E/NE
(i R ER)

Risk Owners
(Own and Manage Risks)
Rk EEA
(FEREERR)

The specific roles and responsibilities of each party

involved are described in details below:

FFEE AR

RERE THENMEERERERRRARN
ez - I 42 1t E At R e 4 AR ) SR R T 2R © D
Bl —RBUNEEINEE ERARRS
EROF{HIE RTRAREE R ABPEEE
EmzREMERAERE - BANITESRE
HELRRRE LR EMETHMGE

Rk EERTERE
AEBEMEABHEETHERTNRARE
BMARMEERG MEABEBIEAAE
B ey E R E IR IERE T E A

Internal Audit
(Monitoring)
A B S

(BE4%)

FH2RRARERENELRALTHARBRSE
3t
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Board of Directors

Determine the nature and extend of the risks
willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives;

Through the Audit Committee, oversee the
design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems by the
management;

Foster the maintenance of an effective risk culture
and risk management and internal controls

throughout the Group; and

Being reported on the Group’s overall risk exposure,
including the status of any significant current and
emerging exposures and trends, relevant mitigation
strategies and the effectiveness of implementation
of risk management framework.

Risk Management Working Group

Composes of directors, c-suite, senior executives
and led by the managing director of the Group
(regarded as the same as chief executive), advise
the Board on risk appetite, risk principles and risk

management framework;

Identify and evaluate significant strategic, business

and process-level risk exposures of the Group;

Monitor risk responses and mitigation strategies

executed by risk owners and/or their delegates;

Maintain documentation of risks on the risk register
and prepare risk reports for submission to the

Board; and

Represent management to provide a confirmation
to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk

management and internal control systems.
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Risk Owners

o Heads of departments and business units,
operational level units and managerial individuals
collectively assume the ownership of risks within
their functional areas and all responsibilities

associated with managing such risks;

o Implement risk mitigation measures and internal

controls that embed into day-to-day activities; and

o Report to the Risk Management Working Group on

any changes or developments regarding risks.

Internal Audit

o Independently monitor and review the adequacy
and effectiveness of functionality of the risk

management and internal control practices;

o Facilitate the Risk Management Working Group
with the risk identification, assessment and

reporting processes; and

o Utilise results of risk assessments to compile a risk-

based internal audit coverage plan.

Internal Control System
Control Environment and Monitoring Activities

The Group’'s internal control systems include an
organizational structure with clearly defined delegation of
authority and responsibility. Policies and procedures were
established to govern business operations and internal
controls to be implemented as management intends.
The Group's company secretary, internal and external
legal advisors and other management together oversee
adherence to relevant laws and regulations including the
Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and the Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards, etc.
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Budgeting and performance measuring criteria were
established by the management for its day-to-day
monitoring of business operations. Heads of departments
and business units regularly meet to review business
performance, the risks associated with their operational
activities and the relevant internal control measures to be
embedded in the processes to mitigate the risks the Group
is facing. The management also regularly prepares monthly

reports to the Board on the Group’s performance.

The Group conducts business based on the principles
of fairness, honesty and integrity and is committed to
the highest level of standards of ethical behavior and
accountability. Its code of conduct sets out the important
principles and expectations of appropriate business
conduct to ensure the Group’s employees’ compliance
with the code. The Group’s whistleblowing policy enables
a transparent working environment and provides channels
and guideline to all employees the procedures to disclose
any misconduct, malpractice or irregularity of which they
become aware. The Group did not receive any report of
whistleblowing incident during the Year.

Corporate Governance Report
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The Company has established its policy and procedures on
disclosure of inside information during the Year, providing
guidelines in relation to handling and dissemination
of inside information of the Group to ensure inside
information is disseminated to the public in an equal,
timely and effective manner. The policy outlines the
internal procedures for the identification and reporting of
actual or potential inside information, the obligations of
the Group and duties of officers in accordance with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong. Specifically, inside
information is disseminated via the electronic publication
system operated by the Stock Exchange before the
information is released via other channels, such as the
press, wire services or posting announcements on the
Company’s website. As soon as an employee become
aware of actual or potential inside information, or when
any director, officer or employee becomes aware of any
disclosure of non-public insider information or breach
of this policy, he/she must promptly report to his/her
respective departmental in-charge, who will further
communicate with the Group’s company secretary. The
matter will be assessed and the appropriate course of
actions will be determined by the Board of Directors.
Audit trail of meetings and discussions concerning the

assessment of inside information will be maintained.

The inside information policy makes specific references to
the SFO, guidelines issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission and the Model Code issued by the Stock
Exchange. It also echoes the code of conduct for how
confidential information or inside information of the
Group should be handled.
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Review of Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal

Control Systems

During the Year, the Audit Committee, with the delegated
authority from the Board, has conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group including the relevant
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management procedures to provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against failure to achieve business

objectives and material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee has concluded that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are effective
based on (i) meetings with executive directors to discuss
risks and internal controls concerning the Group's business
operations and financial reporting process, (ii) review
of internal audit and external audit reports, and (iii) the
monitoring of significant issues and material internal
control defects through reviews conducted by the internal
audit.

Management has provided confirmation to the Board that
the Group's risk management and internal control systems
are effective.

The Board also reviewed and was satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the employees of the
Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

Internal Audit Function

The internal audit function’s main responsibilities include
the followings:

(a) independently review and evaluate the adequacy,
effectiveness and efficiency of risk management
and internal control systems regarding the financial,
compliance and operational performance and

safeguarding of assets;
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facilitate management in identification of risks,
and development of risk mitigation and monitoring
strategies as part of the risk management
framework;

(0) monitor operational compliance with the Group’s
established policies and procedures; and

(d) provide advices to the management and conduct
special reviews in specific areas concerned by the
management in addition to the planned audit
activities.

The internal audit function carries out assessment based
on the internal audit annual plan approved by the Audit
Committee, and reports to the Audit Committee of
the Board periodically on status of implementation of
agreed audit plan and any significant risk exposures and

governance and control issues including fraud risks.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the auditor to the shareholders are
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” from pages

109 to 118 in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Lam Suk
Ling, Shirley, the company secretary of the Company,
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 March 2017.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
The Board endeavours to communicate with shareholders

through annual and other general meetings directly.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
information of the Group to shareholders through the
publication of announcements, circulars, interim and
annual reports. Updated information of the Group is also

available to shareholders through the Company’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings
of the Company at which Directors are available to answer

shareholders’ questions.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for convening a special general meeting by

shareholders

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to
convene a SGM of the Company. Shareholders holding in
aggregate of not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company may send a written request to the Board
to request for the SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, must state the purposes of the meeting and
must be deposited at the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Suites 5-6,
40/F., One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central,
Hong Kong or at the Company's branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving
effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under
Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the

“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at

general meetings

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a
proposal (which may properly be put to the meeting) for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company:

(a) any number of members representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of the
Company on the date of the requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the

Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the
shareholders concerned, together with a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred
to in the proposal must be deposited at the Company’s
head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Suites 5-6, 40/F.,, One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught
Place, Central, Hong Kong or at the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79
and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents are

received.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should follow the “Procedures
for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company”, which can be found on the

website of the Company.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and

concerns to the Board in writing via the following channel:

The Company Secretary

Chinlink International Holdings Limited
Suites 5-6, 40/F., One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

E-mail: shirleylam@chinlinkint.com
Telephone: (852) 2126 6333

Facsimile: (852) 2126 6399

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at

the general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Except for the increase in authorised share capital of the
Company that took place in October 2016 and March
2017 which have affected the total number of unissued
shares of the Company and thus the relevant section
of the Bye-Laws, there was no significant change in the
Company's constitutional documents during the Year.
Details of the increase in authorised share capital of the
Company are set out in the Company's circulars dated 3
October 2016 and 9 March 2017 respectively.
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This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report (the “ESG Report”) is prepared in accordance with
the guidelines set out in Appendix 27 “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report Guide” to the Listing
Rules and aims to give insight to the stakeholders of the
Group in relation to the Group’s response to the ESG
issues encountering by the Group arising from its daily
operations.

At Chinlink, sustainable development is an integral part of
managing business operations and interactions within our
employees, the environment and the community we serve.
We are committed to reach for the long-term benefits and
to foster a positive impact in our business framework for
sustainable development together with our shareholders,
customers, employees, communities and government
authority. For this ESG Report, in order to identify the
major ESG issues of the Group, we have engaged and
discussed with various management personnel and some
stakeholders and it was concluded to focus on the Group’s
headquarters and core operating business segments which
are international trading, financing guarantee services and
property investment in operation, namely the Commercial
Complex. The reporting period of this ESG Report was
consistent with the Group’s financial year ended 31
March 2017. The major stakeholders of the Group and
the respective communication channels are summarised as
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follows.
Stakeholders Communication channels
B BERE
Investors/shareholders o Shareholders meeting
BREE/BRE N
o Annual and interim reports
FERP RS
o Announcements and circulars
NG

Company website
NSIFER
Investor briefings

BREEBR
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Stakeholders
E0E

Customers/suppliers/tenants

BP /g, EP

Employees

(=3

Communities

o

Government authority

B #4

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BB & R HE

Communication channels

BERE
o Company website
NSIFEN
° Contracts
aH
o Customer service hotline
=R 2 AR
. Meeting(s)
=
o Internal memo
A BE 8 = 8%
o Team briefings
ENU ST
o Staff handbook
8T FM
o Internal newsletter
A EB i AR
o Group’s internal social networking applications

SEAFHRIBERER

o Company website
NGIFENT
o Annual and interim reports
FERPEHRE
. Meeting(s)
&t
= %
o Seminar
are
o Regular filing(s)
E M
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This ESG Report covered two ESG subject areas (“Subject IR
Area(s)”), namely (i) Environmental; and (i) Social, and LERTEEHEB ([TEEHE|) BI0)IRE
each Subject Area has various aspects. The following table
shows the reporting framework and the ESG issues related

to the core operating businesses of the Group.

ESG Guide
RE HERERES

A1l

A.2

A3

B.1

B.2

B.3

B.4

B.5

B.6

B.7

B.8

ENVIRONMENTAL

IRiE

Emission

B

Use of resources

BIREA

Environmental and natural resources
RERARER

SOCIAL

e

Employment

(A

Health and safety
RBENZZ
Development and training
R Kl

Labour standards

8 T8

Supply chain management
HEgERE

Product responsibility
EmaE

Anti-corruption

RE&S

Community investment

HEREE

m

%

HEMEAREREMBERE HE

Five mMEBEEXTEHBESRZEF@E-
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Relevant ESG issues to the Group
TEEEBRNERE HERERABAE

Greenhouse gas emissions and discharge of pollutants
R R B BE R ROS R B

Consumption of energy, water and other raw materials
TEFERLIR » K R B At R AR

Measures on minimising environmental impact
REREHREZENER

Labour practices

5 T8 {7

Labour's health and workplace safety
BITREMIESMZR

Employee training

& B &3

Child labour and forced labour
ETMAEGSET

Selection of vendor and services provider
EEMRERMRBEMAR

Product safety and protection of client’s data
EmRERREZTF HE
Anti-corruption and money laundering
REF MR E

Community involvement

im2
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ENVIRONMENTAL

By responsibly managing our business operations,
reducing our carbon footprint and using resources
wisely to protect the environment, we can
contribute to a greener living culture and support
sustainable practices to build a better environment
for future generations. As a responsible corporate
citizen, the Group respects the environment and is
keen to comply with all applicable legislation and
standards for environmental protection. During the
Year, the Group did not encounter any significant
non-compliance issue in relation to environmental

law and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Emission

The Group’s core businesses do not directly impose
much impact on water, land and air by way of
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and/or generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous wastes.

Over 92.0% of the revenue from international
trading is purchased with free carrier shipping term
and sales with ex-warehouse shipping term which
would not involve greenhouse gas emission through
transportation.

All the Group’s motor vehicles used unleaded
automotive fuel in order to keep the level of

greenhouse gas emissions at the minimum level.

During the Year, the Group complied with all key
and relevant environmental laws and regulations
which are significant to the Group, including but
not limit to the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China
(2015 Revision), Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China (2014 Revision)
and Measures on Prevention of Solid Waste
Environmental Pollution of the People’s Republic of
China (2015 Revision).

Al
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A.2

Use of resources

During the Year, the Group has implemented
several measures to reduce the usage of resources
and increased the resources saving awareness of
the employee through education to maintain the

environmental sustainability.

Firstly, the corporate headquarter's new office in
Hong Kong has taken environmental protection
and energy saving into account in the renovation
finishing materials, furniture and equipment
selections. The carpet, wallpapers and laminate
board materials are all environmentally friendly.
Glass partitions are used for rooms for directors,
managers and conference room allowing sunlight to
pass through. Sensor water tap and water dispenser
with light sensor are used in the wet pantry. Various
types of recycling bins are also available in the

office for effective recycling and waste collection.

Also, the Group continues to act green in paper
usage and energy consumption. We strongly
encourage employee to think before they print,
conduct paper-less meetings, set double-sided
as the default printing output and use electronic
methods such as emails and shared drives to
communicate with external or internal parties. We
also chose Forest Stewardship Council, certified
paper or environmentally friendly paper in printing

annual reports and interim reports.
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Furthermore, in the aspect of energy consumption,
we recommend employee to combine business
trips and use video conference or conference
call, if possible; and if traveling is necessary
we suggest employee to select hotels located
near to the working location, in order to reduce
carbon footprint. We also encourage employee
to switch off the lights after using the rooms or
before leaving the office. Sensor escalators and
LED lighting sources are used in the Commercial

Complex.

In order to aspire our employees to live in a green
style, the Group’s corporate social responsibility
(the “CSR") committee (the “"CSR Committee”)
has organised several activities to disseminate and
reinforce the message. In June and July 2016,
the CSR Committee worked with Food Angel and
organised “Share a Meal & Eco-enzyme Workshop”
and "Cooking for the Community” respectively.
The two activities aimed to educate the employees
to make good use of the edible surplus food
and cut back on food waste. Also, a visit to Zero
Carbon Building in September 2016 was organised.
Employees toured the eco-building and learned the
ecological technologies and living style. To arouse
the awareness of environmental protection of the
employees, a “Green Week"” event was organised
in November 2016, aiming at promoting daily
green living practice throughout the Group. The
event consisted of a series of activities such as
turning lights off during lunch hours, donation of
books and clothes to the needy, waste classification
and recycling, and “Giving waste a second life”

competition.

With the prevailing importance of slowing down
global climate change, the Group will continue
to take up the responsibility of environmental

protection.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BB L& R EE

A3

B.1

Environmental and natural resources

The Group’s core operating businesses and activities
do not involve using of natural resources and the
impact on the environment and natural resources is
minimal.

SOCIAL

Active implementation of CSR has always been
one of the Group’s priorities. The Group strives
to be the employer of excellence, in providing
employees an optimising working environment for
their thriving. We empower our employee to fulfill
corporate citizenship through sharing our resources
and by giving back and caring for those in need.
We forge meaningful and long-term relationships
with many social entities to support positive
change in the communities in which we live and
work. During the Year, the Group continued its
commitment to social responsibilities. Details of the
Group’s initiatives and achievements are set out
below.

Employment

The Group strictly follows the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong, Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China. The management of
the Group encourages a culture of diversity and
promotes equal opportunities, and aims to create
a respectful, fair and safe working environment for

employees of all business units.

For permanent employees, remuneration package is
reviewed individually on an annual basis reflecting
each employee’s work performance, contributions
and market developments. For contracted
employees, remuneration package is reviewed upon
renewal of the service contract.

A3
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B.2

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group provides different forms of
communication channels, including internal
newsletters, social networking applications and
face-to-face interview, through which their voices

are heard and their needs are considered.

Competitive remuneration and other fringe
benefits including medical care scheme,
comprehensive insurance scheme and special
leaves such as compensation leave, marriage leave
and compassionate leave, etc., are offered to
employees. Apart from statutory holiday and basic
annual leave, employees are entitled to additional
annual leave after working in the Group for certain
service period. In addition, employees are entitled
to festive gifts during significant festivals such as
the Chinese New Year and Mid-Autumn Festival.
To boost employees’ retention and engagement,
the Group rewards employees on their birthdays by
either providing paid leave or giving gift.

Health and safety

Employees are the most important assets to
the Group and Chinlink has a duty of care over
the health and safety of our employees. During
the Year, the Group took series of actions to
maintain both the physical and mental wellness
of our employees and provide a safe working

environment.

Concerning physical wellness, during the corporate
headquarters office renovation in Hong Kong, the
Group hired professional service provider to remove
formaldehyde to reduce the risk of respiratory
diseases caused by the long-term exposure to
formaldehyde. In addition, composite boards with
minimal chemical emission are used in the office
furniture and the office is decorated with plants to

brighten and clean the air.
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Doing exercises is one of the best ways to maintain
physical wellness. To encourage our employees to
do more exercises, the Group also cooperated with
a fitness center to offer a special corporate rate to
our employees and incentive is given to frequent
participants. Moreover, the Commercial Complex
equips with fitness equipment and sport facilities
such as basketball courts, badminton courts, etc.
whilst the Financial Guarantee Company organised
a badminton competition and an old city wall walk
competition in September and December 2016
respectively, in encouraging employees to exercise
more and building better teamwork.

To promote mental wellness, which is as important
as the physical well-being, the Group held
a "Singing Bowl Workshop” in March 2017
introducing holistic wellness and reducing stress in

personal and work lives using sound.

To keep a lid on accidents at the workplace,
regular escalator, lift and fire systems checking and
maintenance are carried out in our Commercial
Complex. We also ensure that equipment is in good
condition and properly used at all times in our
warehouses and employees handle materials in a

right way.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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B.3

B.4

B.5

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Development and training

The Group understands continuous development
and trainings is essential for a success of an
organisation. Through the in-house and external
training, employees can obtain necessary
knowledge and techniques for the business and
the management can also share corporate culture
with the employees. During the Year, the Group
arranged a number of job related training sessions
to its employees and sponsored/ subsidised certain
employees to attend external professional seminars.
In addition, the employee is entitled to examination
leave for taking any examination in respect of a
qualification relevant to his/ her role.

Labour standards

The Group does not tolerate any form of forced
child labour and forced labour, the Group complies
with all applicable statutory and legal requirement
and does not allow recruitment of child labour or
forced labour. During the Year, the Group was not
subject to any punishment by the government and
was not involved in any lawsuit relating to child and
forced labour.

Supply chain management

The Group is engaged in international trading
business (including mainly electronic components
and appliance, furniture and fixtures, etc.).

For new suppliers, the Group established and
adopted a standardised selection system. The
selection criteria will be based on the market
demand, products price and quality, the potential
supplier’s reputation, financial status, social
responsibility as well as the integrity of the

supplier's management.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BB L& R EE

B.6

Evaluation of suppliers was performed by the
Group yearly to make sure the performance of the
suppliers is up to the standard. If the evaluation
result of the suppliers is not satisfactory, the Group
will stop purchasing from it.

Product responsibility

The Group values the importance of the services
and product quality delivers by the Group to
the customers and consumers, either directly or
indirectly (through the tenants of the Commercial

Complex).

Financial Guarantee Company is a regulated
company oversees by the financial affairs office of
Hanzhong City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC. Service
provides by the Financial Guarantee Company is
strictly complied with the Interim Measures for the
Administration of Financing Guarantee Companies.
For international trading, generally, the Group
only carries on the trade of branded commodities.
For leasing of the Commercial Complex, our
management services contracts signed with tenants
stipulates that no fake commodity is allowed. The
Group adopts a “zero tolerance” attitude towards
infringement of copyright, patent and other

intellectual property.

For the Year, the Group has not had any material
complaints or request for sales return due to poor
product quality and safety issue. Should there be
any complaint, the Group will immediately address
it by conducting an internal investigation into the

matter to identify the source of the issue.

The Group also complies with relevant law and
regulation of data privacy. All confidential data of
customers and tenants can only be accessed by
authorised employees.
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B.7

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Anti-corruption

The Group treasures a fair and efficient business
and working environment, and thus gives special
importance of anti-corruption practices. Employees
are prohibited to request or accept any gifts which
could compromise employees’ objectivity or induce
an employee to act against the best interest of the
Group or the Group's business counterparts. The
Code of Conducts which applies to the Group has
made specific reference to the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance that the Group has adopted Section
9(1) of the ordinance as its internal anti-bribery
policy. For employees in the PRC, induction training
to all employees highlights the key local laws and
regulations such as the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Interim
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery and
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China for

the purpose of ensuring compliance.

The Group has a whistleblowing policy to
provide employees with a channel to report any
misconduct, malpractice or irregularity of which
they become aware of. The policy enables a
transparent working environment and provides
guideline and procedures to all employees. During
the Year, the Group did not receive any report of
whistleblowing incident and was not aware of any

non-compliance incident.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BB L& R EE

B.8

Community investment

The Group established the CSR Committee in
early 2015, comprising the senior management
executives, to oversee the CSR strategies and
continuously committing to generate positive
impacts to the community, particularly in promoting
elderly caring, youngsters development and support
to the underprivileged. The CSR Committee keeps
on the objectives in the means of building close
relationships with NGOs and related stakeholders,
engaging staff involvement actively, developing
long-term and sustainable programmes, and
utilising corporate resources and skills from our

employees.

To bridge the generation gap and reward the
contributors to the society, the Group continuously
launched voluntary services to serve the elderly. The
“Chinlink. Mid-Autumn
organised by Jockey Club Yau

Group title-sponsored the
Caring Campaign”
Tong Children & Youth Integrated Services Center,
The Boys’ & Girls" Clubs Association of Hong Kong
for the second consecutive year. Our Chinlink
"CCVST")
visited the singleton elderlies of public estates in

Corporate Volunteer Service Team (the

Yau Tong in September 2016. Moreover, in the
“Cooking for the Community” organised by Food
Angel in July 2017, our CCVST delivered their self-
made lunchboxes to singleton elderlies of Harmony
Garden Lutheran Center for the Elderly of Hong

Kong Lutheran Social Service.

B.8

HERKE
AEER T -—AFORIEEHLE
EﬁéAA’m@%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁA
EHEAMBTHEK EECXHLE
E%%’M&ﬁﬁm&ﬁ%%@‘%&
FRERNSBHEHIFHE  #BEX
matEEREATZE - CEHER
Eiﬁaﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ%
MEZVETHE BEZBHETS
B EREHMAFENG SR
DHMBAEEERKRE IR

AEBFEETREZIRE 2
MARB KOS S F L E R
RE - AGSEEEF _FEREYH
ERNERDGEFSQMETLFLR
BRBROERN [EERS  PIOX
REETH] - R_ZE-—RFALA &
ERetEETH ([RERIRK]) K
AMEEEREAERNERERSE I
R-F—tHLtA EHERESRN
BIEOABBMEE] ESP bEER
THRELRBELERBFERES
BEMEEREFLOHNBEREZAEE
HERE -

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % I it 4 B B #% 47 IR 24 %) | Annual Report 2017 454t



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Youngsters are the future pillars of society, to
nurture youngsters takes a vital role in our CSR
implementation. The Group sponsored the “Silk
Road Youth Leadership Programme 2015-16",
jointly organised by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, Peking University and Xi‘an Jiaotong
University. The graduation ceremony of the
programme was held in August 2016. 42 students
from the three universities consisting of diverse
cultural backgrounds, such as Hong Kong, the
Mainland China, Malaysia and Korea; and from
ethnic groups e.g. the Han, the Tibetans, etc.,
gained valuable experiences from the visits, leader
service learning projects and workshops conducted
in Xi'an, Ningxia, Israel and Kyrgyzstan in 2015 and
2016. The Groups hoped to nurture all-rounded
youth leaders of tomorrow march through the Belt
and Road.

In addition, Chinlink sponsored the “Carol Singing
Festival 2016" organised by Child Development
Matching Fund, advocating a youth development
caring culture through carol singing during the
festive Christmas season, as well as helping
deprived youths to achieve target savings and come
out of poverty in the long term.

To support to the underprivileged, the Group
sponsored “Cookery for ALL!" organised by TREATS
in March 2017. Through the hands-on cookies
making activities with our CCVST and students with
moderate intellectual disability, the Group hoped to
develop self-confidence and sense of achievement
in the students and promote the awareness,
understanding and acceptance of people with

different backgrounds and abilities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BB L& R EE

Moreover, the Commercial Complex organised a
four-day campaign named [ KBAEEEMRXEERE =
BIEEOHEELE]In June 2016, collecting the
unsold vegetables from the farmers and delivering
them to the underprivileged communities in
different geographic locations. In the same month,
the employees of the Commercial Complex visited a
non-profit making kindergarten which serves nearly
900 children in early stage of autism and mentally
retardation from 24 provinces in the PRC with
provision of trainings in simple daily living activities

and communication.

DONATION

Chinlink and its employees continued to participate in and
donate the Dress Casual Day, Green Day, Love Teeth Day
and Skip Lunch Day organised by The Community Chest of
Hong Kong.

Moreover, the Group launched an in-kind donation
programme named “Give & Take” book exchange
programme in October 2016. Employees donated the
unwanted books and they could choose the books
donated by other employees in return. 78 and 244
unchosen books were ultimately collected in Hong Kong
and in the PRC respectively and were donated to The
Alchemist Café Bistro book cafe and the book collection

corner in the Commercial Complex respectively.

N BERER-_ZT—RFAR
WE%E%WFK%EEM%E%E
RIEBLFEEMR]EY MERKE
REEELMEE UBEEA TR
EMSEEMBE-RA BERNENE
THRIB—FEENDHER -
BEEEKKREPBEAETNRE D
900& R B FIAE R NES VI AN
RE VREHEAZEHRERDN
%R o

BE
BETEREBTHESELBIHTER
RERPRNABZSERA  AREBA Q5
EFRARRARTEFIRB

I RZT—RNF+A AEEHETER

[Give & Take BIZE B8 EWIBBF
Z-BETIRBIFENER Wl AEEM
ETHRENEREREHR - AEERKES
BRABEDRIWE T 78R K244 EFE - 5
BRERFLFMAERBEANEZHE
EWEzEH-

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % I it 4 B B #% 47 IR 24 %) | Annual Report 2017 454t



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL RECOGNITION

The Group was awarded three social recognitions affirming
the Group’s commitment, effort and contribution in
implementing CSR during the Year. Firstly, Chinlink was
awarded “Green Office” Label of the Green Office Awards
Labelling Scheme organised by World Green Organisation
and the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
“Better World Company” Label presented by Junior
Chamber International Hong Kong in November 2016,
recognising Chinlink’s achievements in green workplace

practice.

Also, the Group was awarded the “Caring Company
2014-2017" Logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service in Mar 2017. It is the third consecutive year that
Chinlink being awarded this credible logo.

As a socially responsible company, Chinlink believes that
every company has a part to play in the society, especially
in the presence of exigently infected moment of our
earth. The Group will continue to concern the society
from all walks of life with concrete actions, to commit and
implement the CSR, and make greater contributions to a

sustainable development.
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Directors’ Report

R R R

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
the subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2017 are set

out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 119 of this

annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2017 is provided in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 10 to 34

of this annual report.

ANALYSIS OF MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The sales to the top five customers for the Year amounted
to HK$383.5 million, representing an increase of 234.4%
from HK$114.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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The top five customers in the Year represented
approximately 73.9% of the total revenue as compared
to approximately 57.0% for the year ended 31 March
2016. The largest customer in the Year which is from
international trading segment accounted for approximately
29.6% of the total revenue in the Year as compared to
the largest customer in last year of approximately 19.4%
of total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2016 which
was from international trading segment. Three out of the
top five customers are located in Hong Kong and two is
located in the PRC.

The purchases from the top five suppliers amounted to
HK$370.2 million, representing an increase of 217.5%
from HK$116.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The top five suppliers in the Year represented
approximately 87.1% of the total purchases as compared
to approximately 77.8% for the year ended 31 March
2016. The largest supplier in the Year which is from
international trading segment accounted for approximately
38.4% of the total purchases in the Year as compared to
the largest supplier in last year of approximately 28.5% of
total purchases for the year ended 31 March 2016 which
was from international trading segment. Four out of the
top five suppliers are located in Hong Kong and one is
located in the PRC.

Maintaining good relationships with customers and
suppliers is fundamental to the Group’s operations and
success. The Group is keen to foster a satisfactory and
balanced demand and supply and maintains close relations

with its customers and suppliers.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report

R R R

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company
are set out in the section headed “Major Risks” in the
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 10 to
34 of this annual report and notes 4, 38 and 39 to the

consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Details of the discussion on the environmental policies
and performance of the Company are set out in the
"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this

annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2017
are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2017, together with the
reasons therefor are set out in note 29 to the consolidated

financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
Details of movements in the convertible bonds of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2017 are set

out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has no reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 31 March 2017.
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ADFERZEBRR R TBHBERHAR
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[EZRB] —HAREEHBREMZL
3839 °
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AEEBE_T—tF=ZA=T—"HLFE
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of

contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay

its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2017 and

up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Weibin

Mr. Siu Wai Yip

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley
Mr. Lau Chi Kit

Non-executive Director
Ms. Fung Sau Mui

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr.
Siu Wai Yip, Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May and Ms. Chan Sim
Ling, Irene will retire from the Board by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Being eligible, the abovementioned Directors will offer
themselves for re-election.
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The directors who have served on the boards of the

subsidiaries of the Company during the Year and up to the

date of this report were:

Mr. Li Weibin
BT E

Mr. Lau Chi Kit
BB AE

Mr. Wong Kam Hong
=L L

Ms. Guo Li Na
=l e

Mr. Wang Hong Li
FRNEE

Mr. Liu Wei
2L E

Mr. Zhao Jun
%A

Mr. Wang Zi Heng
TRE%E

Mr. Siu Wai Yip
mEELE

Ms. Fung Sau Mui
HELL

Mr. Kwan Kam Ming
kot i

Mr. Tang Yi Feng
E—IgEAE

Ms. Wang Hong
FHaXL

Ms. Duan Shan Shan
E5 I 3 22 4

Mr. Chen Yun Peng
PR =M 55 4

Ms. Zhang Yu Mo
RAAKL L

RAEERRBEARE BHRAR AN E
AEFRIRIESMT

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley
ORI 22+

Mr. Tai Wing Wah
BoKELE

Mr. Loo Chi Kwan
EEELEAE

Ms. Zhao Ying
MLt

Mr. Liu Shu Li
2 3t 38 5 A&

Mr. Xi You Liang
FEREE

Mr. Tao Wei Jun
A ELE

Mr. Tian Jin
ML E
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the four executive Directors, Mr. Li Weibin, Mr. Siu
Wai Yip, Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley and Mr. Lau Chi Kit,
have entered into a service agreement with the Company
for no fixed term which may be terminated by one month

notice in writing by either party respectively.

The non-executive Director, Ms. Fung Sau Mui and each of
the two independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Lai Ka
Fung, May and Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene have entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term

of one year commencing on 18 February 2017 respectively.

The independent non-executive Director, Dr. Ho Chung Tai,
Raymond has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing
on 17 December 2016.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory

obligations.

Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions

of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company

and their respective associates in the shares, underlying

shares and debentures of the Company and its associate

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),

as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code of Securities Transactions by Directors

of Listed Companies, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.3125 each and

underlying shares of the Company

Name of Directors Capacity

Expg 5t

Beneficial owner

ERBEBA

Mr. Li Weibin (“Mr. Li")
FRERERE ([ZXE])

Interest of controlled
corporation
REHEE RS

Number of
ordinary share

LEREE

12,645,600

347,112,758
(Note 3)
(Hi3)

ESERBEETHRAR
RARBRAEM

BRIEZRSD -
BB 7 R (' 25
BEzEmRER
R-Z—tF=ZA=+—-B EFREAAA
BETRABUREEEAZBHEATHER
REREBELE (EERES LB ED
EXVER) ZBt5 ARG REH D BHA
BRARRAIREES RS D $3520F
FEzBRMzEZRER WRBELTA
RESRITESRS 2 BETANERTHE
ARA RN 2 S RERNT

MR R EREEC.31258 T 2 & @Ak M 48
ARtz kA

Approximate
percentage of

the total
Number of number of
underlying issued shares of
shares Total the Company
EERDNRERT
BBz
HEROHE it BRED
(Note 1)
(M)
485,733,770 498,379,370
(Note 2)
(H:t2)
169,911,504 517,024,262
(Note 4)
(H:t4)
1,015,403,632 151.55%
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Approximate
percentage of

the total

Number of number of

Number of underlying issued shares of

Name of Directors Capacity ordinary share shares Total the Company

L NNCTIE

R A

EEpE EL) EEREE HEROEE @t BAEA

(Note 1)

(Hist1)

Mr. Siu Wai Yip Beneficial owner - 542,804 542,804 0.08%
BREELE EREBA (Note 5)
(Hrits)

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley Beneficial owner - 542,804 542,804 0.08%
MR Lt ERBBA (Note 5)
(Hrits)

Mr. Lau Chi Kit Beneficial owner 200,000 361,869 561,869 0.08%
BEGEE ERBEBA (Note 5)
(Hrits)

Ms. Fung Sau Mui Beneficial owner - 180,935 180,935 0.03%
BAEERL ERBEBA (Note 5)
(Hrits)

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond Beneficial owner - 361,869 361,869 0.05%
EREL ERBEBA (Note 6)
(Hiite)

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May Beneficial owner - 180,935 180,935 0.03%
RRELZ T ERBEBA (Note 5)
(H1it5)

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene Beneficial owner - 180,935 180,935 0.03%
gLt EEBBA (Note 5)
(H1it5)
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Notes: it -

1. Based on 670,002,436 ordinary Shares of the Company 1.
issued as at 31 March 2017.

2. These underlying shares comprise (i) 778,018 share 2.
options at an exercise price of HK$6.41 per share granted
on 24 April 2013 (subject to adjustment); and (ii) a total
of 484,955,752 conversion shares at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.565 per conversion share will be allotted
upon full conversion of the convertible bonds in the

aggregate principal amount of HK$274 million.

3. These shares are held by Wealth Keeper International 3.
Limited (“Wealth Keeper”), the entire issued share
capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Li. Accordingly, Mr. Li is deemed to be interested in the
entire 347,112,758 shares held by Wealth Keeper by
virtue of the SFO.

4. These underlying shares are convertible bonds held by 4.

Bestwin International Investment Limited (“Bestwin”),
the entire issued share capital of which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Li, in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$96 million at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.565 per conversion share. A total of 169,911,504
conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon full
conversion of the convertible bonds. Accordingly, Mr. Li is
deemed to be interested in these 169,911,504 underlying
shares held by Bestwin by virtue of the SFO.

5. These underlying shares are share options at an exercise 5.
price of HK$6.41 per share granted on 24 April 2013
(subject to adjustment).

6. These underlying shares are share options at an exercise 6.
price of HK$7.518 per Share granted on 17 December
2013 (subject to adjustment).

BARBIN_Z—tE=-ZA=+—HE%
17670,002,4365% L i@mA%FT&E -

ZERBEBROEREOR_ZE—=FMA
ZtmEREETEBEAERE4EITTZ
778,018 BEfR i (A] THIEE) © KA &
487 /274,000,000 7T 2 Al R EHER
HEIN IR P BN EGRERRD0.565
IS TR E 2 & 484,955,752 /% 85 %

1/\ o

% % 1% {7 BB Wealth Keeper International
Limited ([Wealth Keeper ] )5 - £2
BEITRABEAE2EAERES - Hit-
BIEFHFRPAEGD TEEHRRARA
Wealth Keeper#f & 2 2 #6347,112,758/%
I& 0 A o

ZERERDAEZBEBEREBR AR
([#B] E20EBTREAATEERE

EmER)HE  AeHE% /96,000,000
B2 JRRES VAP ERELAERER
A& 170.5657%8 JT o AI R AR 1& 5 16 7B S g 1R 05
1 T BCEE R 3 1TE 169,911,504 % 8535 f%
BBt RIBEFHRERD ZhER
RARBRBIFE 2%%5169,911,504%48
RO HEERER-

HEEBRG AR T —=FmA=+m
B I 17 1 (R R .41 7 2 BRARHE (7
FE%) -

ZERERDAR_S—=+_A++
ABRETEEAERT.SISHE T2 B E
(A FaA%E) -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of B EFEYFESEIN RoE—+F=F=+—
the Directors or chief executive of the Company or any of B B2 AN RSTHA S skH T (e
their associates had any interests or short positions in the AT ER RN KM BHE LR RG -
shares, underlying shares or debenture of the Company or HERGOSEEDEEEMESSER -

any associated corporations.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 21 September 2012, the Company adopted a share

option scheme (the “Scheme”), which was approved by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the

Company held on the same date.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant share options to the eligible participants as

incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

According to the Scheme, the Board may grant share
options to the eligible participants as defined in the
Scheme to subscribe for such number of shares as the
Board may determine. Share options granted should
be accepted within 28 days from the date of the letter
of grant. Upon acceptance of the share options, the
grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant. Subject to the terms of the
Scheme and all applicable laws, the Board has the power
to determine the period within which payments or calls

must or may be made.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined
by the Board, which shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value

of a share.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all share options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue of the Company on the date of approval
and adoption of the Scheme provided that the Company
may at any time seek approval from its Shareholders to
refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval by the Shareholders in general meeting
where such limit is refreshed. Share options previously
granted under any share option schemes of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with such schemes or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as

refreshed.

The total number of shares issued which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the share options granted
under the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period up to and including the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant unless such grant has been duly approved
by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general
meeting at which the relevant eligible participant and his
associates abstained from voting. Share options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
Directors or any of their respective associates in any
12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
issued share capital on the date of grant and with a value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance
by the Shareholders.

AT R EZET 8 R A D B HE 1t 8 A i
FERHZAEBREM A BT ZROEE
FRAGEBNIENRAZAEEALRR
AlZBETROBEZ210%  HALQF] A BE
RRERAES KRR ESZBREEHNL
BRMUEEHERREBE R 2B HTRNDZ
10% - R ELEHRAK - FRREAD
AR AT 8IPT IR 2 P R (B3R
EREEEDARITE Bl CRMEETT
FBZBRE) TERAEEA-

REERLERE RS2 ATER1218 A 8
(BHEEHER)  AREZTERARFIE
MEMBRES SR TEINGER2EE
BE (BRESITE EEERAERTERR
B)ETEEMEETRA TETZARK
BB TEBBEREERAZEZETRNZ
1% HARBEERBRRAS LERRERE
BRBRLAMAERRIN MBEBEERS
HENEBEALTAEZRG ERERE -
WREBRRABUFATESHEHEAE
BB A TR 2 R A (A1 218 A #f
BREHEAARRB ZEHITEAZ0.1%K
HE@E®HS5,000,000%8 7T BINELRRSE
SEHbE HREE -
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The period during which a share option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion,
save that no share options can be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted. There is no general
requirement that a share options must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised. The Scheme

will expire on 20 September 2022.

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 27
March 2017, the Company was authorised to refresh the
scheme mandate limit to issue a maximum of 67,000,243
shares options under the Scheme. Notwithstanding the
forgoing, the shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the

shares in issue from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, no share options
were granted, exercised and cancelled and a total of
20,355,141 share options (before Share Consolidation
became effective on 28 March 2017) were lapsed. As
at the date of this report, the total number of share
available for issue under the Scheme is 76,191,720, which
represents approximately 11.14% of the total number of
shares in issue of the Company as at 14 June 2017 (i.e.
683,719,250 shares).
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BRI E i B R BIFF IR BB M R TTEZ
FIERARITERRBETERA TRITZRK
EEMFRE N SEBTIRFEHTRN Z
30% °
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BITE TR BT 2 RMDBEAET6,191,720
BoHERARATAR - E—+EA+WA
2 BT 8 (BN683,719,250% Ik 17
21 14% o

Annual Report 2017 44t | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % FE v 4 13 B # it 45 i 23 )



Directors’ Report

R R R

The movements in the share options granted under the

Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2017 are shown

below:

Name or category
of participants

SREZHZAEH

Executive Directors
BES

Mr. Li Weibin
TRERE

Mr. Siu Wai Yip
Bk

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley
B Rt

Mr. Lau Chi Kit
B

At
1 April
2016

HA-H

8,600,000

6,000,000

6,000,000

4,000,000

Granted
during
the Year

KEER
B

Exercised
during
the Year

REER
e

Number of share options

BREHE

Adjustment

after

Cancelled  completion

during of Rights

the Year Issue

PR

XEER TREZ

H# AE

(Note 1)

(Hit1)

- 10,850,465

- 7,570,090

- 7,570,090

- 5,046,729

Lapsed
during
the Year

rEER

%%
(Note 1)
(Hit1)

HE_Z—+F=A=+—-HILFE BE

ZaTEl R

Adjustment
after
completion
of Share
Consolidation

RERRE 5
TREZAE
(Note 2)
(H7t2)

(18,672,447)

(13,027,286)

(13,027,286)

(8,684,360)

H > B

Date of

At grant of

31 March  share

2017 options

R-Z2-t& BREZ

ZA=t-H RHAH
(Notes 1 and 2)
(H#1k2)

778,018 24-04-13

—Z%MmA

~tmA

542,804 24-04-13

—Z¥MmA

~tmA

542,804 24-04-13

—Z¥MmA

~tmA

361,869  24-04-13

—Z¥MmA

~tmA
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Validity
period of
share options

BREZENS

24-04-14 to
23-04-23 (Note 3)
-BEMA=+HREE
ZZENAZT=H
(#t3)

24-04-14 to
23-04-23 (Note 3)
-BEMA=+HREE
ZZENAZT=H
(#t3)

24-04-14 to
23-04-23 (Note 3)
-BEMA=+HREE
ZZENAZT=H
(#t3)

24-04-14 to
23-04-23 (Note 3)
-BEMA=+HREE
ZZENAZT=H
(#t3)

Exercise

price
of share
options

BREZ
e
(Notes 1 and 2)
(H#1£2)
HK$

B

per share

R

6.4100

6.4100

6.4100

6.4100
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Number of share options
BREYE
Adjustment Adjustment
after after Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Cancelled  completion Lapsed  completion At grant of Validity price
Name or category 1 April during during during of Rights during of Share 31 March  share period of of share
of participants 2016 the Year the Year the Year Issue the Year Consolidation 2017 options share options options
RER
RZZB-X% KEER KEER AEER TR#EZ KEER RBRBAEHE R-FT-tF BREZ BREZ
SREZHEARA mA-H it it i} BE %% RA#zAE ZA=t-B REAH BREZENE Eog 4|
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Notes 1 and 2) (Notes 1 and 2)
(Wit1) (Hit1) (Hi2)  (W#1R2) (Wt1k2)
HK$
BT
per share
=3
Non-executive Director
FHTES
Ms. Fung Sau Mui 2,000,000 - - - 2,523,360 - (4,342,425) 180,935  24-04-13 24-04-14 o 6.4100
BARRL —Z%MmA 23-04-23 (Note 3)
ZtEE  -EFMAZTEEZE
Z=FMA=t=H
(#73)
Independent Non-
executive Directors
BUATES
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond 4,000,000 - - - 5,046,729 - (8,684,860) 361,869  17-12-13 17-12-14 to 7.5175
ERBL -=£4ZA 16-12-23 (Note 5)
TtA -HE+ZAtEAZE
—=%+-F+AR
(#ts)
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May 2,000,000 - - - 2,523,360 - (4,342,425) 180,935  24-04-13 24-04-14 o 6.4100
RRERL —Z§MmA 23-04-23 (Note 3)
ZtEE  -EFMAZTEAZE
Z=FMA=t=H
(#73)
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene 2,000,000 - - - 2,523,360 - (4,342,425 180,935  24-04-13 24-04-14 10 6.4100
BRER T+ —Z%£mA 23-04-23 (Note 3)
ZtmE  -REMAZTHmEZE
“Z#@A-t=H
(Hit3)
34,600,000 - - - 43,654,183 - (75124,014) 3,130,169
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Number of share options
BREHE

Adjustment

after
At Granted Exercised Cancelled  completion Lapsed
Name or category 1 April during during during of Rights during
of participants 2016 the Year the Year the Year Issue the Year

RER
RZZB-X% KEER KEER AEER TR#EZ KEER
SREZHEARA mA-H it it i} BE F3:
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(Wit1) (W)

Others

Hip

Employees 26,000,000 - - - 32,803,738 -

(31

15,000,000 - - - 18,925,234 (4,523,365)

Other eligible participants 35,000,000 - - - 44,158,901 (15,831,776)

KR ERSEE

110,600,000 - - - 139,542,056 (20,355,141)

Notes:

1. As a result of the Rights Issue effective on 17 November
2016, the exercise price and number of new shares to be
issued under the outstanding share options were adjusted
pursuant to the terms of the Scheme.

2. As a result of the Share Consolidation effective on 28

March 2017, the exercise price and number of new shares

to be issued under the outstanding share options were

adjusted pursuant to the terms of the Scheme.

Adjustment
after
completion
of Share
Consolidation

RBBAH
TREZEE
(Note 2)
(H:t2)

(56,451,590)

(28,225,794)

(60,794,040)

(220,595,438)

Wit

At

31 March
2017
RIZ-t&
ZAZt-H
(Notes 1 and 2)
(Wit1k2)

2,352,148

1,176,075

2,533,085

9,191,477

RN =

Date of
grant of
share

options

BREZ
EHAH

24-04-13
—Z%MmA
ZtmA

29-11-13
~=&+-4
ZthHB

24-04-13
—Z§MmA
~tmA

Validity
period of
share options

BREEZERA

24-04-14 to
23-04-23 (Note 3)
-BEMA-+HAZE
ZZENAZF=A
(H#3)

291114 10
28-11-23 (Note 4)
-mE+-A=+hAZ

Z=%+-A=tNA

(#iit4)

24-04-14 to
23-04-23 (Note 3)
-BEMA-+HAZE
ZZENAZF=A
(H#3)

Exercise

price
of share
options

BREZ
TRE
(Notes 1 and 2)
(Hrat1k2)
HK$

BT

per share

Bk

1.7375

—NFT—AtTEBRER

ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ%h%h%%ﬁZﬁhf

TERENRBBEREZEZI

o

R BAD & B =
s

%

GEES
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The validity period of the share options are vested into
five tranches with (i) the first 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 24 April 2014 until 23 April
2023 (both days inclusive); (ii) the next 20% of the share
options shall become exercisable from 24 April 2015 until
23 April 2023 (both days inclusive); (iii) the next 20% of
the share options shall become exercisable from 24 April
2016 until 23 April 2023 (both days inclusive); (iv) the
next 20% of the share options shall become exercisable
from 24 April 2017 until 23 April 2023 (both days
inclusive); and (v) the remaining 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 24 April 2018 until 23 April
2023 (both days inclusive).

The validity period of the share options are vested into
five tranches with (i) the first 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 29 November 2014 until
28 November 2023 (both days inclusive); (ii) the next
20% of the share options shall become exercisable from
29 November 2015 until 28 November 2023 (both days
inclusive); (iii) the next 20% of the share options shall
become exercisable from 29 November 2016 until 28
November 2023 (both days inclusive); (iv) the next 20%
of the share options shall become exercisable from 29
November 2017 until 28 November 2023 (both days
inclusive); and (v) the remaining 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 29 November 2018 until 28
November 2023 (both days inclusive).

The validity period of the share options are vested into
five tranches with (i) the first 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 17 December 2014 until
16 December 2023 (both days inclusive); (ii) the next
20% of the share options shall become exercisable from
17 December 2015 until 16 December 2023 (both days
inclusive); (iii) the next 20% of the share options shall
become exercisable from 17 December 2016 until 16
December 2023 (both days inclusive); (iv) the next 20%
of the share options shall become exercisable from 17
December 2017 until 16 December 2023 (both days
inclusive); and (v) the remaining 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 17 December 2018 until 16
December 2023 (both days inclusive).
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The closing price of the Company's shares immediately
before the date on which the share options were granted,
i.e. 23 April 2013, 28 November 2013 and 16 December
2013, were HK$0.56, HK$0.68 and HK$0.68 per share,

respectively.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above in “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS”, at
no time during the year ended 31 March 2017 was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

ARARBRHOREZERERL A —X
(—E—=F=mWA-+=H —ZET—=F
+—A-+t N \BE-_Z—=F+=-A+xH)
2 W EBD R AEK0.56/ 7T 0.68/8 7T &
0.688 7T

BERMN

BHERH
BREXTEERESTRABRARB RIE
MBS EAEZ D HERDERESTHEE
ZHERNER] —HMEEEIN ARE]H
BERARREEANBRARAHERBE_F
—tF A=t BLEFERZEMEHEG
MR EE BUEEE A BB RER QR
HAEMEAMER 2RO HEFMEE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES
As at 31 March 2017, the Shareholders (other than

Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had

interests or short positions in the shares or underlying

shares of the Company as recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of

the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company are set out

below:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of

the Company

Number of

ordinary

Name of shares of

substantial Shareholders Capacity HK$0.3125 each

BREE

031258 T2

TERRER /B2 &% EERHA

Wealth Keeper Beneficial owner 347,112,758

EREBA

Bestwin Beneficial owner -

Ms. Cao Wei (“Ms. Cao”) Interest in spouse 359,758,358

(Note 3) [ (Note 4)

Bt ([Extl) (Hi#3) (Hiit4)

Notes:

1. Based on 670,002,436 ordinary Shares of the Company

issued as at 31 March 2017.
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ITERREK

Htt AT RRH K

B R AR 2

EERER

R-Z—tF=ZA=+—0 BRR(BEAA
RARBITHRABRINRAREZBEH S
RN EERBRRADAREES
R EGEDI$33616FE 2 BRMN - RAS
THEARRZHBEXEAMT :

RARBEBEMBBBRO 2RR

Approximate
percentage of

the total
number of
Interest in shares in
underlying issue of
shares Total the Company
NN
ERTRA
RAAE By
Rz B @t BAEI
(Note 1)
(Hizt1)
- 347,112,758 51.81%
169,911,504 169,911,504 25.36%
(Note 2)
(Krit2)
655,645,274 1,015,403,632 151.55%
(Note 5)
(Hrits)
Bt 7t -

1. BARRIR-_E—tF=A=1+—HE%
77670,002,436/% @A 5T & -
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2. These underlying shares are convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$96 million at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.565 per conversion share.
169,911,504 shares will be allotted and issued upon full
conversion of the convertible bonds.

3. Ms. Cao is the spouse of Mr. Li.

4. These shares comprises (i) Mr. Li personally held
12,645,600 shares, and (ii) 347,112,758 shares held by
Wealth Keeper, the entire issued share capital of which is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Li, the spouse of Ms.
Cao. Accordingly, Ms. Cao is deemed to be interested in
the entire 359,758,358 shares held by Wealth Keeper and
Mr. Li by virtue of the SFO.

5. These 655,645,274 underlying shares comprise (i)
778,018 share options held by Mr. Li; (ii) the convertible
bonds held by Mr. Li in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$274 million at an initial conversion price of HK$0.565
per conversion share. 484,955,752 shares will be allotted
and issued upon full conversion of the convertible bonds;
and (iii) the convertible bonds held by Bestwin, the entire
issued share capital of which is wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Li, in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$96 million at an initial conversion price of HK$0.565
per conversion share. 169,911,504 shares will be allotted
and issued upon full conversion of the convertible bonds.
Mr. Li is deemed to be interested in these 169,911,504
underlying shares held by Bestwin by virtue of the SFO.
Accordingly, Ms. Cao is deemed to be interested in the
655,645,274 underlying shares by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, no other
persons had any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company.

2. ZEMRBERMN A& 8% 596,000,000
TR AR ES Y EREATRERR
190.565/%8 7T - MBI A AR B FH 1% -
15 T Bl % % 3£17169,911,50488 % 17

3. BERERFREZERB-

4. ZERODEBENBFEEBEBATEZ

12,645,600% f& {5 ¢ K (i) g Wealth Keeper
¥A2347,112,758% B 15 - fiWealth
Keeperz 2 HfE BITRABAE L L 2B
FREZEERES Bt RIEZHF LB
EARA 22 AR S B Wealth Keeper
K2 E#E 2 26359,758,358 % A% 15
BB

5. 255655,645,274RAMEAR N BIENZT L E
BAEZ778,018MBERE: (W EX4EHH
2 N& #%8 /274,000,000 7T 2 7] 3%
BEH YL ERELRTRERRD0.5655
Lo RBHE MR RRESE FTEER
%%17484,955, 752 Bk 15 ¢ K (iD= (A&
HEBHTRABFEEZERESHSR)
8 2 N & 485 596,000,000/ T 2 7]
REH VL EIRE L ETRERRD0.565
BT -NEBHERITBRESE B FEC
K 397169,911,5048 J 19 - iRIBBH K
HEGD ZLEERAREBITE 2%
£169,911,504 R HHFEA AR (0 AP B fE 25 o
It IRIRESF RS GG B2 TR AR
655,645,274 MHEARR (DR R o

BREXHEEEN R_T—tEF=A=1+—
B BiEEMALTRARE RN HABBRND
PoBEBAAETRARRRER S MK
PIZE336MGFEZELMA  KASTHAER
NAZERHIER -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transactions

Details of the connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are set out in the section headed
“Material Acquisition” in the Management Discussion and

Analysis of this annual report.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the
Company discloses the following continuing connected
transactions incurred during the Year.

CLI Design Limited, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”)
with Golden Life Investment Limited (“Golden Life")
on 28 November 2014 for the lease of Workshops Nos.
1 to 8, 19 to 21 on the 2nd Floor, of Decca Industrial
Centre, 12 Kut Shing Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong, with
an aggregate gross floor area of about 6,149 square feet
and Car Parking Space Nos. P9 and P10 on the Ground
Floor of Decca Industrial Centre, 12 Kut Shing Street, Chai
Wan, Hong Kong at a monthly rental of HK$71,500 and
monthly building management fee of HK$9,876 for a term
of three years from 1 December 2014 to 30 November
2017. According to a written notice served by Golden
Life, the monthly building management fee was increased
from HK$9,876 to HK$10,616 with effect from 1 January
2016. The transaction pursuant to the Tenancy Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules as Ms. Fung Sau Mui, a non-executive
Director, is one of the directors of Golden Life.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group paid
rental and building management fees of approximately
HK$858,000 (2016: HK$858,000) and HK$127,392 (2016:
HK$120,732) to Golden Life pursuant to the Tenancy

Agreement and the written notice.
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BEXS

FHRAUNFUATE T 2HER S ZFEH

RAERERE i mam MO [ERKRES
H] e

RiIF ETRAFVAAT  RRFEHEA TR
AEERNETZHEWERS -

NN R E A FIE B R A A R A A BB IR
BERERBRAR (BRI BEEMREBLES
BEE12S E R T ¥R 02128 - 19521
SR 5 (MEEmMELN6,149F T R) KA
EBLEETHENEETEP L TPIR
PIOSREMA T —WOF+—H=Z+ B L
—IEHE RS ([HEHR]) - A A71,500
;%mﬁﬁﬂ%%*ﬂ%%ﬁ%m;‘%ﬁﬂ:
T-—NF+_A—BRE-ZZ—tF+—A8
:+E|Jtﬂﬁﬁ:io*ﬂ%}%&hﬁ%&ﬁth
2@3_%11'ﬂ%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&w&%ﬁibﬂ
2106168 T - B_E—~"FEF—H—HEE
M-BHRIERTEETFRFEL LT ABEESD
—ZEE HRBEHEREAETIRZE
REMBAET 2 HERERS -

RBE-T—tF=A=+—HIEFERN"
$%I$E%Ffﬂ S 1 R E E B AR AB R AT
2He RYWEEIEE4L858,0008 L (=F
— 7% £ 858,000/ 7T) &127,3928 T (=&
— 7N 120,732 1) °
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On 31 March 2016, Financial Guarantee Company and
AREERHMFELEEFARAF (Xi'an Dewantong
Commercial Operation and Management Company
Limited*) ("Dewantong”) entered into a financing
guarantee contract (“Dewantong FG Contract 1”). On 28
July 2016, Financial Guarantee Company and Dewantong
entered into a new financing guarantee contract
("Dewantong FG Contract Il") and on 30 March 2017,
Financial Guarantee Company and Dewantong entered
into a new financing guarantee contract (“Dewantong
FG Contract Ill”, together with the Dewantong FG
Contract | and Dewantong FG Contract Il, collectively,
the "Dewantong FG Contracts”), pursuant to which
Financial Guarantee Company has agreed to provide
financing guarantee to the lending banks in favour of
Dewantong for procuring Dewantong in obtaining the

bank loans.

The principal terms of the Dewantong FG Contracts are set

R-ZE-—RF=R=

HEAZ SRR XELTRARAR (88
BV DREERAO ([REERERE
REM]) - R _ZE-—RFLA-TNB &
BRERAREREBRRI —NHBERERSE
W EBBEREEREQN) A - —+
FZA=ZTH BEERAREREBRR
—DHREERAN([EBEAREERS
Al EREERREERANMIREER
MEERAVI SHA EEERERERS
B Bl BEERAFCAEMREER
AERRTREBEERARRRSBES
WITER

REBRMEERANZIEGRREIINT

Approximate

out below:
Guaranteed
Contract Contract date amount
BRER BHAH EREHE
(RMB in million)
(ARERET)
Dewantong FG Contract | 31 March 2016 7.000
EEARERRED TR
ZA=Zf+-8
Dewantong FG Contract Il 28 July 2016 3.000
EEARERRSD ZE-RF
tAZ+NR
Dewantong FG Contract Il 30 March 2017 5.000

EERBERREDON

—E—+F
ZR=1H

* for identification purpose only
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guarantee  Guarantee
income  service period
EREARA  EREBHE
(RMB in million)
(AR®EET)
0.175 31 March 2016 to
30 March 2017
ZE-RF¥=-A=t—HZE
ZE—t4=A=1H
0.075 28 July 2016 to
27 July 2017
“E-R"ELAZTN\BE
“E-+FtAZt+A
0.125 30 March 2017 to
29 March 2018
ZE—+tF=A=1+HZE
—E2-\$=AZ+ANH



During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
has received/receivable from Dewantong for financing
guarantee services fee of total approximately RMBO0.21
million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.25 million)
(2016: approximately RMB0.24 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$0.29 million)).

The transactions pursuant to the Dewantong FG Contracts
were constituted continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules as Mr. Li, an executive Director and
the controlling shareholder of the Company, indirectly
holds 50% of Dewantong's equity interest. Further
details of the Dewantong FG Contracts are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 31 March 2016,
28 July 2016 and 30 March 2017, respectively.

On 27 November 2015, Financial Guarantee Company
and BIRESETEBRMAR A A (Xi'an Hui Jing Zhuo
Yuan Information Technology Company Limited*) (“Zhuo
Yuan”) entered into a financing guarantee contract (“ZY
FG Contract”) and a consultancy services contract (“ZY
CS Contract”), pursuant to which Financial Guarantee
Company has agreed to provide financing guarantee to
the lending bank in favor of Zhuo Yuan for procuring Zhuo
Yuan in obtaining the bank loan and Financial Guarantee
Company has also agreed to provide corresponding
consultancy services to Zhuo Yuan in return for services

income.

* for identification purpose only
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FAREBRZS0%KE AREEEERE
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The principal terms of the ZY FG Contract and ZY CS
Contract are set out below:

Guaranteed

Contract Contract date amount
BERER BHAH EReE
(RMB in million)

(AREBETL)

ZY FG Contract 27 November 2015 9.000

ETREREREH

ZY CS Contract
BLHAREED

“LT-hF
+—A=t+H

27 November 2015
—T-1F

Not applicable
TEm

+—-B=++8H

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
has received/receivable from Zhuo Yuan for financing
guarantee services fee and consultancy services fee
of total approximately RMB0.39 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$0.45 million) (2016: approximately
RMBO0.95 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1.15

million)).

The transactions pursuant to the ZY FG Contract and
ZY CS Contract were constituted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as the major beneficial
owners of Zhuo Yuan are the relatives of Mr. Li. Further
details of the ZY FG Contract and ZY CS Contract are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27
November 2015.

BETREERGAOREBELEARBEEN ZE
ZEREFNDOT -

Approximate
guarantee/
consultancy
service income
BR/EA
R LB A
(RMB in million)
(AR®RET)

Guarantee/consultancy
service period

’R/ AR

0.225 27 November 2015 to

26 November 2016
“E-hFt+—AZt+tHE
“E-R"E+—-A=FRA

0.405 27 November 2015 to

26 November 2016
“E-hFt+—-AZt++tHE
“E-R"F+—-AZFRA

BE_Z—+F=ZA=1t—HIEE K&
BEEW ERETHEERREERRE
ARBEBAEHELHARK390,000T (FHE
M 49450,0008 ) (ZE—RFHARKE
950,0007T (8K 41,150,000 7T) )

HRETZEEERHEABTREZBE
AT HIBRBETHRERRE N RETET
RIEENETZXGBR LETHRUNET 28
BRERXS FRETIREEREARET
BHARBENZE—THBINA QR HEH
R-IE—AF+T—AZTERZAMA-
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On 28 March 2016, Financial Guarantee Company and
PRUE & A R bR BB R 2 F (Shaanxi Gun Shi
Xin Tian Di Cultural Investment Company Limited*)
(“Gun Shi"”) entered into a financing guarantee contract
("GS FG Contract 1”) and on 27 March 2017, Financial
Guarantee Company and Gun Shi entered into a new
financing guarantee contract (“GS FG Contract 11",
together with the GS FG Contract |, collectively, the “GS
FG Contracts”), pursuant to which Financial Guarantee
Company has agreed to provide financing guarantee to
the lending banks in favor of Gun Shi for procuring Gun
Shi in obtaining the bank loans.

The principal terms of the GS FG Contracts are set out

Directors’ Report

B

RIZE-—RF=ZAZ+N\B BEERAA
HERARAFRBXAERERR A (IR
BRI DBEERAQ ([ ROBRERR
BRI UERZZ—+F=A=-++H &
BRERARERAGI Y- NHBERRELD
(MRABMEERSQN ] ERROBEER
X BES [ RAOBERREN]) Bt
BEERARCRAERRARERRITRM
MERRUEEROBEFRRITER

BOMERERANZIEBZGRIINMAT

Approximate
guarantee/

consultancy
service income
BR/ 7N
PR DA
(RMB in million)
(ARBEBETL)

0.125

Guarantee service period

RREBHE

28 March 2016 to

below:
Guaranteed
Contract Contract date amount
BHERE EHEH EREHE
(RMB in million)
(ANREBBEETL)
GS FG Contract | 28 March 2016 5.000
RABEERAEN —E-RF
=AZ+NH

GS FG Contract Il
BRBEERADI

27 March 2017
ZE—tfF
=AZ++tH

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group has
received/receivable from financing guarantee services
fee of approximately RMBO0.12 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$0.14 million) (2016: approximately
RMBO0.19 million, including consultancy services fee,
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.23 million)) from Gun
Shi pursuant to the GS FG Contracts.

* for identification purpose only

27 March 2017
—E-~F=ZA=-1+/\RZ
“EF-tFZA- 1A

0.1125 27 March 2017 to

26 March 2018
—E—+F=ZA=-t++tA=Z
—E-N\E=ZA=+H

HE-_Z—+E=-A=1+—BHLEE BE
RABMBERALN AEEEWR " BEEA
ZRERRRBERLOARK120,0007T (4
ERH140,00087T) (ZE—REFHAR
#190,000T (BIEFAMRBER) (HER
#7230,000%87T) ) °
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The transactions pursuant to the GS FG Contracts were
constituted continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules as 68.13% of the equity interest of Gun Shi
held by the relative of Mr. Li. Further details of the GS
FG Contracts are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 28 March 2016 and 27 March 2017,
respectively.

The guarantee amount and financing guarantee services
income charged to Dewantong, Zhuo Yuan and Gun Shi
were based on the credit risk assessment to respective
parties and the prevailing market bank loan rate in the
PRC. The consultancy services income charged to Zhuo

Yuan was based on the scope of services provided.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the

transactions were entered into:

(i) by the Group in the usual and ordinary course of
business;
(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less

favourable to the Group than terms available to or

from independent third parties;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements and the contracts mentioned above
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole; and

(iv) have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount
capped in accordance with the announcements of

the Company as mentioned above.

RREA 268 13%RIETIRZE 2 BEA
THAE BURBEZAREERANHBETZR
SHERLETBRNBEBT 2 BEREZL S A
BREOBRMEERAGNZE—FFHBIAHER
ARARIBHA-—ZT—XRFZA=-+NBEK=
E—+tFZA-t+tBHZAHA-

MEEE ELTRRORBZERSE LK
Mz BMERRBRBEBADEREEZTOLZ
EER R R E R BRRTE RN RmE
TE o EWE TT 2 7 RIS UR A T B A R i
R 2 SE M E

REBELEMHRA BUFRTESSH LAE
BRERSEHESRERWT

(i) ZERZFIHAKER -—REREFRS
BREPETT

(i) HERZPNIE—BEEERETER
AREEBBLEZ A RESBIFE=
FRAREBIRME 2 EFRETL

77
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The Company’s auditor, were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company
has issued an unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the Year are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements and include transactions
that constitute continuing connected transactions for
which the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules
have been complied.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS"” above, no contracts of significance to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the Year.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” from
pages 41 to 63 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most
important assets and stakeholders of the Group and
their contribution and support are values at all times.
The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefits
policies according to industry benchmark as well as
the individual performance of employees. Other fringe
benefits, mandatory provident fund and share options are
provided to retain loyal employees with the aim to form
a professional staff and management team that can bring
the Group to different levels of success.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the section headed “FINANCIAL
REVIEW” in the Management Discussion and Analysis
from pages 16 to 29 of this annual report and the section
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" from pages 89 to 96 of
this report, the Company has not entered into any equity-
linked agreements during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors, secretary and
other officers and every auditor for the time being of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them, shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reasons of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duties in their respective offices or otherwise in relation
thereto.
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The Company has taken out insurance against all losses
and liabilities associated with defending any proceedings
which may be brought against Directors and other officers
of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that

had a significant impact on it.

EMOLUMENTS POLICY

The emoluments policy of senior management of the
Group is set up by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market

statistics.

The Company had adopted the Scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the Scheme
are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”

above.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws of the Company, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-

rata basis to existing Shareholders.

DONATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group made
donations amounting to approximately HK$0.12 million.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital was

held by public as at the date of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
of the Company the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 and
discussed with the management of the Company on
auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
reporting matters. Information on the composition of the
Audit Committee is set out in the Corporate Governance

Report from pages 41 to 63 of this annual report.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Weibin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 14 June 2017
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEFSEBRZRERATF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Chinlink International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 119 to 307, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 57 A% B

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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Key audit matter

BREBELSBE

Valuation of investment properties

REYRIGE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements
and the significant unobservable inputs and
judgements involved in determining the fair value.
BABREDMELERNREREZZTE REAR
HiZEaMBRRZEBRMEFEEENEETRATE
W P I 2 R A PI#R 52 ) A\ (B % 2l o

As set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment properties as at 31 March 2017
amounted to HK$2,806 million which is stated
at fair value as determined based on valuations
performed by independent qualified professional
valuers.
WMERE M BEMERIT16FTE - BEREIREMER
—tF=HA=+—HZKHIE#2,806,000,000
B DREBUGERERGEMETZHEME
EZRNFER e

The valuation of investment properties requires
the application of significant judgement and
estimation in determining the appropriate valuation
methodology, adoption of significant assumptions
and use of various unobservable inputs in the
valuation models. The valuation is sensitive to the
underlying assumptions and inputs such as the
market comparables and discount rate used which
can have a significant impact on the valuations.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMzERNNEERRERER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of

investment properties included:

BPERREMEREZREFBRE:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent qualified
professional valuers;

B A ERERMGEM B
1

CEOREE

Obtaining an understanding from the
independent qualified professional valuers of
the valuation methodology, the performance of
the property markets, significant assumptions
adopted and key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

B AEEREERGEMTREERE MED
BRE BREPHARAZERNRRMAKB 2 E
EwAEREE:

Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, the significant judgments and
assumptions applied, including the market
comparables used and adjustment factors
adopted based on our knowledge of the
industry; and
REBBRMETEZ TR FEEERE FAER
BARAERRER (BEMEAZTSAELERR
HREMZAERAR)RERE

Checking the arithmetical accuracy of the
valuation calculations and on a sample basis,
the key inputs and data to available market data
and evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key audit matter (continued)

MEERER (£)

Valuation of trade and loan receivables

JEWE ZHREREXNELZ 151E

We identified the valuation of trade and loan
receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balances to the consolidated
financial statements and significant judgement
involved by management in the valuation process.
BMKREKE S REREWE R 2 (GEBR AR
ERER RERUGEAMBHRERZEHRTMEIHE
BEENERBEMGERERS K2 ERHE-

The Group has trade receivables of HK$29.7
million, loan receivables of HK$138.5 million and
an allowance for bad and doubtful debts of HK$1.4
million as at 31 March 2017.
EEER-_T—tF=-A=-t+—RAZEKE SRS
/$29,700,0007% 7T - & W B 5K %%138,500,00078 7T I
RIZEREAE /1,400,000 7T

As disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management determines
the allowance for bad and doubtful debts with
reference to the credit history of customers, age of
debts, collateral receivable, past settlement records
and subsequent settlements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

BMzBRNMEE@REREE (&)

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of trade and
loan receivables included:

BPMEEREESREARERERGEZEFBRE:

o Understanding and evaluating the key controls
relating to the preparation of aging analysis of
trade and loan receivables and determination of
allowance for bad and doubtful debts;

. TR R EHE B AR E W E 5 ERIE M R E TR
BRoMRETRERBE 2 FEEH

o Assessing the reasonableness of allowance for
bad and doubtful debts made with reference to
credit history of customers, collateral receivable,
settlement records including default or delay
in payments and actual collection after the
end of the reporting period for trade and loan
receivables;

. AE2EEPZEERE BUWERR EHRC
B (BRBRITEENR) RRREHRIEERK
B S RIAREKERZ BRBGRIE N RE R
RBHBRELEAIE:

o Testing the accuracy of the aging analysis of the
trade and loan receivables, on a sample basis, to
source documents;
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Key audit matter (continued)

MEERER (£)

Independent Auditor’s Report
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(continued)

BMzBRNMEE@REREE (&)

Valuation of trade and loan receivables (continued)

EREGHRAREWRENZ 151E (E)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

Testing the subsequent settlements, on a sample

basis, to source documents; and
EHMEEEARARX G 2 HEEEBR &

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the
allowance estimation made by management

by comparing the historical allowance made
against the actual settlement and actual loss
incurred.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 57 A% B

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or

have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the

directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 57 A% B

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Stephen C. L. Yuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

14 June 2017

AR ERIE B R A FEE AL R A AR
EMBHMEBERITIFNREZSR BB
EREE -BIFERIERTIBHLHARE
HEFRKIEBZFANBRT  RFAR/H
BUHSFEEAAEBRANIRERBEBA
BB FZBH N & A EAERS T LA
BE DRIHRMEERBERE T HEE LS
ERER

BENEZEREFRFIZBENBRENIE
BAEBARRER

EHeBER AT
HED A

BB
—E—+FA+HTEA
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
A 1R g S B fth 4 i W AR AR

Revenue

Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other income, gains and losses

Gain on fair value change of investment

properties
Gain on bargain purchase in acquisition
of a subsidiary
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
— equity-settled share-based
payments
— other administrative expenses

Finance costs

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive expense

Item that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange difference arising on

translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive (expense) income

for the year

For the year ended 31 March 2017

WA
BB R IR AR

E7
H A - Wz K g id
BREMEZ
NP EEB K E
WiE—HMEARZ
& (BB W
HE R KA
TTHFAEX
—IEREEUARN S
ERE 2 5
—HMITHAX

B RN

B 75t Al g 7
FrEH A x

ENES Pl

Hit 2 HEBAX
HIEREF D HE R Z
EH :
RBRBBINEBEEZ
EHEE

AEE2E (FAX)
LN

NOTES
Wiz

16

33

10

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAETT
518,834 201,297
(425,198) (149,966)
93,636 51,331
14,824 (2,875)
142,066 16,556

- 309,966

(8.804) (8,156)
(4,311) (7,339)
(78,619) (73,328)
(82,930) (80,667)
(105,489) (119,167)
53,303 166,988
(28,479) (7,928)
24,824 159,060
(125,625) (7,660)
(100,801) 151,400
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
o 1R g M 3Lt 4 W AR AR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #%E -F —LHFE=H =+ —HIL4FEE

2017 2016
—Z—tF ZE—RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt FTER FHET
Profit for the year attributable to: E{EFEERR:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIEZ ZS N 1,337 157,663
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR A 23,487 1,397
24,824 159,060
Total comprehensive (expense) EBhEArEE2E (HX)
income for the year AT
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NESIE/ F SN (100,362) 151,301
Non-controlling interests IE15 R (439) 99
(100,801) 151,400
(Restated)
(FE7))
Earnings per share BREF 14
— Basic —H K HKO0.42 centsi#fll  HK139.76 centsi&
— Diluted —# HK0.42 cents®{ll  HK139.47 centsi ll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

50 IR Dl &

At 31 March 2017 A -F—LFE=H=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FERT FAT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BE k& 15 23,497 25,220
Investment properties s R /ES 16 2,806,186 2,647,938
Intangible assets mILEE 1,756 3,946
Deposit paid for acquisition of WEREMEZ
investment properties [RENE & 17 - 32,312
Deposit paid for prepaid lease B L HERIE 2
payments for land Bftize 18 28,220 29,918
Amounts due from former subsidiaries FEUXBTHIE A 7 BEE 19 13,607 11,937
Deposits and prepayments e RIEM A 1,777 577
2,875,043 2,751,848
Current assets REEE
Inventories wE 20 2,843 3,251
Accrued revenue RN - 3,123
Trade receivables EWE F KA 21 29,713 6,433
Trade receivables from related EREERNF
companies 2 SRR 21 - 208
Loan receivables e E % 21 138,542 77,381
Bills receivables FEWEE 21 45,308 -
Other receivables, deposits and Hh e YR IE
prepayments e RIEM A 25,897 20,996
Amounts due from former subsidiaries JEUXBTHIE A 7B 19 5,793 5,793
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITHER 22 359,997 235,206
Bank balances and cash WITHEENES 23 95,988 48,975
704,081 401,366
Current liabilities REBEE
Deferred revenue PBEIEUR A 2,736 2,057
Trade payables e B 5 8RI1E 24 38,665 13,664
Other payables and HMENRER
accruals et E A 57,074 32,895
Loans from staff BETER 5,155 11,838
Construction costs accruals FEET AR A 25,368 206,134
Receipts in advance T8 W sk 1E 25 44,792 31,607
Deposits received from tenants mEP KBz ZEE 25 15,577 25,110
Amounts due to related companies JEREE A FIBRTE 26 203,912 37,817
Amount due to a director BN —REZERE 26 1,000 16,320
Amount due to ultimate holding JE 1 B 424 AR
company YNSIE S| 26 844 -
Provision for warranty REBE 145 219
Financing guarantee contracts BMEERE D 34 2,977 2,418
Tax payable JE T A1 I8 6,028 6,132
Bank and other borrowings RITREME R 27 414,561 112,454
10.0% convertible bonds 10.0% F] iR &5 75 31 76,723 -
Conversion option derivative AR ES 2
embedded in convertible bonds BMRENTE T A 31 121 -
12.0% coupon bonds 12.0%FEEH 30 - 430,506
8.0% coupon bonds 8.0%E B EFH 30 - 201,684
7.5% coupon bonds 75% = EEH 30 206,688 -
Obligations under finance leases & M E A 783 798
1,103,149 1,131,653
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

0 1 B IR Dl &

At 31 March 2017 A -F—L4E=ZA=+—H

Net current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
10.0% convertible bonds
Conversion option derivative

embedded in convertible bonds

12.0% coupon bonds
7.5% coupon bonds
Deferred tax liabilities
Receipts in advance
Bank and other borrowings
Amounts due to former subsidiaries
Obligations under finance leases

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

REBAEFHE
REERARBAE

kRBARE

10.0% AJ 32§
EVNRE

*‘E?/TE
12.0%EE
7. 5%—,—%
EERIES
%E\J‘IQ/TQ\IE
RITRHEME
FETRINB
& E R

&

‘m]}_\FIJ]}H ><m
\mm@%
3 I mk

I
T EH'F

ﬁt) v

EXRHE
H&
& 18
K@ﬂ%ﬁA%ﬁ
M

I Hx$ =

The consolidated financial statements on pages 119 to

307 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board

of Directors on 14 June 2017 and are signed on its behalf

by:

LI Weibin
E P

DIRECTOR
EF

NG
s

P!

2 i

NOTES
Wi

29

g%

2017
—g—t%
HK$'000
TR
(399,068)

2,475,975

215,193
25,515
662,285
7,337
698

911,028
1,564,947

209,376
941,955

1,151,331
413,616

1,564,947

F119BEF307B 238
BoUWHNWTRERES

SIU Wai Yip
mEX
DIRECTOR
EF
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2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
:F/%E

(730,287)

2,021,561

66,683

7,891
128,380
198,546
200,917
32,169
267,247
6,437

1,481

909,751

N

,111,810

34,896
662,859

697,755
414,055

1,111,810

—tFERNATEBEHEHIIRN

B %5k S IR T
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Notes:

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2017

The entities established in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") are required to appropriate 10% of its
net profit, as determined under the China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises (2006) and other
relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital.

Subject to the approval of equity holders of the entities
established in the PRC, statutory surplus reserves may be
used to net off with accumulated losses, if any, and may
be converted into capital, provided that the balance of
statutory surplus reserve after such capitalisation is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

Pursuant to the Interim Measures for the Administration
of Financing Guarantee Companies issued at 1 September
2010 by the Shaanxi Province government authorities
in the PRC, companies providing financing guarantee
services shall establish unearned premium reserve equal
to 50% of guarantee premium recognised during the
year and indemnification reserve of no less than 1% of
the outstanding guarantee balances. Balance at end of
the reporting period represents difference between such
required reserves and the financing guarantee contracts
liabilities the Group has already provided for.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

R EARKNE ([HE])RINERA
S E AR R 8910% (AR 45 o B B B R 28 45 Y
TEGEEEN (ZTTRF) REMA
FRPET) BB ETRHREE BEER
FRIZEBIEE B A H50% o

EERTEK A EBOESR A ARE
WERT EERBFEENARBHERE
B(nA) NABREELN HEHEZER
ERETRRFERERTIBEREMER
#25% °

REFERAEBRTHAIR_F—FFN
A—BZEMe (MEEERATDERET
WE) RE REBRBEMERREZARA
RUREMELEES (HERFANER
EERICABIS0% ) - AREREEEES
(MER KRB B REERA1% ) » TS HIR
HEHREFRRATCHRBEASBECHERZR
BERAWAEZER-
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maBlaeia®

For the year ended 31 March 2017

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs

Adjustment on amounts due from

former subsidiaries

Adjustment on amounts due to

former subsidiaries

Gain on bargain purchase in
acquisition of a subsidiary

Imputed interest income from amounts
due from former subsidiaries

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Reversal of allowance for bad and

doubtful debts, net

Write down of inventories
Equity-settled share based

payments

Provision for (reversal of provision)
warranty recognised

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Gain on fair value change of
investment properties

Gain on fair value change of
conversion option derivative
embedded in convertible bonds

Exchange difference on translation of
intra-group balances

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital

Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease in accrued revenue
(Increase) decrease in trade

receivables

(Increase) decrease in bills receivable
Decrease in trade receivable due from

related companies

Increase in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
Increase in loan receivables
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Increase (decrease) in trade

payables

Increase (decrease) in receipts in advance
Refund of deposits from tenants
Increase in other payables and

accruals

Utilisation of provision for warranty
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2017

e
HK$°000
FHT

53,303

(5,213)
105,489

(1,670)
3,681

(273)

4,311
326

8
2,291

(142,066)

(7,753)

12,434
408
3,123

(23,007)
(45,308)

208

(6,101)
(81,424)
679

25,001
6,531
(8,352)

24,179
(400)
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2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
FH T

166,988

(12,407)
119,167

5,747
(3,099)
(309,966)
(2,172)

3,231

(456)
1,021

7,339
(102)

1
2,255

(16,556)

(4,324)

5,168

(38,165)
(2,266)
2,397

69,119
2,332

5,437

(3,087)
(67,565)
(325)

(61,580)
(10,534)
(1,777)

3,671
(1,678)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mallaiER

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

For the year ended 31 March 2017

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
BT 5 FHET FAT
Net cash used in operations KEFRIREFHE (92,029) (104,021)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERBEENEFH (60) (22)
Profits Tax paid outside BENEBNIINEERZ
Hong Kong AAF AR (1,934) (5,810)
Interest received 2R E 20,263 214
NET CASH USED IN REXBERAZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEEEE (73,760) (109,639)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Net cash inflow on acquisition of BB —FENELR 33
a subsidiary ZHEeRANFE - 24,482
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - HWEREHE
plant and equipment Z F185RR 2 -
Interest received B F & 5,213 12,407
Purchase of property, BEWME BFE
plant and equipment e (2,350) (1,398)
Additions of investment properties under REEEREWE N
construction and leasehold land HE L (322,392) (17,681)
Placement of pledged bank deposits GFEEEMBIEITHER (140,000) (300,550)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits el B R IT I 1,862 409,488
Transfer of deposit paid for acquisition of WK EMEC 2
investment properties EHoEE 32,312 -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REXK (£A)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B zRe R (425,353) 126,748
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEaBEeERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #%E -F —LHFE=H =+ —HIL4FEE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of 7.5%
coupon bonds

Expenses on issue of 7.5%
coupon bonds

Proceeds from issue of 10.0%
convertible bonds

Expenses on issue of 10.0%
convertible bonds

Interest paid

Borrowing from bills discounted
with recourse

New other borrowings raised

New bank borrowings raised

Repayment of other borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Advances from staff

Advances from related companies

Advance from a director

Advance from ultimate holding
company

Repayment of obligations of
finance leases

Repayment of loans from staff

Increase in bank overdraft

Repayment to a director

Repayment of 7.5% convertible bonds

Repayment of 8.0% coupon bonds

Repayment of 12.0% coupon bonds

Proceeds from rights issue

Expenses on issue of shares

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 APRIL

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 MARCH,

represented by bank balances and cash

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FExT
BB XK
BEITT 5% ZERIEH
Fr8 518 -
BITT 5% ZaEEY
M -
£1710.0% Al AR (E %
Fr8 5k -
B1710.0% 7] H 8 (5
ZFAX -
EF A (139,168)
MBEEREZCMAEE
BB ER 45,308
g EMmE R 44,637
i %Eﬁﬁm 1,229,341
EEEMER (54,211)
EBRIEITER (518,652)
KEEIZE#R 3,753
REBEQR 2R 153,407
%Q—%i%Z@ 1,000
REREERAGZ
IR 844
EERmEHRE
i (798)
BEEIEX (10,878)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-%F—tF =] =+—HILFE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted limited liability entity and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate
and ultimate holding company is Wealth Keeper
International Limited (“"Wealth Keeper”),
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the
ultimate controlling shareholder of Wealth Keeper
is Mr. Li Weibin (“Mr. Li"), the chairman and
managing director of the Company. The address of
the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate

Information” to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
trading of consumer goods (including trading of
furniture and fixtures) and electronic components,
interior decoration works in Hong Kong and
Macau, property investment, provision of financing
guarantee services and consultancy services in the
logistic industry in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC").

The presentation currency of the consolidated
financial statements is Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$"),
which is also the functional currency of the

Company.
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Keeper |) ' iMWealth KeeperZ H& 4%
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(RRRIEFREFLKIE) - AAF
AEfMmMEERETESEMENMIE
RAFHRz [REIER] AERE-

ZNY/NCIDEES &= 23 /NI RS T) - N
ZEEEXBDREEREER (B

BRMREKEES) REFTEHES R
BEERRFIREEARBH IR -WE
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RERHBEERRERODRITEZ
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group
in light of the fact that, as of 31 March 2017,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$399,068,000.

The directors of the Company closely monitor the

liquidity of the Group. Taken into account of:

(i) the availability of the Group's credit facilities
of approximately HK$1,010,522,000 as at 31
March 2017, of which HK$977,251,000 has

been drawn down subsequently; and

(ii) loan facilities from Mr. Li and a company
controlled by Mr. Li totaling approximately
HK$626,400,000 pursuant to the loan
agreements entered into between the
Company and these parties on 16 June 2016
and 1 September 2016 respectively and
the supplementary agreements on 3 March
2017.

The directors of the Company consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the
foreseeable future. On this basis, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

BEREREE (F)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #% % — 4= =+ —H IL4FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the

first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable
and HKAS 38 methods of depreciation
and amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS Investment entities: Applying
10, HKFRS 12 and the consolidation exception
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to

HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017  #% % — 4= =+ —H ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERA#HITEBMBREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (BB BHREEDN])RE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS CHENE P,

("HKFRSs"”) (continued)
New or amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations EEMMERRER G BB ISR
in issue but not yet effective HEEAEBITARRE
The Group has not early applied the following new REE AR FER TS 85 5
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued REBRZFHAI B AV B RELEL R E
but are not yet effective: BRI :
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’ %%Eﬁiﬁ&%f@ﬁ” SRIA
595
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with BRUBALEN HEPAHZ
customers and the related F15% KaRkE@E]
amendments' ) )
HKFRS 16 Leases’ é%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁw e
F16%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign currency transactions and ﬁ%(ﬁf PRREE MERGRBERRE'
advance consideration’ 2EZEE) -
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and measurement '% BENF N
of share-based payment BEMBREEN URHBEEIARRHZ
transactions' 2R (BEIA)  DEREE
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial BERBREED %Fﬁ?%gﬂk#&%ﬁﬁw
instruments with HKFRS 4 F45 (BIR)  BEABRRRAOB—HER
Insurance contracts’ BEMBAEE
\ FORERMTE
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets BRMBREER HjE'HxM EZEHBENT
and HKAS 28 between an investor and its F10% (BEIA)  FAEQAZHNEE
associate or joint venture? REEGHER
S HE
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative’ %%ﬁﬁiﬁ)‘@ﬁﬁ BEXHH
4
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets ERGHENE N HAZEER
for unrealised losses (%) LURIEQF“
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of investment property’ ﬁ/ﬁ(?ﬂf EE)'J%élOsﬁ REMFER
Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual improvements to HKFRSs ERMBASEN FEMBRSED
2014 - 2016 cycle® S HES CE-MEE_F-AF
B EEYE
f Effective for annual periods beginning on or after ! RZZE-N\F—-A—HxkzEHRiA
1 January 2018. 2 FEEBRMER-
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 RZZE-—NF—-—A—BxkzEHEA
1 January 2019. ZFERM AR
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 3 MASEE 2 Ak 2 & RB 2 FE
a date to be determined. HRRE Ao
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 4 RZZE—tF—-—A—HakzEHRiR
1 January 2017. 2 FEEBRMER-
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after > RZE—+tF-—HA—BxH=F—N
1 January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate. F—A—B (@A) kzgfne
R A -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tF =] =+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New or amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

o all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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MEHBE N2 XBEAFRFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (continued)

New or amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations

in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

with regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), HKFRS 9 requires
that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as FVTPL is presented in
profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit
loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-%F—tF =] =+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (continued)

New or amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

o the new general hedge accounting
requirements retain the three types of
hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for
hedge accounting, specifically broadening
the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition,
the retrospective quantitative effectiveness
test has been removed. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s
risk management activities have also been
introduced.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and
risk management policies as at 31 March 2017,
the application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have
an impact on the measurement of the Group’s
financial assets. The directors of the Company
anticipates that the expected credit loss model may
result in early provision of credit losses which are
not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised cost. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group undertakes a
detailed review.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F —LHFE=H =+ —HIL4FEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (continued)

New or amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with

customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts”
and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the

standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract
o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the

entity satisfies a performance obligation
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % —“F—LFE=H =+ —HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (continued)

New or amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with

customers” (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations,
as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the

respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the

related interpretations when it becomes effective.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F —LHFE=H =+ —HIL4FEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (continued)

New or amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for

short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group
currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for owned use and those classified as
investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows.

R EEMBREER
(BREMBHREEA|)RE
BRI (&)

B AR I i R A R 3R] BB B IS 3R
SEASEBITAREE (&)

BB B HEERE 165 [HE ]
(#&)

&8 B 15 ¥R S Y R 5 165 AR 1% P a8k B
EERDHMEPESRENYHEENR
Bat - REMBEREEEERE
ShoEEHERBMEHENEE G K
HASHREEFBR WHAEAZR
IATEHEEREREEERMEREER
EREAER-

EREEENTEAAGE BRA
R (HEE T BISME S ER SN ) B R AT
ENREEBEFE ITHEEAEDN
EMEMFEFLAE - HERED
FREEFE (FE B M) HRER
E-Er HEAGSN (HFEHE)
MERHEERBEARBEBTNEE
FLRB-URERENEME A%
BERKENEERAZI SEA R
HET RN BEAREMENHES
WEBNKRERSRE HtE=ZEHE
ERRALINBRERTRE -RE
FEEWHHRELAF 165 EREE
BEMNHERESOEELRS KFE
Mo WARERSRERS-

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ A 4 1B B % 5 4 R 22 3] | Annual Report 2017 4 #t



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W ik W ek

For the year ended 31 March 2017  #% % — 4= =+ —H IL4FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (continued)

New or amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
an asset and a related finance lease liability for
finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-
use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would

be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F —LHFE=H =+ —HIL4FEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (continued)

New or amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 16. As at 31 March 2017, the Group
has non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of HK$18,030,000 as disclosed in note 36. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases upon
the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the
application of new requirements may result changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect
until the directors of the Company complete a

detailed review.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-%F—tF =] =+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (continued)

New or amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure initiative”

The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes. Specially,
the amendments require the following changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii)
changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in
fair values; and (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017 with
earlier application permitted. The application of
the amendments will result in additional disclosures
on the Group's financing activities, specifically
reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the consolidated statement of financial
position for liabilities arising from financing

activities will be provided on application.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

50 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F —LHFE=H =+ —HIL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for

goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment
of assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-%F—tF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its

highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for

the asset or liability.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z _-F—tF =] =+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEGIHEEK (&)

POLICIES (continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below. FESFHBREDHINMT -

Basis of consolidation FERBCEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate REVBRRBIERNRD A KEATE

the financial statements of the Company and MEERENEAR 72@7}%&2& 1i#

entities controlled by the Company and its BATIENR - IR R B ES 1 i &

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:

o has power over the investee; o B EREBED

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns . REERNBEFINNEIEERZ
from its involvement with the investee; and 2 EFEME O R &

. has the ability to use its power to affect its . BERENTEEENUZEHD
returns. o

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an iWEEE RBERER LR =185 H

investee if facts and circumstances indicate that ELa ’E—IE@ZMJ:WE%*‘%( FREE

there are changes to one or more of the three EENMTMEESEEHERER -

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the ANE B IS Y B D A4 ) 4 s 4 B

Group obtains control over the subsidiary and BRREZEARER  WRKEME QA

ceases when the Group loses control of the BHIERR LGS AR AgME R

subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a REEANBASEE ZWE QR 2

subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year ARRY HEAEEESTHEES

are included in the consolidated statement of profit AREAREELREZMBEARITHEE

or loss and other comprehensive income from the At st AGEBEa REMEERR

date the Group gains control until the date when =N e

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-%F—tF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are

generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % -F—LHFE=H =+ —HILFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that deferred tax assets
or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
taxes and HKAS 19 Employee benefits, respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling

interests are measured at their fair value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % & —tF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates

and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when

the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from contract that includes both interior
decoration services as well as sales of furniture and
fixtures is recognised based on the substance of
each separately identifiable component. Revenue
from sale of furniture is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed. Revenue from
interior decoration services is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract
at the end of the reporting period, determined as
the proportion of the value of work certified by
independent surveyors relative to the total contract
sum. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extent that

they have been agreed with the customers.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % -F—LHFE=H =+ —HILFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Income from provision of financing guarantee
services is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the guarantee period.

Income from provision of logistic services is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the contract

period.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the

accounting policy for leasing below.

Interior decoration contracts

For contracts where the revenue recognised exceeds
progress billings based on milestones as set out in
the services contract, the costs incurred but not
yet billed, plus recognised profit, is recognised
and shown as accrued revenue in the consolidated
statement of financial position. For contracts where
progress billings exceed revenue recognised, the
net amount is shown as deferred revenue in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % & —tF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as

a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see

the accounting policy below).
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments, including the cost
of acquiring land held under operating leases,
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at

the inception of the lease.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group's operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % -F—LHFE=H =+ —HILFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % & —tF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

(continued)

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that another IFRS requires or

permits their inclusion on the cost of an asset.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme and state managed retirement benefit
are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees and

consultants providing the similar services.

For share options granted to the directors,
employees and consultants providing similar
services to the Group, the fair value of services
received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options

reserve).
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

(continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

TESEHHE (&)

WA (%)

EERBANRGEEMEREREERE
BEHREEIEARFTERRTEN
MR EN TR EZEMBER - — K
BRAT PIERERAHERZEMmE
EREEHBARED THRA BTN
HEER — &R B IEER A AR
By 25 (CAERB % M 7] 4 35 AT 30
BERZRRR) WERERIE—
ERXHBEREREENRAE (XHE
PRI MES - EAFEERBE N
St A BT & R UL TR
BEERARE-

BASEAEFEREREZENED
KBRS ZRAER AR KA RE#E
RSN - B B A R )R B AH R Y
EREZENELEHEBEY THER -
HZERENERAROAIRE Z
BAEEANECHBEEE - ENA R
MERD G N AABEEREZRAN
@ BFEHRN A BB m T T

=7
e

Annual Report 2017 44t | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % I v 4 13 B # it 45 i 23 )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

50 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % -F—LHFE=H =+ —HILFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through
sale.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % & —tF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
and leasehold land (classified as finance leases)
held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes other
than construction in progress are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and

their useful lives.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in

profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held

for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of
the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

TESBER (&)

WE - WE MR (&)
ME-BEMRBEHERENEERXHE
TEHEEERZEETEELEMA
BREENRF R IR - B R WE
ME -BMENMRBERBEEENKERL
BRILZRHEZEEMSFRERE
BERMNEZREELRNIEEPHER -

i a=EYES

REMEEFERDES R RER
THEZME (BEREZEREZE
BWE) REMEBEHAEERR
Ragzima it ZFE LR SR
EERTHERE -

BREWENTEAN (BRREFEE
RS HE RIS HEREK RE
MERERAFEFE - AEERERL
EHERE URDBESHEEARTT
BERZZMBYNEEZDE/LRR
EMEAR BIRAFERAFE &
BYMERNFEEPMELE 2 Wtk B
BREERRET ABE-

Annual Report 2017 44t | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % I v 4 13 B # it 45 i 23 )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

50 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % -F—LHFE=H =+ —HILFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as part
of the carrying amount of the investment properties

under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the

period in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives (other than those not
yet available for use) is recognised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets that are not yet available for use
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated

impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % & —tF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.

TESBER (&)

B KB EERE

RBERAR AEESRITEARA
EREHzAERELEENEREE
NEEEREPRBTIREEEDR
HIRBE 1R - i & 2 IR A ARUE
BR - SEFEENA KO SR AE
EREBRNOEE (11F) T
AHEREEMNAKREEE  BIASE
ST EEEMBREELEM 27
WEEE - RA @A AR R 2N
EENBERLT CEEETEROE
EEREELEM AERIEE
A& R MR — B B E R B A &
NERM IR S EE B -

AT E S 5RTS A FER H E KA K E
REEMEFERSE FHAEREE
By - BRI BR A% A B 3R R (4 5 R KR
EREMBEZRE ZHRERBRT
LERATENEERRERZEE
MBEARR (HEHARRREREL
RIKAE) °

Annual Report 2017 44t | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % I v 4 13 B # it 45 B 23 )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 0 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money

is material).
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial liabilities at FVTPL are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective

interest basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, trade receivables from related
companies, bills receivable, loan receivable, other
receivables and deposits, amounts due from former
subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy on impairment

loss on financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables (continued)

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of loans and receivables,
such as trade receivables, bills receivables and
loan receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liabilities classified as at
FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in
other gains or losses.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables, loans from staff, deposits received from
tenants, amounts due to former subsidiaries,
amounts due to related companies, amount due
to a director, amount due to ultimate holding
company, construction cost accruals, the liability
component of the 10.0% convertible bonds,
7.5%/8.0%/12.0% coupon bonds, obligations
under finance leases and bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that
contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into respective
items on initial recognition in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as

an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The value of early redemption option derivatives
embedded in the convertible bonds which is closely
related to the convertible bonds is included in
the liability component. The difference between
the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity, is
included in equity (convertible bonds and warrants

reserve).
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, is not remeasured and will remain in
convertible bonds and warrants reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the
balance stated in convertible bonds and warrants
reserve will be transferred to share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
date, the balance stated in convertible bonds and
warrants reserve will be released to the retained
profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss

upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability component and
conversion option derivative

A conversion option that will be settled other than
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the liability component
and conversion option derivative are recognised
at fair value. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible loan notes is carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The conversion option derivative is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value

recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
and derivative components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to
the derivative components are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible loan notes using the
effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date when derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which
event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those
of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured
at the higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS
37 Provisions, contingent liabilities and

contingent assets; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation

recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

TESBER (&)

SRTE (&)

TETHBTA(F)

IR ()
REIHERSHEER EEREE
HE W RERKRERENE 2K
SRV AN ERZANRTRE 22
MzRAREE RIBEARER -

AEERRERASENE TER
BBUHKEEHHR - T el erA
BRIEER -KIEEINSBAER
HEEDSHREMREZENEZER
BRAER-

FARETHE R MG TEEZ
EFERR

FERE R MY SE3AT I 2 AR B | 5 UK
B ARAEETHEHRERS KR
HigERESMEERBEZRA
BFH AR FHERRBRR - ZFHHR
MR AR T B 2 48 B S 4% 4R 1 4
AR EMEEM L - BERARA 8
HZEEHAER-

Annual Report 2017 44t | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % I v 4 13 B # it 45 i 23 )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 0 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgment that the
directors of the Company have made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation
arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are held
under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors of the Company have
determined the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in
relation to the Group’s investment properties has
been measured based on the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amounts entirely through
use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred taxation on the Land and the Commercial
Complex (as defined in note 33)

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation
arising from the Land and the Commercial Complex
that are measured using the fair value model, the
concessionary tax rate of 15% is applied as the
relevant subsidiaries are recognised as “Go-west”
region development programme corporate which is
entitled to apply the rate of 15%. The directors of
the Company believe these subsidiaries can keep
applying the 15% concessionary tax rate under “Go

West"” region development programme.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of investment properties

At 31 March 2017, the Group’s investment
properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer. In determining the fair value,
the valuer has applied significant judgement
and estimation in determining the valuation
methodology, adoption of significant assumptions
and use of various unobservable inputs in the
valuation models, including prices realised on actual
sales or asking prices of comparable properties.
Comparable properties are analysed and carefully
weighed against all the respective advantages and
disadvantages of each property in order to arrive at
a fair comparison of market values.

Valuation of trade and loan receivables

The management estimates the allowance for bad
and doubtful debts based on the recoverability of
trade and loan receivables. The Group takes into
consideration the objective evidence in estimating
the recoverability of trade receivables from major
customers assessed individually at the end of the
reporting period. Objective evidence includes
credit history, age of debts, collateral receivable,
past settlement records including default or delay
in payments and subsequent settlements. Where
the actual outcome is different from the original
estimates, it will impact the carrying amount
of trade and loan receivables and allowance
for bad and doubtful debts. As at 31 March
2017, the aggregate carrying amount of trade
and loan receivables is HK$168,255,000 (2016:
HK$83,814,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for financing guarantee contracts

The Group makes estimate on costs required to
fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee contracts
when the Group recognises the provisions for
financing guarantee contracts. Such estimation
is based on the available information as at
reporting date and is determined by the Group’s
practical experience, the default history and
financial position of relevant customers assessed
on an individual basis in the industry and taking
into consideration of industry information and
market data. Where the actual obligation the
Group requires to fulfill is more than expected, a
material provision may arise. Amount of corporate
guarantee provided by the Group is disclosed in
note 34.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

5.

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as

follows:

Revenue from interior =R LI
decoration work A
Revenue from international trading BIFR & 5 U A
Revenue from financing BhE R R
guarantee services PN
Revenue from logistics services W AR 75 A

Revenue from property investment ¥ 3 #% & W A
Interest income from BEEME

money lending L ON

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

WA

AREBZREZWASHAOT :

2017
—2—tF
HK$'000
T

2,098
405,350
18,275
980

77,564

14,567

518,834
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2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
FAET

16,538

113,388

20,231

687

44,888

5,565

201,297
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of
the Company, being the chief operating decision
maker ("CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
focus on the types of goods supplied and services
provided by the Group.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 are (i) interior decoration work,
(ii) international trading, (iii) financing guarantee
services, (iv) logistics services and (v) property

investment.

Money lending business is not reviewed by the
CODM and therefore it is not a reporting segment.
Revenue from money lending is presented as
unallocated revenue.

The revenue streams and results from these
segments are the basis of the internal reports
about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the CODM in order to
allocate resources to segments and to assess their

performance.

No segment assets or liabilities is presented as
the CODM does not review segment assets and

liabilities.

25 B
RIELERDERFEDIRERM 2
BYARRMITES (X REER
RE(XEEERRE]) ) 2EF
ZERAKEHREzEmERERE
2 BR% -

RNEBRIEE BB REEL ESH
MEBERAERDBANERNEL T
B (BEERE S (iR E BRRE
(VIR BR TS R ()P 53R & -

EEEBALHIBLERRER
B Hut - HIFE— TI—I HoE 1B
BERAZINRARD KA -

%5 7 H#B ZH&U\?K/J?&%ﬁTJZKE@
MoOARBEZER THETE
BARETETHERN ﬁﬁLAfJ%’n‘ﬁ vl
B RLFEERE-

D>¢ nm—

DHEEXABARZNDHIEAETRE
BRRELEBBENDLEEREE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. ZoHWMEHR (&)
(continued)
Segment revenue and results D EBUA K FE AR
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue REBREERAIZ/RH BEDRE
and results in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC by BB CBRPFIRFBEZBWAREES T
operating and reportable segments: ms

Year ended 31 March 2017 Year ended 31 March 2016

BE-E-t% BE-E-XxE
ZA=t-BLEE ZA=t-HLEE
Segment Segment
Segment  profit (loss) Segment profit (loss)
revenue  for the year revenue for the year
FELBEF FE RN
pik: 1 ON (F#) AHEA (E#)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TET
Interior decoration work EREHTIE 2,098 (8,204) 16,538 (10,261)
International trading BRE 5 405,350 2,369 113,388 (7,947)
Financing guarantee services & 2R R7% 18,275 12,015 20,231 13,910
Logistics services w7 980 (2,928) 687 (3,762)
Property investment MERE 77,564 109,563 44,888 329,151
Revenue and result for ERSBURA
reportable segment PES 504,267 112,815 195,732 321,091
Unallocated revenue AABERA 14,567 5,565
Total o) 518,834 201,297
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

Unallocated income,
gains and losses
Equity-settled share-based
payments
Unallocated gain on
fair value change of
investment properties
Gain on fair value change of
the derivative components
of convertible bonds
Unallocated corporate
expenses
Finance costs

Profit before tax

ADEWA - W
kEE

REREENRNAE

E
ADERENE
ZATFEEE
W
RREFTE
TEHD 2 RFE

AAORBE

X
MR

BR AR A

v

6. 2

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

MER (4)

DEBMA R AR (&)

Year ended 31 March 2017

BE-Z-t&§
=HB=+-HILEE
Segment
Segment  profit (loss)
revenue  for the year
FEAFBEF
2BBA (B8
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER
21,364
(3,116)
67,310
7,753
(48,234)
(104,589)
53,303

Year ended 31 March 2016

ﬁi /\ $

Eﬁ:+‘ﬁi$§
Segment
Segment profit (loss)
revenue for the year
ﬁrﬁﬁmﬂ
AEBA (B1)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT
(2,091)
(5,333)
15,340
4,324
(47,176)
(119,167)
66,988
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies as
described in note 3. Segment profit/loss represents
the profit/loss earned/suffered by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs,
equity-settled share-based payments in relation
to central administrative staff, gain on fair value
change of investment properties (except for gain on
fair value change of certain investment properties
and gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of a
subsidiary under property investment operation),
other income, gains and losses (except for reversal
of bad and doubtful debts, imputed interest
income/expense and adjustments on the carrying
amount of amounts due from former subsidiaries
and amounts due to former subsidiaries), directors’
emoluments and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

D EE R (&)

EI\

B2 B ETHUR M 3T AR £
S BRMER 2 EEF B E
TI& D BERE D BCH RITHAA
BHEPRITHRABNRESEE AR
MRERZNR REVELATFEE
Pha (FTEEYERELERTZ
ETREMELAFEZ SN ERWE
—RMB AR ZEBWREKE)  Hith
WA W BB (1T e RERRE
O - fEEFB A B 2 K RE W AT
BN RIBRIA KA AT B A R BRIARR
HEEZHAE) BEFME RFHRARZ
FTisad, MEXEE - LEESR
TEELERREERDEEIRKFT
CEE P

R ti»
N/ﬁ
b
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % —“F—LFE=H =+ —H IL4FHE

> RN E

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HEHR (&)
(continued)
Other segment information Hth oy & &

. ; : = WA Sr= s I .
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit SAESMERABEERIE:
or loss:

Year ended 31 March 2017 Year ended 31 March 2016
BECR-tEZAST-RLER HEZI-REZAST-BLER
Interior Financing Interior Financing
decoration International  quarantee  Logistics  Property decoration ~ International  quarantee Logistics Property
work trading services services  investment  Unallocated Total work trading services sevices  investment  Unallocated Total

ERRBIR  ERER BRAREE  MREE  NRRR A9 gt EAREIE  EREA RAARRE  ORRR  RRE KAk it
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00 KO0 HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0D  RKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKS'000
TERL Tin TR TER TR TR TER TET o TER T TET o TER Tin TAT

Wite down of inventories #57 % - - - - - - - 1,00 - - - - - 1001
Depreciation of property, 1% HER

plant and equipment qERE - 2% 8 456 m 2,336 3,681 3 7 9% 409 481 2,195 331
Amortisation of intanglble &%/ 4%

assets B - - - 291 - - 291 - - - 2,55 - - 2,55
Reversal of dlowance ~ REFRE

for bad and doubtful &R

debts, net B8 (@) - - - - - (1) - (456) - - - - (456)
Loss on disposal of S

property, plant and HERAGE

equipment bl i | - 8 - - - - 8 - - - - 1 - 1
Geographical information i3 & ¥

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong, AEEKEEBURES R RAF
Macau and the PRC. Except for the revenue from RIBEEZMATNIRIEHRE S
money lending which is based on the locations of FriEsb &l o o0 E R EE R B INEE
fundings advanced, all the remaining of the Group's PZRABSH TRARE P EBELM
revenue from external customers are based on EHE &l o

locations of business registration of the customers.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEBE R (&)
(continued)
Geographical information (continued) i Bk (&)
The Group's revenue from external customers REBERBINEBERLP Z2WARKEE
and information about its non-current assets by FTEHE D 2 ERBEEFBOT -
geographical location of the assets are detailed
below:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REMPEF 2BA FRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tE ZE-R¥ ZE-tf ZE-R%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TER TET
Hong Kong and Macau BB REM 49,670 86,442 20,519 19,631
The PRC HE 469,164 114,855 2,839,140 2,657,473
518,834 201,297 2,859,659 2,677,104
Information about major customers FTEXFAEH
Revenue from customers contributing over RERFE BEPBAGAREEBI
10% of the total revenue of the Group of the A10% A EEAT -
corresponding years are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Customer A HEH 153,594 N/AZT 38
Customer B! BERZ 103,681 N/A 38 A
Customer C' BEPA 77,541 N/AT i
Customer D' BEFET! N/AT3E A 42,879
Customer E! BRI N/ATER 39,072
! Revenue from international trading 1 BERE Sz KA
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND 7. HBA WEREE
LOSSES
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Other income H U A
Interest income M EUA 5,213 12,407
Imputed interest income from JE W A B/ 7
amounts due from RIEZHE
former subsidiaries F B A 1,670 2,172
6,883 14,579
Other gains and losses Hh Wz & B5 18
Adjustment on carrying amount & AT B 2 7] BR I8
of amounts due from former FREE AR
subsidiaries (note 19) (H1zt19) - (5,747)
Adjustment on carrying amount &1 BT B 2 5] BR 18
of amounts due to former REE R
subsidiaries (note 19) (H1:£19) - 3,099
Loss on disposal of property, HEWME HEREE
plant and equipment 2 BB (8) (M
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) [ i, ;% Uz (E518) 220 (20,802)
Reversal of allowance for RIBREHERD
bad and doubtful debts, net F R 273 456
Gain on fair value change of AMEREFZITETREE D 2
derivative components of NEEEHE
convertible bonds (note 31) (H1:31) 7,753 4,324
Others E i (297) 1,217
7,941 (17,454)
14,824 (2,875)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017  #% % — 4= =+ —H IL4FE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HBEEA
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHE T
Interest on bank and other RIT R H A E K
borrowings ZF B 52,596 18,389
Effective interest expense 10.0% AT R EFH 2
on 10.0% convertible bonds BERMEFRX 17,722 4,029
Effective interest expense 75% AR ES
on 7.5% convertible bonds BERMERX - 23,613
Effective interest expense BO0%EEEHZ
on 8.0% coupon bonds BERAERX 14,549 24,063
Effective interest expense T5%EEEHZ
on 7.5% coupon bonds BERAMERX 23,194 14,546
Effective interest expense 10%EEEHZ
on 12.0% coupon bonds BERMERX 30,840 38,935
Imputed interest expense from JE L A1 B /BB A &)
amounts due from former RIEZEE
subsidiaries MERXZ 900 -
Interest on finance leases BMEREFNE 142 221
Total finance costs B TS A AR 4B 3R 139,943 123,796
Less: Amount capitalised in BRI EYE
investment properties - ¥: N4
under construction -] (34,454) (4,629)
105,489 119,167
Finance cost capitalised during the year ended RBE_Z—tF=A=+—HIt
31 March 2017 arose on the general borrowing FE - RE—REEFREEGZER
pool of approximately HK$28,035,000 (2016: b BF 7 B 7 #928,035,0008 L (= &
HK$4,629,000) are calculated by applying a — N 14,629,000 L) HEMA
capitalisation rate of 9.44% (2016: 10.51%) per FOLL %7 EREER (T —RNF:
annum. 10.51% )5t & o
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FiBHMAEX
2017 2016
—E-tE  —EAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHE T
Current tax: B EATR 1A
Hong Kong BB 796 49
PRC ey 2,572 7,719
Macau P - 74
3,368 7,842
Under (over) provision BEFERETIR
in prior years: (HB%E)
Hong Kong BAE 13 2
PRC a3 (1,159) -
(1,146) 2
Deferred tax (note 28) BIERIA (Hrat28) 26,257 84
28,479 7,928
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the LR 2 BB FEH TR G 5T ER T
estimated assessable profit for both years. i A16.5%5 & o
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income BEFECEMRSHE([EME
Tax (the "EIT Law") and implementation regulation BE) REEMEBEEBED K
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Group’s PRC SEFPEMBRARZHER25%
subsidiaries is 25% except that the concessionary BEBXIS%ERANERRR [EHE
tax rate of 15% is applied to certain subsidiaries ANl REERBELCXBEERE=EZER
recognised as “Go-west” region development 15% 2 M & 25 THEA RN 1t
programme corporate which is entitled to apply the MBEEZENBRTPREERER
rate of 15%. The entitlement of this tax benefit is BFEETER-

subject to renewal by respective tax bureau in the
PRC every year.

Annual Report 2017 44t | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % I v 4 13 B # it 45 i 23 )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 0 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2017

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at the

maximum progressive rate of 12% on the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

The income tax expense for the year can be

reconciled to the profit before tax per the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5%
Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purposes
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purposes

Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised

Utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Effect of different tax rates of
subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdictions

Overprovision in respect of

prior year

Income tax expense for the year

B B A g A

REBFNEHRE
16.5% 5Tt

T RERIBEHR 2
DrkS-%

WATREE 2
M e

M EERER
MBee

A 2 AT RER
7% B 18

A HE Ath A E B b [ 48 2
b= /NE I S b
LB

BAFEHEE
B

REEMRBHAX

Z

FREHm< (&)

I F 2RI e B IR T e
AR B IEREDREREI12%TE -

AEEMREHAS A EERA B &

EEWERA BB RNRF 2 ¥R
s

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

53,303 166,988

8,795 27,553

21,132 25,911

(2,028) (52,756)

6,661 5,555

(3,736) (929)

(1,199) 2,594

(1,146) -

28,479 7,928
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #% ZF— 4= =+ —H IL4FE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. XFERF
2017 2016
—E—+t#F —ET-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Profit for the year has been arrived 7R EZH MK (5HA)
at after charging (crediting): T3ER :
Auditor’s remuneration % SRD B & 1,850 1,800
Depreciation of property, M- BEREE
plant and equipment ZITE 3,681 3,231
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH
(included in administrative (st AT
expenses) ) 2,291 2,255
Write down of inventories WoR 7 &
(included in cost of sales (Gt A& R
and services) PR 7 A A ) - 1,021
Provision for (reversal of provision) 4R& & # (B #E#E @)
warranty (included in cost of (FtAEE R
sales and services) B 7% Bk A< ) 326 (102)
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIXRA(BEES
emoluments) B2 )
Wages, salaries and other benefits & ~ Fr Bl &2 H b 12 7 38,080 39,278
Retirement benefits scheme RO AR A
contributions R 811 916
Equity-settled share-based REEEURNDABER 2
payments (Note) Rk (Haz) 4,311 7,339
43,202 47,533
Cost of inventories recognised WRREAZZ
as expenses FERKAR 393,674 114,575
Operating lease rentals paid in FEBEMEZEN
respect of rented properties wEHEHS 8,845 8,974
Operating lease rentals paid in BENAERB2EN
respect of office equipment gEHEEHS 1 43
Gross rental income from REWMEZE®
investment properties less I PN-X
direct operating expenses BEERKERASY
of HK$5,270,000 5,270,0007 7T
(2016: HK$4,774,000) (ZZ—7X% :4,774,0007% 7T.) (17,341) (9,327)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued)

Note: Amount included equity-settled share-based
payment to consultants of HK$1,221,000 (2016:
HK$2,099,000) in connection with the services
provided by the consultants who solely rendered
services and reported their duties to the Group
during the current and prior reporting periods.
Such services are similar as in nature to those

rendered by employees of the Group.

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
eight (2016: eight) directors and chief executive
were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2017

Directors’
fees
Exne
HK$'000
TAT
Executive directors HITEZE
Li Weibin R -
Siu Wai Yip BEE -
Lam Suk Ling, Shirley R -
Lau Chi Kit BG -
Non-executive director HHTEE
Fung Sau Mui B5iE 183
Independent non-executive B FHTEE
directors
Lai Ka Fung, May R5E 171
Chan Sim Ling, Irene BRiER 171
Ho Chung Tai, Raymond &% 720
Total @it 1,245

10.

11.

Salaries
and other
benefits

FHR
Hft 7
HK$'000

TER

2,101
1,639
1,387

378

5,505

REERN (&)

HieE: ZFRERERERRARSHER
BARSHEREREASEBIRERS
K [E 3R 1% S0 & iR it 2 AR 7% i =)
ZEBEBI Nz RESEE ARG
BERE 2 F31,221,0008 T (=&
—75%F 12,099,000/ T) ° B B AR
BHRAKEEBIREZ RS HEEE
Lo

EERESTHRAEMS
BNSEEFASG (2B —AE:N
LEERBRSARABESLOME
T

BE-E—tH&=A=+t—HLEE

Retirement Equity-
benefits settled
scheme  share-based Total
contributions payments 2017
RERLEE
BHRER URDAER st
STEMR ZHRH ZB-tE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TR
(Note (1))
(Hz#0)
20 300 2,421
18 209 1,866
18 209 1,614
- 140 518
- 70 253
- 70 241
- 70 241
- 235 955
56 1,303 8,109

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ A 4 I8 B % 5t 4 R 22 3] | Annual Report 2017 4E#t



11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

Year ended 31 March 2016

Executive directors

Li Weibin

Siu Wai Yip

Lam Suk Ling, Shirley
Lau Chi Kit

Non-executive director
Fung Sau Mui

Independent non-executive
directors

Lai Ka Fung, May

Chan Sim Ling, Irene

Ho Chung Tai, Raymond

Total

HITEE
BN
mEE
R
BEs

FHTEE
B8

BUFHTEF

RER
&R

@it

Directors’
fees

RS
HK$'000
TAT

180

168
168
720

1,236

50 W i W

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % —“F—LFE=H =+ —H IL4FHE

1. EERESTHRAEME
(#&)

HE_Z-—REF=ZA=+—RHILFE

Retirement Equity-
Salaries benefits settled
and other scheme share-based Total
benefits  contributions payments 2016
BREGEE
MR RIKEF  URDAEER Fohs
Hipfaf FEIfR ZRE ZE-AE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THEL TR THL
(Note (1)
(HE)
2,020 - 516 2,536
1,576 18 360 1,954
1,333 18 360 1,711
364 - 240 604
- - 120 300
- - 120 288
- - 120 288
- - 387 1,107
5,293 36 2,223 8,788
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 1. EEREETRAENE

EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (&)

(continued)

Note: Btz -

(i) Equity-settled share-based payments represent (i) RRERGEEURD AER 23U
share options granted to directors of the Company BERRRR T —_FRA2HE
under a share option scheme adopted by the BREAEIRTEARAAEZEZTCER
Company in year 2012. The value of these share E-ZERBREZEEDREBEARAE
options is measured according to the Group's EEBUARNDAER 2NRRZH 2
accounting policies for share-based payment EEHORETE -

transactions.

Details of share options granted to directors BPFAANREENAEMES
of the Company and other employees, BENRE S (B S
including the principal terms and number of ZEEERAEEE)SE R
options granted, are set out in note 32. 32 o
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above X TRS T ES T B RE
were mainly for their services in connection with EBANTRENBE AR SRR MRY
the management of the affairs of the Company and R o

its subsidiaries.

The non-executive director’s emoluments shown XTI TES Y EE R
above were mainly for their services as directors of EEIAQNGREMNBEAT 2 E 52
the Company and its subsidiaries. YRSt

The independent non-executive directors’ NI RBSERTEE I EE
emoluments shown above were mainly for their MWERIAATEEERE Y REM
services as directors of the Company. Y ff o
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

Mr. Li is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosure above include those

for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors of the Company as
compensation for loss of office or an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group. None of
the directors of the Company has waived any

emoluments in both years.

EMPLOYEE'S EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, three (2016: three) were directors of
the Company whose emoluments were disclosed
in note 11. The emoluments of the remaining two
(2016: two) highest paid individuals for the year
ended 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Salaries, bonus and other benefits % Bl « 7 4L & H fib 18 7

11.

12.

Equity-settled share-based RRSEENRG RER
-

payments Z
Contributions to retirement RIREFETE

benefit schemes R

EERBESTHAEME
(#4&)

FRETRARRZEBITHRAR
RELRFEZMEBREERER
TTHRABMEHRRB M -

LRFR AEEY RAARRESE
AREBMMELHREE KBRS
PPN T ) (AN SSE TS OF e
T UMER ARFLEEEWEME
] B & -

ETHME
AEERAERME 2 ALRZ=
Z(ZE-—RF-ZB)RARAIZE
=AM MENRRE-BEC
E—tF=ZA=T—HLEFE T
ME(ZFE-—RF:-MB)ESMEA
TZBEm T

2017 2016
—®—tF —F-AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT THT
2,685 2,129

- 240

68 66

2,753 2,435
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

12. EMPLOYEE’'S EMOLUMENTS 12. EIME (4£&)
(continued)
The number of the highest paid employees who MENFTHEBE WA RNRES
are not the directors of the Company whose ZEEFMALTIT:
remuneration fall within the following band is as
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t &£ 1,500,000/ 7T 2 2
During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, REBEE_Z—LHFR_ZT-RF=H
no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the =T —HBLEFE AEETEMAE
five employees with the highest emoluments as an EaEMESZXMHe ERRSIE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as EMAREESMAREEF 22
compensation for loss of office. SRERLAE(E -
13. DIVIDEND 13. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year HE-_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
ended 31 Mach 2017, nor has any dividend been AT RS EZBERNRE  BWE
proposed since the end of the reporting period HARURTEZZRNERNRE (=
(2016: nil). T-RFE) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings KRAREBEARLERERARESR
per share attributable to the owners of the FMIRBTINEFE -

Company is based on the following data:

Earnings 27

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Earnings for the year attributable AN EFRE R K
to owners of the Company for D Wl I /N
the purposes of basic and diluted  # A A & {5 AN E &
earnings per share & A 1,337 157,663
Number of shares EgrR 4=
‘000 ‘000
T T &
(Restated)
(#=E5)
Weighted average number of RUNFTEERER
ordinary shares for the purpose 2| 2 @&
of basic earnings per share niEFHE 317,924 112,813
Effect of dilutive potential BEEETE
ordinary shares =il
Share options i e - 235
Weighted average number of R E SR
ordinary shares for the BERT 2
purpose of diluted earnings A A
per share g 317,924 113,048
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

14.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings per share has
been adjusted for the effect of rights issue on 19
October 2016 and the share consolidation on 27
March 2017. Details of the rights issue and share

consolidation are set out in note 29.

The denominator for the purpose of calculating
basic and diluted earnings per share in 2016 has
been restated to reflect the effect of the rights issue
and share consolidation during the year ended 31
March 2017.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the conversion of the outstanding 10.0%
convertible bonds and the exercise of share options
as they would result in increase in earnings per
share.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
computation of diluted earnings per share did not
assume the conversion of the outstanding 10.0%
convertible bonds and conversion of outstanding
7.5% convertible bonds during the conversion
period in the financial year ended 31 March 2016
as they would result in increase in earnings per

share.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

14.

BRERN (&)

RN ESRERRMN 2 BB INE
FHFER-_FT-R"F+ATALRZ
HRE-ZFE—tF=A-FTERAZK
a2z FEELFE  HR RN
BB 2 FBERHEE29

AR E S - RFEREXRNEE
BNzHBETUES URMREBZE
—E+FE=ZA=T—HRLEFEHR
REOhEHZZE-

REE-F—EF=A=T—ALF
B E SRR R RN
IR 210.0% T BIRIEFEEHER
BRECETE RREKEEHT
BREFI 0

REZ-ZZE-R"E=-A=1T—HL*F
B iEEREBEERANTEREEE
—E-RFE-ZA=T-RULMREE
ZEBER R ER 210.0% 7] B %
BEHRDEERRHRER27.5%A
BEHCESHR FRARESERS
A% Z F) 38 hn -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % —“F—LFE=H =+ —H IL4FHE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. V¥ BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Construction
land and Leasehold Computer and office Motor in
buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles progress Total
RELH BH-#E
REF HENERE ElRGE REVERE RE EEIR &zt
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn TEn T#n TEn Tén Thn TEn
osT A
At 1 April 2015 RZZ-RENA-A 18,264 1,298 1,578 460 6,785 852 29,237
Acquired on acquisition of  RE-FIEAENER
a subsidiary - - 475 1,363 446 - 2,284
Additions HE - 8 540 334 446 - 1,398
Disposal & - - - %) - - m
Exchange realignment ERRE - @3) (49) (16) (109) - 17
At 31 March 2016 RZZ-AEZA=1-H 18,264 1,333 2,544 2,134 7,568 852 32,695
Additions KB - 1,716 167 467 - - 2,350
Disposal e - (264) (283) 22) - - (569)
Reclassification BNOE - 280 - (280) - - -
Transfer to intangible assets EEZEFEE - - - - - (101) (101)
Exchange realignment ERHE - (61) (104) (101) (140) (72) (478)
At 31 March 2017 R=B-t£=h=t-8 18,264 3,004 2,324 2,198 7,428 679 33,897
DEPRECIATION i
At 1 April 2015 RZZ-RENA-A 1370 824 635 162 1325 - 4316
Charge for the year FERRE 609 21 469 278 1,654 - 3,31
Eliminated on disposal &R HIH - - - (6) - - (6)
Exchange realignment  EX % - 27 (16) (6) (17) - (66)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-REZA=t-H 1,979 1,018 1,088 428 2,962 - 7,475
Charge for the year TEERE 609 501 630 344 1,597 - 3,681
Eliminated on disposal M &R - (264) (270) (25) - - (559)
Reclassification ENNE - 74 - (74) - - -
Exchange realignment ERHE - (52) (41 (19) (85) - (197)
At 31 March 2017 RZB-t5ZB=t-H 2,588 1277 1,407 654 4,474 - 10,400
CARRYING VALUES BHE
At 31 March 2017 R-B-t§=5=1-8 15,676 1121 917 1,544 2,954 679 23,497
At 31 March 2016 RZE-AEZA=1-H 16,285 315 1,456 1,706 4,606 852 25,220
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the
buildings terms of the lease, or
30 years
Leasehold improvements 10% for owned assets
or over the lease terms
for the leased assets
Computer equipment 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

At 31 March 2017, leasehold land and buildings of
the Group with carrying values of HK$15,676,000
(2016: HK$16,285,000) were pledged with a bank
to secure a loan granted to the Group. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, allocation
of the carrying amounts between the leasehold
land and buildings elements could not be made
reliably, accordingly, the owner-occupied leasehold
land and buildings of HK$15,676,000 (2016:
HK$16,285,000) are included in property, plant and

equipment.

At 31 March 2017, the motor vehicles with carrying
value of HK$1,963,000 (2016: HK$2,969,000) are

assets held under finance leases.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

MR BENRRKRE (&)

RALME BERREBEREMS &K
ERETRRI WERENE FIRAZ
FREMT:

etk HASFEHN
BF 30F 2 BEE

HEMEXE AEEERI0%K
BHEEEY
HEFH

e B 20%

B -RER 10%

P! 20%

RZE—+tF=A=+T—H F&5&H
SR E A15,676,0008 70 (—ZZT — <
F 116,285,000 ) 2 HE T b K18
FEERTRIT EABRTAEERE
RZER - ARREERA EENE
EHHETH REFHIEEBE LS
fit - & 11£15,676,0008 ¢ (—Z & —
% :16,285,000/87T) 2 ¥ EH AME
T RAEFEAME - B RFEF o

m >t

/!

R-—ZE—t&F=ZA=+—H0 KM@
751,963,000 L (ZF—XNF:
2,969,000/ 70 ) 2 AE T AR ERE
REZEE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWME
2017 2016
—Z—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHE T
Completed properties held for BELHEENZ
rental purpose: =ECI2 47 ES
At 1 April RMmA—H 2,078,668 -
Exchange realignment PE W 8 & (119,334) (6,442)
Addition from acquisition of a REWE—EHBRARIZAE
subsidiary (note 33) (Note (a)) (B1:E33) (B1ata)) - 2,083,894
Net changes in fair value RERERZ
recognised in profit or loss NP EEHFE 74,756 1,216
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 2,034,090 2,078,668
Leasehold land with MARBEARKRAEZ
undetermined future use: HE T
At 1 April RMmA—H 209,064 143,623
Exchange realignment PE X FE & (12,338) (5,428)
Additions NE - 14
Addition from acquisition of KRB W EE— B A A
a subsidiary (note 33) ZRNE (K1i#33)
(Note (a)) (Kt () - 134,445
Net changes in fair value RIERERZ
recognised in profit or loss NEEEB)FEE 25,647 4,498
Transfer to investment properties 2 # = £ i
under construction BEMHE - (68,088)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 222,373 209,064
Sub-total N 2,256,463 2,287,732
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(continued)

16.

Investment properties under

construction (Note (b)):

HERIREME (MiZb)) :

N

At 1 April REA—H

Exchange realignment HE H, 38 &

Additions NE

Net changes in fair value RIERERZ
recognised in profit or loss N EEEFFE

Transfer from leasehold land ERBEmABERKAEZ
with undetermined future use HE LT

At 31 March R=ZA=+—8

Total mEt

Unrealised gain on properties FFARFEEE S
revaluation included MESHREFR YR

in profit or loss for the year

Notes:

(a) During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Group acquired the Commercial Complex and
the Land (as defined in note 33) which are
located at the eastern district of Xi'an City,
Shaanxi Province, with fair value of approximately
HK$2,218,339,000 as at 31 August 2015
(acquisition date). Certain portion of the Land is
currently vacant with undetermined future use.
The Commercial Complex are rented to third party
tenants and receiving rental and management

income.

REWE (&)

Wit

2017 2016
—E—+tH —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FAT
360,206 100,793
(24,399) (8,377)
172,253 188,860
41,663 10,842

- 68,088

549,723 360,206
2,806,186 2,647,938
142,066 16,556

HE-_Z-XE=ZA=+—8A1
FE AEBBBARRAELEEL
MREZEERERZ I (F
ZERWE33) RZT—HF/NA
=+—B (KREAH) ZAFENA
2,218,339,000/ Lo sz b 2 /T
HHBREBEBEE B AETANK
A -mEAEDHATFE=FH
FaHWEASREBUWA -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, it is considered
the fair value of the building portion of the
logistics park located at Hantai district, Hanzhong
City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC (the “Chinlinke
Worldport”) could be measured reliably in
view of the stage of completion reached. The
whole portion of investment properties under
construction and the remaining undeveloped
leasehold land portion of the ChinlinkeWorldport
(the "Hanzhong Land”) are measured at fair
value.

The Group’s investment properties are categorised

into level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. At the

end of each reporting period, the directors of

the Company work closely with the independent

qualified professional valuers to establish and

determine the appropriate valuation techniques and

inputs to be used in determining the fair value of

the investment properties. Discussion of valuation

processes and results are held amongst directors of

the Company at least twice a year.

16. REWE (&)
Mt (&

(b) RZE—+tFR_F-RF=A
=+—H ERBRERTRE L
RABIRAGEFTESRY TR
ZIEFHRD ([BEEFSHRB])
ZAFEWRRERETE - RIR
EREEMEREES S« EFE
ZHTARAEHEE LIS ([Eh
T ) R ATFERE

AEBZREMEDBRA/RTFEER
ZEZEB-RERESHR ARAES
HEBEVAEEREXGEMZDEFE
MBI RBEERRBEEREVERF
BzEEBRETERBAE AT
EEEFELUEERFRERT®H
IR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)
As at 31 March 2017,

Land and the Commercial Complex in Xi‘an City

the fair values of the

determined by Ascents Partners Valuation Service
Limited (“Ascent Partners”) are approximately
RMB127,000,000 and RMB1,802,000,000
(equivalent to HK$143,357,000 and
HK$2,034,090,000) (2016: RMB115,700,000 and
RMB1,737,000,000 (equivalent to HK$138,458,000
and HK$2,078,668,000)), respectively.

For the Commercial Complex and the Land, the
valuations have been arrived at using the direct
market comparison method of valuation, where
comparison based on prices realised on actual
sales or asking price of comparables is made.
Comparable properties are analysed and carefully
weighed against all the respective advantages and
disadvantages of each property in order to arrive at

a fair comparison of market values.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
development plan of the ChinlinkeWorldport
has been approved by the relevant government

authority.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

16.

REWE (&)

R-E—tF=A=+—B G
EHE’E%TH‘ ~nwE ([XAFE]E
ENRALZH 2L EEBERNELZ

REESD ElJZ’JF%J\EﬁMN 000,000
7T & A R #1,802,000,0007T (HHE R
143,357,000/ JT }2,034,090,000/%
L) (ZZE—RF: ARM115,700,000
7T & AR #1,737,000,0007T (B ZE R
138,458,000/% JT }2,078,668,0007%
JL) ) e

REERBLZ LM E - HEDE
REEMSHELBEZE MUEE
DIRBERHEERR ZERIHEMA
B BRERET - HAELBRWERE
Hor WA SR ZABESE
HEE WEBEMEZ A TR

BE-Z2—AFZA=ft—BLLF
BEERS e U RB 2 BB BDE
A BT AT E P e o
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

As at 31 March 2017, the fair values of the
ChinlinkeWorldport and the Hanzhong Land were
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Ltd
(“Colliers”). As at 31 March 2017, the fair value
of the ChinlinkeWorldport and the Hanzhong
Land are approximately RMB487,000,000 and
RMB70,000,000 (equivalent to HK$549,723,000
and HK$79,016,000) (2016: RMB301,000,000 and
RMB59,000,000 (equivalent to HK$360,206,000
and HK$70,606,000)), respectively.

For ChinlinkeWorldport which is under
construction, the valuation has been arrived at
using the residual approach by making reference to
recent sales transactions of completed properties
as publicly available to determine the adjusted
unit rate of the completed investment properties,
less estimated costs to completion and expected
developer’s profit margin so as to determine the
value of the proposed development as if these were

completed as at the date of valuation.

For the Hanzhong Land, the valuation has been
arrived at using the direct market comparison
method of valuation, where comparison based
on prices realised on actual sales or asking price
of comparables is made. Comparable properties
are analysed and carefully weighed against all the
respective advantages and disadvantages of each
property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of
market values.

16.

REWE (&)

R-Z—+tHE=ZA=+—HB TE
oottt RABERZEFR L2 AF(E
iEEHWEEMEBER (E5)ER
prEI(IEHDETZHBEER R
TR E=ZA=+—B LESD
et RABREFR L2 AFED R
4B NR#487,000,0007T & A B
70,000,0007T ( 4845 $2549,723,000
77T %79,016,0008 ) (ZZF— X
F: AR%301,000,0000t X AR
59,000,0007T (48 % $360,206,000
# 7T 570,606,000 7T ) ) ©

REZEERS HIBEMS KBTS
RBZETRME AR RAFRAFHE
EXGEMFBREEY UBED =
RIEMRZEHBEME R R
FHERRARTERFARE AR
METERER2EEB(BEUZEY
XEREEBBRRTER) -

PR LM E FEDERERT
BMELEBORER MERIIREA
BUBREREEZCERERNEE
ETABELBEMESGROTEYE S
EMEEB AR LR EERE
B NEERFZMELR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

16.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

Ascent Partners and Colliers are independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with
the Group and has appropriate qualification and
recent experience in the valuation of similar projects

in relevant locations.

At 31 March 2017, investment properties of the
Group with carrying values of HK$2,662,829,000
(2016: HK$1,477,925,000) were pledged with
certain banks to secure the loan facilities to the

Group.

Set out below is the significant unobservable inputs

used for fair value measurements:

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs

Fair value as at Valuation

31 March 2017 techniques Key unobservable inputs
RZB-tF

ZA=+-AZATHE HERE TEFUREAAR

HKS

B

(1) Completed properties held for rental purpose
RELHENZETRNE

Xi'an Commercial Complex - fair values determined by Ascent Partners

BREERE-AUHEEE ATE

16.

HK$2,034,090,000 Direct market approach Price per square metre of gross
(RMB1,802,000,000) EEMH floor area which derived from
2,034,090,0007% 1 the construction area, using

(AR #1,802,000,0007T)

direct market comparables

and taking into account of

adjustments on location,
footfall and development scale

factor

RERLAECERARL
BYARER LRBER
MR AL RBE R R
HUE BRREEABREZ

ZRE

REWE (&)

N RHER S 7 2 E AR B &
ZEBIUAERBERMGEM UEEY
B 2 BURBETHEZEE
BN HESR -

R-EBE—+E=ZA=+—B K&£H
BRI (& A2,662,829,0008 L (=&
—N%:1,477,925,0008 ) 2 & &
MEERTETRIT EALEEE
BZERBE 2R

UTHBAARAFESEZEAT
AMEBAE:

BBEREATTRENAEETA
FEHE 2 AR

Relationship of
unobservable

Weighted average price inputs to fair value

TABRAAESR
MEFHIE NTEZEE

Retail portion: RMB10,852
(equivalent to HK$12,249)/sqm
Office portion: RMB5,648
(equivalent to HK$6,375)/sqm
Car park portion: RMB4,360
(equivalent to HK$4,922)/sqm
TEHS : ARH10,852
(152,498 ) /F i %
BREHH: ARIES,6487
(185 16,375%5 ) /FH%
FEAHH: AR¥43607T
(1850492258 7) /FH%

The higher the price, the higher
the fair value
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #% ZF— 4= =+ —H IL4FE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REWZ% (&)

Relationship of

Fair value as at Valuation unobservable

31 March 2017 techniques Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price inputs to fair value
RZB—tf FABRBAER
ZAZ+-BZAYE HERE TEFTEZBAE mETHE NYEZER

HKS

BT

(2)  Leasehold land with undetermined future use

HABEARARZAGLHE

(i) Phase 2 of the Commercial Complex - fair value determined by Ascent Partners

BEARE-H-H AT ATE

HK$143,357,000 Direct market approach Price per square metre of gross ~ RMB1,293 (equivalent to The higher the price, the higher
(RMB127,000,000) RN floor area which derived from HK$1,459)/sqm the fair value

143,357,000 7 the area of land and respective  AK#1,2937¢ BREs ATEES
( AK¥#127,000,0007) plot ratio, using direct market (185 %1,459% L) /F %

comparables and taking into
account of adjustments on
location, land use right terms
and development scale factor
RETHERBAREL
BYAKERRBEAER.
TRAEETSIELREE
RIGHRFUE TR RRE

FHRERAERZ A%
(i) - the Hanzhong Land - fair value determined by Colliers
ERt-meEECATE
HK$79,016,000 Direct market approach Price per square metre of gross ~ Commercial land: RMB185 The higher the price, the higher
(RMB70,000,000) BEEmEE floor area which derived from  (equivalent to HK$209)/sqm the fair value
79,016,000/ 71 the area of land and respective Residential land: RMB223 BREs ATEES
( AR #70,000,0007T) plot ratio, using direct market  (equivalent to HK$252)/sqm
comparables and taking into ¥R ARE185T
account of adjustments on (RER2098T) / Tk

location, land use right terms ~ FE At : AR%2237T

and development scale factor (HBER2528TT) /FH*
RETHERBEREL

BERAERREBARE

TRAEETHIELBRE

R RAME i RE

FHRERARRZ AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z _-F—tF =] =+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16.

Fair value as at Valuation

31 March 2017 techniques Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price
R=B-t%

ZA=t-HZAYE HER IETTERBAE nEFHE

HKS

BT

(3)  Investment properties under construction

ERRENE
ChinlinkeWorldport (Retail portion & accommodation/ofﬂce portion) - fair values determined by Colliers
EERG o RE (REIHRET /HOEHD) - AR NETZATE
HK$549,723,000 Residual approach (i) Market rent, taking into Retail portion: RMB3,881
(RMB487,000,000) gk account the differences (equivalent to HK$4,381)/sqm
549,723,0007% 7T in location, and individual ~ accommodation/office
( AR #%487,000,00070) factors, such as frontage portion:RMB2,140 equivalent to
and building age, between (HK$2,415)/sqm
the comparables and the ~ ZEH 7 : AR%3,8817L
property (1RER4, 381}%73)/¥ﬁ%
mERE BERNEEZE AE/MAEESH
REMAARTELEN  AREL140T

FanxzANEREEN  (BSR24158L) /FHK

kS

(i) Expected developer profit 10%
EHRREEEN

(iii) Construction cost to RMB56,250,000
complete AR 56,250,007
BETRRA

(iv) Discount rate 9.5%
FR%

(v) Rate of finance cost 9.5%

B mAN®
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REWE (&)

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
FUBRBRAER
NPEZBE

The higher the market rent, the
higher the fair value

mEEeHs R TEER

The higher the expected developer
profit, the lower the fair value

BARZHETLE A TELE

The higher the cost, the lower the
fair value

RAER ATELE

The higher the discount rate, the
lower the fair value

AREER RTEMLE

The higher the rate of finance
cost, the lower the fair value

BBRANEYES A FEBE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #% ZF— 4= =+ —H IL4FE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REYIX (&)

Relationship of

Fair value as at Valuation unobservable

31 March 2016 techniques Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price inputs to fair value
RIB-R%F FUBEBAER
ZA=+-BZATHE HEFE TEFTETAAR METHE AFEZBE

HKS

B

Completed properties held for rental purpose

BEHERNZ RN E

Xi'an Commercial Complex - fair values determined by Ascent Partners

BREZAE-AUHEEECATE

HK$2,078,668,000 Direct market approach Price per square metre of gross  Retail portion: RMB10,477 The higher the price, the higher
(RMB1,737,000,000) BEETEE floor area which derived from (equivalent to HK$12,538)/sqm  the fair value

2,078,668,0007% 7 the construction area, using  Office portion: RMBS,453 ERdE ATEER
(AR#1,737,000,0007C) direct market comparables (equivalent to HK$6,526)/sqm

and taking into account of Car park portion: RMB4,126

adjustments on location, (equivalent to HK$4,938)/sqm

footfall and development scale ZEH 7 : ARE10,4777L

factor (RZEM2,538%TT) /Fh*K

REREHBBEREL BAEHH : ARKS4537T

BYIKER LRA (185 16,526%7) /FH %

BERTHUELBRAER BB AR 1267

M RANE B R (185 R4,938%5 ) /FH A

RERERR A%

Leasehold land with undetermined future use

HABEARBRZAG L

(i) Phase 2 of the Commercial Complex - fair value determined by Ascent Partners

BEAES _H-plUtHEEEZATE

HK$138,458,000 Direct market approach Price per square metre of gross ~ RMB1,178 (equivalent to The higher the price, the higher
(RMB115,700,000) RN floor area which derived from HK$1,409)/sqm the fair value

138,458,000/ 7T the area of land and respective  ARH1,1787C BREs ATEES
( AK¥#115,700,0007) plot ratio, using direct market (185 #%1,409%7w) /F 75 %

comparables and taking into
account of adjustments on
location, land use right terms
and development scale factor
RELHERBAREL
BYAKERRBEARER.
WHRAEETS AL BREE
RGEHRFLE T30 RRE
FHRERAERZ A%
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % —“F—LFE=H =+ —HIL4FHE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REYIX (&)

Fair value as at Valuation

31 March 2016 techniques Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price
R=B-X%

ZA=t-HZAYE HERE TEFTEZBAE mETHE

HKS

BT

Leasehold land with undetermined future use (continued)

HAEEARARIBELY (#)

(i) the Hanzhong Land - fair value determined by Colliers

Entit-mnNgEcATE

HK$70,606,000 Direct market approach Price per square metre of gross ~ Commercial land: RMB157
(RMB59,000,000) RN floor area which derived from  (equivalent to HK$188)/sqm
70,606,000/ 7t the area of land and respective  Residential land: RMB184
( AR #59,000,0007T) plot ratio, using direct market  (equivalent to HK$220)/sqm

comparables and taking into  EERM: ARE157T

account of adjustments on (REM88BT)/ Tk

location, land use right terms ~ {E fit: AR¥1847T

and development scale factor ~ (H8ZR220%7T) /F A%

RETHABEZEEREL
BYIRERRABDER.
TREBEETSTELREE
REGHRAME  LibERE
FHRBRABAR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #% ZF— 4= =+ —H IL4FE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REYIX (&)

Relationship of

Fair value as at Valuation unobservable

31 March 2016 techniques Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price inputs to fair value
—E-RE TUBRERAER

ZAZ+-BZAYE HERE TEFTEZBAE mETHE NYEZER

HKS

BT

Investment properties under construction

EREANE

ChinlinkeWorldport (Retail portion & accommodation/ofﬂce portion) - fair values determined by Colliers

BERSHRE (REBIRER/HLERD) ~hRNETLATE

HK$360,206,000 Residual approach (i) Market rent, taking into Retail portion: RMB2,543 The higher the market rent, the
(RMB301,000,000) gk account the differences (equivalent to HK$3,044)/sqm higher the fair value
360,206,007 7 in location, and individual ~ accommodation/office portion: ~ M54 E A FEHR
( AE%301,000,00070) factors, such as frontage RMB1,029 equivalent to

and building age, between (HK$1,231)/sqm

the comparables and the TEHH: AR%2,543T
property (HRER3, O44/§7E SERK
mElt BEENEEE HE/HARHS
REARARATELED )\RW,OBE
(ANEANERSER  (BEM.231%8T) /TAk

kS
(i) Expected developer profit ~ 20% The higher the expected developer
EHRREEEN profit, the lower the fair value
ERREmETEE D TEVE
(iii) Construction cost to RMB 145,000,000 The higher the cost, the lower the
complete AR #145,000,0007C fair value
BETRRA KAdE AFESE
(iv) Discount rate 9.5% The higher the discount rate, the
FR% lower the fair value
FREWS ATEME
(v) Rate of finance cost 9.5% The higher the rate of finance
B AR A % cost, the lower the fair value

BBRANEYES A FEBE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

17.

18.

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The deposit of RMB27,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$32,312,000 at 31 March 2016) represented
pre-sale deposit paid to a property developer for
the acquisition of twelve retail shops located in
Xi‘an City, the PRC. During the year ended 31
March 2017, the Group abandoned the sale in
view of the continuing delay of delivery of the
properties and transferred the deposit to certain
independent third parties with a consideration of
RMB27,000,000 (equivalent to HK$32,312,000).

DEPOSIT PAID FOR PREPAID LEASE
PAYMENTS FOR LAND

The amount represents refundable earnest money
of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$28,220,000
and HK$29,918,000 at 31 March 2017 and 2016,
respectively) paid to the PRC government authority
for the expropriation of land for auction to be held
by the PRC government authority. The purpose for
acquisition of the land is for development of the
ChinlinkeWorldport. Such earnest money would
be refunded by the relevant authority of the PRC
upon the completion of the auction. The auction
was completed in June 2014 and the land has
been included as investment properties under
construction with details set out in note 16.

At 31 March 2017, the Group intends to acquire
the adjacent land for development of Phase 2 of
ChinlinkeWorldport. The amount will be treated as
earnest money for acquisition of this adjacent land
which will be used to offset the land cost upon

acquisition of the land.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

17.

18.

RUBREVEXN2EE

e AR®27,000,0005T (B
RR=—_ZE—XR"HF=ZA=+—80~2
32,312,000 )X T —H W
FREmsBERS UWKBAR T
ARmz T _HAEEEH REEZ
%—tiiﬂi+—5¢¢§'%m
MEFEBETCEXMN NEBREZHE
%'mkhﬁkﬁ%EF%ﬁ%Eﬁv
REBEAARH27,000,0005T (HER
32,312,000/ 7T) °

BB EES
£

;Z RIBHE B M A BB 36 P 2 A% 2 BT
RO ES ARK25000,0005T (5
FEERR_TE—tFR_F—X
F=F=+—H228,220,0008 T &
29,918,000 7t ) LA 5t #5 | 7 B B T
EPIERIT 2 E AU L o WA RZ
THEEREEEP S o« tH7E - A
WEESBHFPABBEBINEES
BERE - HMBEER -_Z—NEXNAR
RZTHEIATRZIEENME K
FIBEAM 6 -

RIE 2 2 &

R-ZF—tF#=A=+—0 A%E
RSB ERIE 0 PR RS ES S o
BB E e S R 3
G T2 MBS IR IR
% o 14 PR 1 4 94 S o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO FORMER
SUBSIDIARIES
Amounts due from/to former subsidiaries are

unsecured and non-interest bearing.

The amounts due to former subsidiaries with
principal amount of approximately HK$9,536,000
was initially with no fixed repayment term and
repayable on demand. Agreements were entered
with former subsidiaries on 31 March 2016
and agreed that the amounts due to former
subsidiaries are repayable on 31 March 2019.
Accordingly, such balances are classified as non-
current liabilities at 31 March 2017 and 2016 and
using effective interest rate method of 14% per
annum. During the year ended 31 March 2017,
the imputed interest expense of HK$900,000
(2016:
HK$9,536,000 was recognised to profit or loss.

nil) arising from principal amount of

Adjustments on amounts due to former subsidiaries
of HK$3,099,000 were credited to profit or loss in
the year ended 31 March 2016 (2017: nil) with an
effective interest rate of 14% per annum.

19.

FE W FE A AT MY B 2 W) BRI

FEHs, e A< A BT BB 2 R AR B A S R
KRBB -

A4 B #79,536,000/8 JT 2 FE 1 AT B
BARKRESYYERTEERARE
RERKEE - ARARZTE—RF=
A=+—BHpB AR inE
BEEBNAMKMNBARIKREAR T
—NE=ZA=+—HBEEZ-Bit »
2 —tERZT—RF=A=1—
B ZESREBEF14%2EEF
REDBEERHEAB - HE-Z
—tF=ZA=T—HILEFE X&8
9,536,000 TEL ZHEF BH X
900,000 T (ZF—RF:T)RNE
EAER-ENRNEARKREZH
B $%3,099,000B T (T — L4
) (EBAEAEEBF14% ) REZE=
T—RFEZA=Zt+—BLFEIARE

S o

B
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

19.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO FORMER

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Amounts due from former subsidiaries initially do
not have a fixed repayment terms. As at 31 March
2016, the directors of the Company reassessed
the expected settlement time and consider
the former subsidiaries would be able to settle
the amounts due to the Group with principal
value of HK$17,684,000 on 31 March 2019.
Accordingly, such balance are classified as non-
current assets at 31 March 2017 and 2016 and
using effective interest rate method of 14% per
annum. During the year ended 31 March 2017,
the imputed interest income of HK$1,670,000
(2016: HK$2,172,000) arising from principal
amount of HK$17,684,000 was recognised to
profit or loss. Adjustments on amounts due from
former subsidiaries of HK$5,747,000 were charged
to profit or loss the year ended 31 March 2016
(2017: nil) with an effective interest rate of 14%
per annum. In addition, the remaining portion of
amounts due from former subsidiaries with principal
value of HK$5,793,000 as at 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK$5,793,000) was expected to be settled by the
former subsidiaries within twelve months from the
end of the reporting period and classified as current

assets.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

19.

FE UL FE 5 AT B B A B BR1E
(#&)

JE WS AT BT B8 A R BR TE A ) 4 & TE 38
HEHe-R—_T—ARFEFZA=Z+—8"
RRREEEHTHEHEMNSKR -
VTRENKMBARBINR=ZZ—AN
FZA=+—BENZHERAEEZ
A (KN4 A17,684,00087C) °
I RZE—+FER_FT—RF=H
—t+—H RZEBFERAEF14%2E
B EZDBERDEE-BEZ
E—+tF=ZA=Z+—HIEFE £
%817,684,0008 TEE 2 HEF B
W A1,670,0008 0 (ZF— R~ F:
2,172,000/ 7T ) 1A 18 2 A T 78 o JIE UK
RIP B A RIBRIE 2 B £ 585,747,000
BL(ZE—F F) (EBM=X
AEEF14% ) REBEE-_T—~F=A
= +—HIEFENABR I R
T—+tF=A=+—H EUFIHEB
ARIBRBEAS 55,793,000 T (=&
— N 15,793,000 T) 2% T 2o
TEER S Fh AT P B A B R B 3R 45 HA AR e
T Z@AREN T EARESE
Eo
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #% ZF— 4= =+ —H IL4FE

INVENTORIES 200 ®FE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Raw materials R 5 518
Finished goods UK 2,838 2,733
2,843 3,251
TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN 21. BEREFRE BERERKREWK
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS g
RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables fEINE FERI18
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FET
Trade receivables JEWE FERIA 31,112 8,105
Less: Allowances for bad and A RIZBER
doubtful debts B (1,399) (1,672)
29,713 6,433
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following is an analysis of trade receivables (net
of allowance for bad and doubtful debts) by age,
presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period:

0 - 30 days TE=+H
31 - 90 days =+—H=E=NT+H
> 90 days =

The Group's credit terms for its major customers of
interior decoration work and international trading
are usually 3 months to 1 year. The credit terms
granted by the Group to other trade debtors of
interior decoration work and international trading

are normally 30 days.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

21.

BWEZIRE  BRERRER
B (&)

BB ZRE (&)
BRERHERNRZEZAHETEK
BHRE (IRRERER) 2IRED
T

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$000 HK$'000

FHET T T

5,415 2,519

24,079 3,607

219 307

29,713 6,433
AEBETFTEEREHIRLBRE
SGrEERPZIEEBMBEA=MA

E-—F - AEEBRTERNEMIIER
BRESEMEERP 2 EEN—
mAE=+tH-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Customers related to financing guarantee services
are required to settle either on monthly instalments
in arrear or upon signing of the financing guarantee
services contracts or relevant consultancy services
contracts. As at 31 March 2017, among the
trade receivables, balances of HK$78,000 (2016:
HK$2,792,000) are related to financing guarantee
services which was aged within 30 days (2016:
HK$620,000 was aged within 30 days and
HK$2,172,000 was aged within 31-90 days).

The Group's credit terms for its customers related

to logistics services are normally 30 days.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality
by investigating their historical credit record and
defines credit limits by customers on individual
basis. Recoverability and credit limit of the existing
customers are reviewed by the Group regularly.
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances
are receivables with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$29,198,000 and HK$4,636,000 as at 31 March
2017 and 2016, respectively, which are neither past
due nor impaired. The directors of the Company
considered that trade receivables which are neither
past due nor impaired are of good credit quality
and there are continuous subsequent settlements

from these customers.

21.

BWEZIRE  BRERRER
B (&)

FEWE 5 RE (&)
EHERMEERRB2EFPEKRAS
AN IRNEFITREERREE LD
HEEERREENEI N - BRF
—tF=ZA=+—H REKES
BRIEA © 78,0008 L (ZE — R F:
2,792,000 7T ) 2 #5 #h B Bl & E IR AR
BERE REREAZTAR(ZZ—X
% :620,0008 TR KRR A= T
AR %2,172,0004 7T 5K 1B 2 R ER A
—+—BEhTH)-

AEBGETHARBMARBZERZ
EEH-—KAB=1AH-

EERIZEFRHFEFPAH AEEEHRE
HBEEECBRMABZREERRP
ZEREERRENERAERPE
ERE-AKEERRNBAEERL,Z
BRREIREERBE - AKER_-F
—tEFR-E-RF=ZA=+t—HZ
BWE ZEBESRD BB BEEE
7$29,198,000/% 7T }24,636,000/% 7T
ZARBEIRRREZ EBEARE - AQ
AEFRAR/ZFRBIMINKMEZ &
WESEREARERE HLERF
ERERENR-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$515,000 (2016: HK$1,797,000) which are past
due as at 31 March 2017 for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these trade receivables.
The average age of these receivables is 52 days
(2016: 44 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but

not impaired

31 - 90 days =+—HEANT+H

21.

91 — 365 days h+—HBE=\,+HH

Total @t

BWEZIRE  BRERRER
B (&)

JEWE 5 0R1E (&)

AEEEKEZRBEESRA ZER
BRI ZAEMmEAS150008 T (=
T — K 1,797,000 7)) RN -F
—tF=ZA=+—HHEBEHEEAR
SET AR ESBELE#E &
BEYARZFEWE ZRBEREEM
KRR - ZERWEBCRERTAA
A+ZB(ZE—RF - Em+MHA) -

ERBERREZREEFRIE R

LEA
554

2017 2016
ZE-—tF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
505 1,355

10 442

515 1,797
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % —“F—LFE=H =+ —H IL4FHE

TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but

not impaired (continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Group, trade
receivables in relation to financing guarantee
services are not significant. For the remaining
balances, the Group has maintained long term
relationship with those existing customers who
have a strong financial position with continuous
subsequent settlement and there is no historical
default of payments by the respective customers.
The Group has assessed the recoverability of these
customers and consider that there has not been
a significant change in their credit quality. The
directors of the Company believe that the amounts

are still recoverable.

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful
debts

Balance at 1 April RUA—RZ&E#%
Impairment losses recognised on
trade receivables A EE

Amounts recovered during the year &K € U [6] 7 & 58

Balance at 31 March

FLEME 5 BRIAFE R

R=A=+—Hz&&

21.

BWEZIRE  BRERRER
B (&)

ERMERRECEKESREZR
e (%)

AEBEZERS BEERREZIE
WESERBI BN -BLESRTE - A
SEEZFREEFPRERB#EE:
REBEFPHRAHERMBMRRL B #F
BRERN BEMKBERL EIE
R AEBEFEREEPERE
NAIRBRBREZEFEEEERBEAR
o ARREFHEZERRMDAA
PAdg m o

RIZERELY
2017 2016
ZE—tF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
1,672 2,128
- 329
(273) (785)
1,399 1,672
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful
debts (continued)

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts included
individually impaired trade receivables with an
aggregate balance of HK$1,399,000 (2016:
HK$1,672,000) which had been in severe financial
difficulties or had significant disputes with the
Group. The directors of the Company make
impairment losses based on the recoverability
of trade receivables. The Group takes into
consideration the objective evidence in estimating
the recoverability of trade receivables, including
business relationship with customers, credit history,
past settlement records including default or delay
in payments and collection after the end of the
reporting period. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Trade receivables from related companies

As at 31 March 2016, there was an amount of
HK$208,000 classified as trade receivables from
related companies in which the relatives of the
controlling shareholder had significant influence
to these related companies. Such trade receivables
were in connection with the financing guarantee
services. During the year, the balance was fully
settled.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

21.

BWEZIRE  BRERRER
B (&)

RIRERBED (&)

RIZEBECEOYERENEE# K
WMAEEFERND B2 ERREZE
WE SERTBAEEA1,399,0008 T (=
T — N4 1,672,000/ L) ° AR A
EFZEREBEKEZERBE ZTRE M
i VB R B A 18 o AN 5 B R AT A FE R
BSERBEAJNEHREFREEE
B BIEEEP  EXBKBEE EES
8 BAEELE (RERREHRE
ZHRSKGERAT R R - AEBE W
AR EERTEEMERGD-

EWREEARZE SRR

RZE—R"FZA=+—H —%=%
¥ /£208,0008 m o AR ER
A(AZERBRRCBRENRZEM@E
REIEERTEN)2ESEKRIE %
ERKESRBEHNEBEERRES
o MAFEN RERDEHES -

IR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Loan receivables

Loan receivables of HK$138,542,000 (2016:
HK$77,381,000) represents the outstanding loan
receivables from independent third parties which
are unsecured and carry interest at fixed — rates
ranged from 11.0% to 18.0% per annum (2016:
Hong Kong Prime Interest Rate plus 4.0% per
annum or fixed rate of 12.0% per annum). The
weighted average effective interest rate of the loan
receivable is 15.47% (2016: 10.48%) per annum.
Amounts at both 31 March 2017 and 2016 are
repayable within 12 months from the loan advance
date.

Bills receivables

As at 31 March 2017, bills receivables of
HK$45,308,000 (2016: nil) were aged within 60
days from respective date of receipt of the bills.
The entire balance of the bills receivables were
discounted to banks with recourse and their
corresponding liabilities were included in bank and
other borrowings as disclosed in note 27.

21.

BWEZIRE  BRERRER
5B (&)

FE U B R

JE UL & 57138,542,0008 7T ( —F— X
% :77,381,000/8 L) IEEW B L F
ZHZEABEER ZREAEK
ALEFREEMENF11.0%E
18.0% (ZE— A "F - BFEHEBR
THREEMEINL0%RE T REEF
12.0% )it E - [ERER 2 INEFHE
BREABEF15.47% (ZZT—XF:
10.48% ) R _TE—+tF KT —
FZA-+—HZZFEHEARBRGE
SREERI12E A REE-

Sk

JIE T 22 %

R-E—+tFEZA=Z+—HB EBKE
45,308,000 T (= —RF: &)
ZERAEESAEBWG B HEE
60RAN -EWRE 22 MEHRAME
BRECHR FRT HEEEEE
AN E2IEREZRITREME

Eon
A °
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Transfers of financial assets

The following were the Group’s financial assets as
at 31 March 2017 and 2016 that were transferred
to banks by discounting bills receivables on a full
recourse basis. If the bills receivables are not paid
on maturity, the Group is required to pay the
unsettled balance. As the Group has not transferred
the significant risks and rewards relating to the
bills receivables, it continues to recognise the full
carrying amount of the bills receivables and has
recognised the cash received on the transfer as a
secured borrowing. The bills receivables are carried
at amortised cost in the Group's consolidated

statement of financial position.

Carrying amount of FrEZEEEY
transferred assets AREE

Carrying amount of HEaEZ
associated liabilities AREE

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

21.

BWEZIRE  BRERRER
B (&)

TREEER

TIHEBAEBR -_T—tFR=-F
—RNFE=ZA=t—HZ2sREE M
AEBEREERBARUZE 2SR
BETRT - MERZERIHHR
X RITEEBRAKRE SN KRG
B AARERAERRUER
Z B R R K O A AR R R R
EEEAEEZELERERR 2R
EREEMER - EREEAEHK
ARAREB G MR KRIIR -

Bills receivable
discounted to banks

with full recourse

MEZHEREZ

ERHREFRTZERER
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHEIT
45,308 -
45,308 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The pledged bank deposits represent deposits
placed to certain banks as securities in return for
the banks to provide loans to the Group’s financing
guarantee services customers and banking facilities
for international trading business. These pledged
bank deposits have a maturity of less than one year
as at 31 March 2017 (2016: maturity of less than

one year).

At 31 March 2017, pledged deposits carry interests
at an average rate of 1.42% (2016: 2.66%) per

annum.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 March 2017, the entire bank balances (2016:
HK$48,975,000) are current deposits, carrying
interest at market rates ranged from 0.01% to
0.60% (2016: 0.01% to 0.60%) per annum. The
bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than functional currency of the

relevant group entities are set out as below:

usD ETT
RMB AR
MOP BRI TT

22.

23.

EEFRTER
EERRITEFREFENE TRITA
ERZFRITANEE 2 BEERR
BEPRHER 2 ERF R SBERK
BPEBRHERTRE-R-_FT—*
FZA=Z1+—"B ZECBRRTHE
RR—FRNIE (ZE—RF R —F
MEIH)

R-E—+tF=A=+—0 #H#ARF
AR FE TGN E1.42% (ZF—R
F:2.66% )R

RITEEFERRE
RZZE—tF=ZA=+—H 23R
T4 (ZF — /X4 :48,975,000%
TL)BEHEF - ENFEF001%
£0.60% (ZE—"NF:001%%
0.60% ) 2 MHFMNEFE - AHEEE
HEEUIEEE I E-FTE 2R
THEERReSHINAT

2017 2016

S s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH TR
8,173 112

62 59

12,655 11,080
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

24. TRADE PAYABLES
The following is an analysis of trade payables by
age, presented based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period:

0 - 30 days EE=+F
31 - 90 days =+—H=E=N+H
> 90 days A+BENUE

The credit periods on purchases of goods are
usually from 1 month to 3 months.

24,

BNESRE

RERBEMR2EZEAHEIESN
BoRBAZERESHMT

2017
—E—t&
HK$'000
FHT

27,841

10,824

38,665

2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
FHET

2,582
40
11,042

13,664

RWER Y EEEEYA—EASES

A -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE AND 25. AUWREREDEFURzRE
DEPOSITS RECEIVED FROM TENANTS

2017 2016
ZE—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Receipts in advance from: KB THEIEZ FERRIE
— International trading —EEE S 1,382 2,314
— Logistics services — Y1 IR 7% 7,199 1,153
— Property investment —ELE 61,726 60,309
70,307 63,776
Analysed as: IATEEZ DM
Current mE 44,792 31,607
Non-current IER B 25,515 32,169
70,307 63,776
Receipts in advance from property investment REMERE ZFEWFHIBEEMEPET
represented the received rental income and VIZREMEEERBE CAENETZ
management fees in advance under the contracts Eqifﬂiqﬁ)\&ﬁ%gﬁ% ZEN
of provision of property management services with BREE -TBWRIES HREEEE
tenants. The amounts are non-interest bearing. f@ﬂlﬁ‘%@ﬁﬁ#Fﬁ&fﬂﬂ;ﬁ’\*ﬁﬁmu@&
Receipts in advances are classified as current and EmBBE (HOBES LR -
non-current liabilities based on the timing of
performance of the related management services
and the rental period, respectively, as stated on the
relevant contracts.
Deposits received from tenants are classified M P W 2 & e RE AR E R RS
as current liabilities based on the timing of BTRKESBERRSEE (B

performance of the related management services as BHIFTA) ©

stated on the relevant contracts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

26. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED 26.

COMPANIES, A DIRECTOR AND
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
Amounts due to related companies in which the
controlling shareholder of the Company (who is
also a director of the Company) has significant
influence to these related companies are unsecured,

non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Amounts due to a director and ultimate holding
company are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand.

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27.
Borrowings related to bills HffHEREL
discounted with recourse EHBERBEBEEAZEN
Bank borrowings, secured WITER BEA
Bank borrowings, unsecured RITE R EmE AR
Other borrowings, unsecured H &R |
Bank overdraft RITHEX

BNBRERT  —BESR&EK
2R AR

e BIE R R (ARE ZERRER (T5
REARRER)RNZEHRERREE
TEN)RELSEERM RERER

5. ot szm
ERER-

N —REERKEEERAREREAER
EEA RERARERER-

RITRHMER
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FH T FAT
45,308 -
968,477 297,801
- 5,984
58,060 71,041
5,001 4,875
1,076,846 379,701
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27. RITKHMBER (&)
(continued)
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Carrying amount repayable*: JEBEARTEE "
Within one year —F A 409,168 106,209
More than one year, HB B —F -
but not exceeding two years e B 3R R 277,806 65,723
More than two years, 8 38 PR 4F -
but not exceeding five years MR R T F 367,547 110,551
More than five years BBRF 16,932 90,973
1,071,453 373,456
Carrying amount of EHREREEKRRZ
the bank borrowings IRITERARMEE

that contains a repayable
on demand clause

— repayable within one year — R —FNEE 881 859
— not repayable within one —\BER—FRNEER
year (shown under current (BRRREEE
liabilities) ET) 4,512 5,386
1,076,846 379,701
Less: Amount due within one year Ji : —4F R 2| #i 5k
or contains a repayable EBEREREEBGIAL
on demand clause shown BETRRBBEETZ
under current liabilities R IR (414,561) (112,454)
Amount shown under ERBABEETHAR
non-current liabilities ZBRIA 662,285 267,247
* The amounts due are based on scheduled * B BRI DIRIEE R BB T H EE
repayable dates set out in loan agreements. BZEEHEBER-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

27.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

The banks overdraft carried interest at Hong Kong
Prime Interest Rate (2016: Hong Kong Prime
Interest Rate) per annum.

At 31 March 2017, the Group’s variable-rate
bank borrowings of HK$968,477,000 (2016:
HK$303,785,000) carry interest rate at Hong Kong
Interbank Offer Rate (“"HIBOR") plus 2.5%/3.75%
or Hong Kong deposit rate plus 0.5% or London
Interbank Offer Rate (“LIBOR") plus 2% or based
rate fixed by People’s Bank of China ("PBOC Rate")
plus a premium per annum (2016: HIBOR plus 2.5%
or PBOC Rate plus a premium).

As at 31 March 2017, other borrowings are
unsecured, carry interest at a fixed-rate 12.0% or
12.5% per annum (2016: a fixed-rate 12.0% or
12.5% per annum) and are repayable at maturity
dates ranged from 22 April 2017 to 23 March 2018
(2016: 23 June 2016 to 24 March 2017).

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

27.

ROTREMER (&)
RITBEXBFRBEBRITREEINE
(ZE-—RF FERTREFIMNX
AR

~—

W—Z—+tH&F=F=+—H
$El23|€lmﬂ><ﬁ TERA
968,477,000 L (=& — XN F:
303,785,000 L) DB FiRE AR
TREHRE (BEERTRAERE])
N2.5%,3.75%3% & & 77 58 F &
0.5%3k fm IR 1T R ZEHF B ([RBIR

TREFE])IM%HFEARETT

ErTsEENE([FEAARBRTA
F)MEEB(ZE—"F:-BER]T
FZEFFEM2.5%zF B ARRITHI X
MAEE)FHE e

RZE—+tF=ZA=+—H HM#E
REERR SFEETEFE12.0%
12.5% T-RE-BFEEHN
>1R120%EJ@1250/0)#r§)§2%)‘%*%
—tFMNA=Z+ZHEZZE—N\EFE=
AZ+=R(ZF—XRF: 22—
FRAZF+=ZHEZZ—+F=A
ZH+mA) I EHEAZEIHAERE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates per annum
(which are also equal to contracted interest rates)

on the Group’s bank and other borrowings are as

follows:

Effective interest rate: BEREF X
Fixed-rate borrowings B E A ERE K
Variable-rate borrowings EEE N EE K

At 31 March 2017, the variable-rate bank
borrowings of approximately HK$968,477,000
(2016: HK$297,801,000) are secured by the
Group's property, plant and equipment with
carrying value of HK$15,676,000 (2016:
HK$16,285,000) and investment properties
with fair value of HK$2,662,829,000 (2016:
HK$1,477,925,000).

27.

RITRHEMER (&)

AEBBTREMERZ FERNEX
BE (FEFRAQEME)WT:

2017 2016
—®—tf —EAE

12.0% - 12.50% 12.0% - 12.50%
1.25% - 7.50% 2.71% - 8.41%

R-ZZT—tHF=ZA=Z+—H &&
B LABR®EE15,676,0008 T (=&
— 754 :16,285,0008 L) 2 M E &
B K& &k~ F1E7%2,662,829,000
B (ZZ— X4 :1,477,925,000
BIL)ZIEEMEFEERAUARB LD
968,477,000 L (=& — X F:
297,801,000 7T ) 2 FE B TE M EERTT

oo
B e
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. EZLEBIEA
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities RWEEERNAEREXELERIE
recognised and movements thereon during both BEREEHHT
years:
Tax
allowance
Fair value  on financing
gain on guarantee 7.5%
investment contracts convertible
properties recognised bonds Others Total
BARE
RENEZ BRAEHZ 7.5%
NVERE RUEX TaRES Hft #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThER TR TR FEL TEL
At 1 April 2015 RZZ-hENA-A 2,642 2,592 2,411 62 7,707
Charge (credit) to profit or loss 1B & (GFA)B% 3,567 (1,393) (2,028) (62) 84
Credit to equity STAER - - (383) - (383)
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-FAREAF
(note 33) (Hit33) 194,248 - - - 194,248
Exchange realignment [EH A% (654) (85) - - (739)
At 31 March 2016 WZE-RE=f=1—H 199,803 1,114 - - 200,917
Charge (credit) to profit or loss 1B & (Gt A) B5 26,741 (484) - - 26,257
Exchange realignment [ER A% (11,924) (57) - - (11,981)
At 31 March 2017 RZE-t+E=ZA=1-H 214,620 573 - - 215,193
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had unused tax losses of HK$238,412,000
(2016: HK$193,381,000) available for offsetting
against future profits which are subjected to the
confirmation from Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department and the PRC tax bureau. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. As at 31
March 2017, included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of HK$100,900,000 which will expire
in 5 years from the year of origination which is
ranged from 2018 to 2022, the remaining balances
of unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely (2016: HK$117,671,000 which will
expire in 5 years from the year of origination
which is ranged from 2017 to 2021, the remaining
balances of unrecognised tax losses may be carried

forward indefinitely).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by the PRC subsidiary from 1 January 2008
onwards. No deferred taxation has been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of certain PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$1,175,587,000 (2016:
HK$1,100,525,000) as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it is
probable that the profits will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

28.

EERIE (&)

RIEBMKR AEEBBEREAZHIE
E518238,412,0008 T (=T — N F :
193,381,000/ 7T ) 7] A AR L 88 R 2K i
M HEEGEERBERERTPEBER
WRE  FAEE - ARKEFIBERRK
BEERETE R - B I £E FE R IR A R I8
BE-RZTE—tF=A=+—H0" %k
T SR B IE B9 18 2 5 85 48100,900,000
B HBERBFERRFANDE
(B2 NFE_T-__4F) k¥
RUEEBEB 2 ERUERRALE (=
T—7RF 117,671,000 015 B F 1A
FERBRAFAIBH (M- —LFZE
ZEZF)  RERMEEB &R
AR L) o

BEFECEMBHREZ B-TTN
F-—A—HRAKB EFREMNBLAHM
FIT Bt B ) 5 R AR B - ZB AR TE N
BReARARREHETHEMNEA
AlZREBKBA A RERTE
2R A B RS IS IR R B
ZEWEB AR Z1,175,587,0008 7T
(ZZ—7%:1,100,525,000/87T) 2
KRB 2GR EZBELRTERHE
B
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

29. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares:

Authorised
At 1 April 2015 of
HK$0.0125 each
Increase in authorised
share capital

At 31 March 2016 of
HK$0.0125 each

Increase in authorised share
capital (Note i)

Increase in authorised share
capital (Note i)

Share consolidation (Note /i)

At 31 March 2017 of
HK$0.3125 each

Issued and fully paid
At 1 April 2015 of
HK$0.0125 each
Shares issued on conversion of
7.5% convertible bonds (Note Jii)
Shares issued for acquisition of
subsidiaries (Note /v)

At 31 March 2016 of
HK$0.0125 each

Rights issue (Note i)

Share consolidation (Note /i)

At 31 March 2017 of
HK$0.3125 each

29. KX

Number
of shares

BOEE

EFliE

R

N-Z—HEMA—H
B MEE0.01255 T
EINATE
RN 1,800,000,000

3,200,000,000

RZE-—RE=ZA=+—H

G EE0.01258 T 5,000,000,000

18 0ETE R A

(Hiazi) 15,000,000,000
N E R A

(Hatii) 30,000,000,000
W& 6f (Htatii) (48,000,000,000)

RZE—tF=A=+—H

B E0.31258 T 2,000,000,000

BETRER
RZE—RFWMA—H
T mEE0.01258 T
REERT 5% ] R IL & 5

2,283,666,869

BT 2D (B atiii) 110,000,000
BB AREITZ
Wt (B aziv) 398,009,950

RZE-—RFE=A=+—H

G EE0.01258 T 2,791,676,819

R (i) 13,958,384,095
W1 & B (B atii) (16,080,058,478)
RZE—+FE=A=+—H

% (80.31257% 7T 670,002,436
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Nominal
value
[ERE
HK$'000
THER

40,000

22,500

62,500

187,500

375,000

625,000

28,546

1,375

4,975

34,896
174,480

209,376



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note i:

Note ji:

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the
Special General Meeting of the Company held at
19 October 2016, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased to HK$250,000,000
divided into 20,000,000,000 ordinary shares by
the creation of an additional 15,000,000,000
ordinary shares. Immediately following the
increase in authorised share capital, the rights
issue on the basis of five rights shares for every
one share held was effected and a total of
13,958,384,095 ordinary shares were issued with
an aggregate par value of HK$174,479,811.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the
Special General Meeting of the Company held at
27 March 2017, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased to HK$625,000,000
divided into 50,000,000,000 ordinary shares by
the creation of an additional 30,000,000,000
ordinary shares. Immediately following the
increase in authorised share capital, the share
consolidation on the basis of every 25 issued
and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.0125 each
consolidated into 1 share of HK$0.3125 each was
implemented. The structure of the Company's
authorised share capital was changed from
HK$625,000,000 divided into 50,000,000,000
ordinary shares, to HK$625,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares. The issued
share capital of the Company was changed from
HK$209,375,761 divided into 16,750,060,914
ordinary shares, to HK$209,375,761 divided into
670,002,436 ordinary shares.

i 7
Hriti -

29.

B atii

50 W i W

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

(#&)
BEAXAAR-FT—AF+A
TABRTZRABIAEGAEB

ZERBRBR AN TFELERTEI
15,000,000,0000% & i@ I% 15 % € f%
N80 E£250,000,000% 7T (9 A
20,000,000,0000% & 3@ A% ) - k&
EERAEIME HR(EEAE
BE—RBROEZAREBKRERY)
AR R A $£13,958,384,095 % i@
[REFT  BE(EA174,479,8117%
TTe

BEARANR-_ZT—tF=A
“tEtHETZREENRE
BBZEBRBR KA
2 #E4M30,000,000,0000% 38 i
%% F B A 42 )1 £ 625,000,000
7 7T (% /50,000,000,000% &
MR c BREIETRAIG ME -
Bihast (BREABSRERE
H0.0125F L 2 B BT R AR &1T
LTEBE T AIKREE3125%
TZBRHD)EEK - AR B ZE
JERE AN 22 4 625,000,000 T
(% %50,000,000,0000% & & A% )
B E £625,000,0008 L (D A
2,000,000,0008% E @ %) - A
a2 %ITR A H209,375,761%
7T (5 A16,750,060,9140% & &
%)% ¥ £209,375,7618 7L (H A
670,002,4360% @AY ) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

29.

30.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note jii: During the year ended 31 March 2016,
110,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company,
with aggregate par value of approximately
HK$1,375,000, were issued upon the partial
conversion of 7.5% convertible bonds. Details are

set out in note 31.

Note jv:During the year ended 31 March 2016,
398,009,950 ordinary shares of the Company,
with aggregate par value of approximately
HK$4,975,000, were issued for settlement of
consideration for acquisition of a subsidiary.
Details are set out in note 33.

COUPON BONDS
8.0% Coupon bonds

Pursuant to the bonds instrument dated 15
October 2014, 8.0% coupon bonds with principal
amount of HK$71,000,000 and HK$129,000,000
(collectively referred as the “"8.0% Coupon
Bonds”) were issued by the Company at par to
independent parties on 15 October 2014 (the
“Issue Date 1”) and 31 October 2014 (the “Issue
Date 2"), respectively.

The 8.0% Coupon Bonds are denominated in HK$
and carry interest at 8.0% per annum. Interest is

repayable annually.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

29.

30.

B (&)

Wi - RBE=_FT—X"E=ZA=+—
BLEFERN AQGREHENA
1,375,000 JT 2 110,000,000/% &
BALE R D BT 5% ] R & 5
BRI AT o FHIB RN MTFEST ©

Mativ. REE-ZT—A"F=A=+—H1t
FEA RNQFLEEEL4,975,000
7 7T 2.398,009,950/% & i/ I 2 5L
EffhE B RARZRE TN
BT o IBE R M RE33 ¢

ERES

8.0%EEEH
REBHA-ZT—NF+A+HEA
ZEHFXE ARARDANRZE—N
FTA+REB(I#THEE)) K=
T-MF+A=+—H([%TAH
2DIEHMERBYIALTETASES
71,000,000 7T }% 129,000,000 7T
W8.0%RBESH (1B [8.0%ELEE
%)

B.0%ERBEHFINETLFE LIREF
8.0%t B« M BIRFX [t -
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COUPON BONDS (continued)
8.0% Coupon bonds (continued)

The 8.0% Coupon Bonds will mature on the date
immediately following twenty four months after
issuance which is 15 October 2016 (the
Date 1”) and 31 October 2016 (the “Maturity
Date 2”). The Company can redeem the 8.0%

Maturity

Coupon Bonds in whole or in part, at par together
with payment of an early redemption premium
calculated at the rate of 9.0% p.a. accrued less any
interests paid by the Company on it, by giving not
less than 10 business days’ notice to the holder(s)
of the 8.0% Coupon Bonds at any time from the
Issue Date 1 to the Maturity Date 1 and Issue Date
2 to Maturity Date 2, respectively.

The directors of the Company considered that the
fair values of the redemption options of the 8.0%
Coupon Bonds at the date of issuance and 31

March 2016 were insignificant.

Transaction costs relating to the 8.0% Coupon
Bonds of HK$16,159,000 were included in the
carrying amount of the 8.0% Coupon Bonds. The
effective interest rate of the 8.0% Coupon Bonds is

12.13% per annum.

30.

RRES (HF)

8O0%EBEH (&)
BONREBEAHMNERBETR L
“_tH@EAER (I ZE— X%+ A
+HA) (A1) R _T—XF
+TA=+—RA(T&E#HE2))FH-R
BTHEN =R A N RETRE2EE
HR2% B 8 AN QR AR S A M
BO%ZEBEFIFAEAZLTLA0ME
EEAMBA UEEERIKI.O%F
FEREFZRFERGEERANQARM
H A2 EmFE 2R 2 s &

DEEGONELEH-
ARREERR RETBHRR-Z

—RNFE=ZA=1+—H 8.0%EBESH
2 FE [0 B Z&?TEIWEK

T

16,159,0008 7L8.0% Z B &4 A
ZREGRAF A O%ELEBELEEM
B8 0%ZEEELFMNERNEREGE
12.13% °
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30.

COUPON BONDS (continued)
8.0% Coupon bonds (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, interest
charged on the 8.0% Coupon Bonds of
HK$14,549,000 (2016: HK$24,063,000) of which
nil (2016: HK$20,710,000) was recognised in profit
or loss and HK$14,549,000 (2016: HK$3,353,000)
was capitalised in investment properties under
construction.

The 8.0% Coupon Bonds were fully redeemed upon
their maturity during the year ended 31 March
2017.

7.5% Coupon bonds

Pursuant to the bonds instrument dated 15
July 2015, 7.5% coupon bonds with principal
amount of HK$116,000,000 and HK$84,000,000
(collectively referred as the “7.5% Coupon
Bonds”) were issued by the Company at par to
independent parties on 15 July 2015 (the “Issue
Date 3”) and 31 August 2015 (the

4"), respectively.

“Issue Date

The 7.5% Coupon Bonds are denominated in HK$
and carry interest at 7.5% per annum. Interest is
repayable annually.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

30.

RRES (HF)
8O0%EBEH (&)
RBE-ZZT—+tEF=A=+—H1F
FER 80%EBELHENAEZH
14,549,000 L (Z & — < F:
24,063,000 7L) - AR ZE(ZF—X
%:20,710,0008 L) E N IB &= N #
R 14,549,000 7L (ZF — < F:
3,353,000/ ) E E AL R TE IR E
MENR -

REE—- +E=A=+—HILE
Fmsom SEHFRE R ERE
f& @ -

75%EBEH
REBHA-T—RHFLA+AEHA

LEHEXE ARBSNRZET—H
FEtA+HRB([#THEES3])R=
T-RAFNA=Z+—HB([%7AH
A REBERNBIALHTASES
116,000,000 7T &% 84,000,000/ 7T
M75%2BEH (HB[715%ELEE
%))

7 5% EBEBUBTIHE  LIREEF
7.5%3t 8o R BIRE LA -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

COUPON BONDS (continued)
7.5% Coupon bonds (continued)

The 7.5% Coupon Bonds will mature on the second
anniversary of the issue date which is 15 July 2017
(the “Maturity Date 3”) and 31 August 2017 (the
“Maturity Date 4") respectively. The Company
can redeem the 7.5% Coupon Bonds in whole or
in part, at par together with interest calculated
at the rate of 7.5% per annum accrued thereon
from Issue Date 3 and Issue Date 4 and up to the
date of redemption less any interests paid by the
Company on it, by giving not less than 10 business
days’ notice to the holder(s) of the 7.5% Coupon
Bonds at any time from the Issue Date 3 to the
Maturity Date 3 and Issue Date 4 to Maturity Date

4, respectively.

The directors of the Company considered that the
fair values of the redemption options of the 7.5%
Coupon Bonds at 31 March 2017 and 31 March
2016 were insignificant.

Transaction costs relating to the 7.5% Coupon
Bonds of HK$16,000,000 were included in the
carrying amount of the 7.5% Coupon Bonds. The
effective interest rate of the 7.5% Coupon Bonds is

11.61% per annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

30.

COUPON BONDS (continued)
7.5% Coupon bonds (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, interest
charged on the 7.5% Coupon Bonds of
HK$23,194,000 (2016: HK$14,546,000) of which
HK$9,708,000 (2016: HK$13,270,000) was
recognised in profit or loss and HK$13,486,000
(2016: HK$1,276,000) was capitalised in investment
properties under construction.

12.0% Coupon bonds

Pursuant to the bond certificate and bonds
instrument both dated on 31 August 2015,
12.0% coupon bonds with principal amount of
HK$450,000,000 (“Short Term 12.0% Coupon
Bonds"”) and HK$120,000,000 (“Long Term
12.0% Coupon Bonds"”) (collectively referred as
the “12.0% Coupon Bonds"”) were issued by the
Company at par to the Vendor (as defined in note
33) on 31 August 2015 (the

respectively.

“Issue Date 5”),

The 12.0% Coupon Bonds are denominated in HK$
and carry interest at 12.0% per annum. Interest
of the Short Term 12.0% Coupon Bonds and Long
Term 12.0% Coupon Bonds are repayable on

maturity date and annually, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #%E —F —LFE=H =+ —HIL4FEHE

COUPON BONDS (continued)
12.0% Coupon bonds (continued)

The Short Term 12.0% Coupon Bonds and Long
Term 12.0% Coupon Bonds will mature on the
fourth month and on the fifth anniversary of
the Issue Date 5, which is 31 December 2015
(the “Maturity Date 5") and 31 August 2020
(the "Maturity Date 6"), respectively. On 31
December 2015, part of Short Term 12.0%
Coupon Bonds amounting to HK$32,000,000
was redeemed. A supplemental agreement was
entered with the Vendor to extend the maturity
date of remaining Short Term 12.0% Coupon
Bonds of HK$418,000,000 to 30 June 2016 (the
“Maturity Date 7”). On 10 June 2016, part of
Short Term 12.0% Coupon Bonds amounting to
HK$166,000,000 was redeemed. A supplemental
agreement was entered with the Vendor to
extend the maturity date of remaining Short Term
12.0% Coupon Bonds of HK$252,000,000 to
30 November 2016 (the “Maturity Date 8").
The Company can redeem the Long Term 12.0%
Coupon Bonds and Short Term 12.0% Coupon
Bonds in whole or in part, at par together with all
accrued and unpaid interest calculated at the rate
of 12.0% per annum accrued from Issue Date 5
and up to the date of redemption by giving not less
than 10 business days’ notice to the holder(s) of the
12.0% Coupon Bonds at any time from the Issue
Date 5 to the Maturity Date 8 and Maturity Date 6,

respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

30.

31.

COUPON BONDS (continued)
12.0% Coupon bonds (continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the
fair values of the redemption options of the 12.0%
Coupon Bonds at the date of issuance and 31

March 2016 were insignificant.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, interest
charged on the 12.0% Coupon Bonds of
HK$30,840,000 (2016: HK$38,935,000) was
recognised in profit or loss.

The Short Term 12.0% Coupon Bonds and Long
Term 12.0% Coupon bonds were fully redeemed
upon maturity and early redeemed in whole

respectively during the year.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
7.5% Convertible bonds

Pursuant to the bonds instrument dated 30
August 2013, 7.5% convertible bonds (the “7.5%
Convertible Bonds”) with aggregate principal
amount of HK$300,000,000 were issued by the
Company at par with conversion price of HK$0.75
per share to independent parties on 30 August
2013 (the “Issue Date 6").
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

7.5% Convertible bonds (continued)

The 7.5% Convertible Bonds are denominated in
HK$ and carry interest at 7.5% per annum. Interest
is repayable annually. The holders of the 7.5%
Convertible Bonds were entitled to convert the
7.5% Convertible Bonds into 400,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company (“Conversion Shares”)
at initial conversion price of HK$0.75 per share
at any time from the Issue Date 6 to the maturity
date falling on the second anniversary from the
Issue Date 6, subject to the anti-dilutive adjustment
due to change in capital structure of the Company
(including share consolidation, share subdivision
and capitalisation issue and other events which
have dilutive effects on the issued share capital of
the Company as set out in the bonds instrument).
The Conversion Shares shall rank pari passu in all
respects with all other existing shares outstanding
at the date of the conversion.

The 7.5% Convertible Bonds contains two
components, liability (including closely related
early redemption option) and equity elements.
At initial recognition, the fair value of liability
of HK$241,200,000 was recognised with the
residual value of HK$58,800,000, representing
equity element, presented in equity heading
“convertible bonds and warrants reserve”.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
of HK$14,717,000 were included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion. Transaction costs
relating to equity component of HK$3,588,000
were included in equity. The effective interest
rate of the liability component was 22.03% per
annum. Deferred tax liability of HK$9,702,000 was
recognised to the convertible bonds and warrants

reserve on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

31.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

7.5% Convertible bonds (continued)

The directors of the Company considered that
the fair values of the redemption options of the
7.5% Convertible Bonds at 31 March 2016 were

insignificant.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, part of
the 7.5% Convertible Bonds were converted into
110,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company with
aggregate par value of HK$1,375,000. Deferred
tax of approximately HK$2,028,000 was credited
to profit or loss during the year with deferred tax
liability of approximately HK$383,000 derecognised
upon conversion of the 7.5% Convertible Bonds.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, interest
charged on the 7.5% Convertible Bonds of
HK$23,613,000 was recognised in profit or loss.

The remaining 7.5% Convertible Bonds after the
conversion of approximately HK$233,813,000,
(Principal amount of HK$217,500,000) was fully
redeemed on 30 August 2015.

10.0% Convertible bonds
On 23 December 2015, the Company and

an investor entered into a convertible bonds
subscription agreement and pursuant to which the
Company agreed to place convertible bonds with
aggregate principal amount of US$10,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$77,505,000) to
the investor with maturity date on 29 June 2017
(the "10.0% Convertible Bonds"”). The issue of
10.0% Convertible Bonds was completed on 30
December 2015.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
10.0% Convertible bonds (continued)

The 10.0% Convertible Bonds were issued at par
and carried an interest rate of 10.0% per annum,
which was payable semi-annually in arrear from
the date of issue. As at 31 March 2017, the holder
of the 10.0% Convertible Bonds has the option to
either convert them into the Company’s ordinary
shares at a adjusted conversion price of HK$6.75
(2016: HK$0.83) per share, subject to conversion
price adjustments (including share consolidation,
share subdivision, share reclassification,
capitalisation issue and other events which have
dilutive effects on the issued share capital of the
Company as set out in the respective subscription
agreements), at any time during the period
commencing from 8 February 2016 up to the close
of business on the date falling ten days prior to
the respective maturity date. The conversion shares
shall rank pari passu in all respects with all other
existing shares outstanding at the date of the

conversion.

No early redemption at the option of the holders
of the 10.0% Convertible Bonds is allowed except
when (i) the shares of the Company cease to be
listed or admitted to trading, or when the shares
of the Company are suspended from trading for a
period equal to or exceeding 30 consecutive trading
days; or (i) there is a change of control over the
Company as set out in the respective subscription

agreements and trust deed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

31.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
10.0% Convertible bonds (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the terms and definitions
of the 10.0% Convertible Bonds are set out in the
respective subscription agreements and disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 24 December
2015.

In the presence of the conversion option, the
10.0% Convertible Bonds may not exchange a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instrument
for a fixed amount of cash. Therefore, the 10.0%
Convertible Bonds contain two components, the
amortised cost liability component (including closely
related early redemption option) and conversion
option derivative. The fair values of the liability
component and the conversion option derivative
of the 10.0% Convertible Bonds were determined
at the respective date of issue. The amortised cost
liability component represented the present value
of the contractual stream of future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market interest rate
of similar non-convertible instruments and carried
at amortised cost. The effective interest rate of
the liability component of the 10.0% Convertible
Bonds is 24.94%. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the liability component is carried at amortised cost
while the conversion option derivative is measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised

in profit or loss.
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10.0% Convertible bonds (continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the

fair values of the redemption options of the 10.0%

Convertible Bonds at the date of issuance, 31
March 2016 and 31 March 2017 are insignificant.

The movements of the liability component and

conversion option derivative of the 10.0%

Convertible Bonds for the year is set out below:

At 30 December 2015
(date of issue of 10.0%
Convertible Bonds)
Effective interest expense
recognised in profit or loss
Change in fair value

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2016

Effective interest expense
recognised in profit or loss

Interest paid

Change in fair value

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2017
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 31. WRRES (&)
10.0% Convertible bonds (continued) 10.0% ] AR &5 (&)
The fair value measurement was carried out by AFESHEHEAEEHRERE B
Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited, an VEEREBEEHET NEERYER
independent qualified professional valuer not B (E8)ERAAINIT
connected to the Group.
Fair values of the conversion option embedded in 10.0% A AR B H N iR R IR E R 3217
the 10.0% Convertible Bonds at the date of issue, B - —E—XF=A=+—HBE =
31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 are determined E—tF=A=1T—HZAFETH
using binomial option pricing model by the By GEMEA _BEXAAEEEERN
independent valuer, with inputs as follow: ErX - ®ABEBNAT:
Convertible Bonds
TERRES
30 December 31 March 31 March
2015 2016 2017
(date of issue)
—T—AHF —T-RE —E—tF
+=—A=tB =AR=+-H =RA=+-A
(#17RH)
Market price of N/NCIE S AR ]
the Company's shares (HK$) (&) 0.66 0.61 1.51
Strike price of conversion B BHOE
option (HK$) (BL) 0.83 0.83 6.75
Risk-free rate (%) B A (%) 0.3125 0.3508 0.2700
Expected volatility (%) T8 53R 18 (%) 56.45 55.62 137.73
Dividend yield (%) 1% 8.3 (%) - - -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 September
2012 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors, eligible employee and

consultants (collectively, the “Grantees”).

On 24 April 2013, 93,100,000 share options
(the “Share Options 1") were granted to the
Grantees who are entitled to subscribe for a
total of 93,100,000 new shares at an exercise
price of HK$0.58 per share with nominal value of
HK$0.0125 each in the capital of the Company
upon the exercise of the Share Options 1 in full.
Share Options 1 granted are exercisable from 24
April 2014 to 23 April 2023 and are vested in five
tranches given that the Grantees remain in service
of the Group at the beginning of each exercisable
period with (i) 20% shall become exercisable from
24 April 2014 to 23 April 2023; (ii) 20% shall
become exercisable from 24 April 2015 to 23 April
2023; (iii) 20% shall become exercisable from 24
April 2016 to 23 April 2023; (iv) 20% shall become
exercisable from 24 April 2017 to 23 April 2023
and (v) 20% shall become exercisable from 24 April
2018 to 23 April 2023.
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

On 29 November 2013, 15,000,000 share options
(the “Share Options 2”) were granted to the
Grantees who are entitled to subscribe for a
total of 15,000,000 new shares at an exercise
price of HK$0.70 per share with nominal value of
HK$0.0125 each in the capital of the Company
upon the exercise of the Share Options 2 in full.
Share Options 2 granted are exercisable from 29
November 2014 to 28 November 2023 and are
vested in five tranches given that the Grantees
remain in service of the Group at the beginning
of each exercisable period with (i) 20% shall
become exercisable from 29 November 2014 to 28
November 2023; (i) 20% shall become exercisable
from 29 November 2015 to 28 November 2023;
(iii) 20% shall become exercisable from 29
November 2016 to 28 November 2023; (iv) 20%
shall become exercisable from 29 November
2017 to 28 November 2023 and (v) 20% shall
become exercisable from 29 November 2018 to 28
November 2023.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME 32. EBRHESE (F)
(continued)
On 17 December 2013, 4,000,000 share options R—_ZE—=ZF%F+=-_A+ 8"
(the “Share Options 3”) were granted to the 4,000,000 B Akt ([EB R 131 ) 2
Grantee who is entitled to subscribe for a total BTABRAN BEARERBEITEE
of 4,000,000 new shares at an exercise price & 318 1 TR E T AR0.68 B TR AR
of HK$0.68 per share with nominal value of NAIRAREGREE0.0125B T LE
HK$0.0125 each in the capital of the Company $£4,000,000 8855 A% 17 © AT % 1 B8 AR 4
upon the exercise of the Share Options 3 in full. 3SR ZE—MFEF+ AT EHE=ZZ
Share Options 3 granted are exercisable from 17 ZE=F T Z AT ANBA T EI R
December 2014 to 16 December 2023 and are BAREAITEBINNRBE R A& R
vested in five tranches given that the Grantees ZHARTY AREE AP (0)20%
remain in service of the Group at the beginning AR ZE-—HF+_A++RE_ZE
of each exercisable period with (i) 20% shall Z=F+ZRAFNBITE: (i1)20%#
become exercisable from 17 December 2014 to 16 AR ZE-—RAF+ZA+ERE=ZE
December 2023; (i) 20% shall become exercisable —=ZF+ = A+ ]BTE ()20% 5
from 17 December 2015 to 16 December 2023; ARZE—AR"F+_A++tRAE=Z
(iii) 20% shall become exercisable from 17 ZEF+ZAFNBTE (iv)20%
December 2016 to 16 December 2023; (iv) 20% ARZE—+tF+_A++tRE=ZE
shall become exercisable from 17 December CTEFEFTZATARBITFERWV)20%
2017 to 16 December 2023 and (v) 20% shall AR-ZZ-NF+-A+tHE-ZT
become exercisable from 17 December 2018 to 16 Z=F+TZATRBEITE
December 2023.
The table below discloses movement of the TEREBAANR ZEBIRESZ
Company’s share options:
Number of
share options
BREHAR
At 1 April 2015 and RZZE-—RAFMNA—B K
31 March 2016 —E-XF=ZA=+—H 110,600,000
Adjustments upon rights issue (note ;) B IEITHE (Hati) 139,542,056
Adjustments upon share consolidation BN A PHEITHE
(note ii) (K1 atii) (220,595,438)
Forfeited during the year (note iii) F AW (B i) (20,355,141)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=HA=+—H 9,191,477
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

Note i:

Note ji:

Note i

As a result of the rights issue, adjustments
are required to be made to: (i) the exercise
prices and the number of the ordinary shares
falling to be issued upon exercise of the
outstanding share options in accordance with
the terms of the share option scheme; and (ii)
the conversion price of the convertible bonds.
Details of the adjustments are set out in the

announcement dated 18 November 2016.

As a result of the share consolidation,
adjustments are required to be made to the
Company’s outstanding share options in
accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme. Details of the adjustments are set out
in the Company's announcement dated 27
March 2017.

Share options were forfeited due to the
termination of service of certain staff and

consultants during the year.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

32.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tF =] =+—HILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME 32. BRESE (&)
(continued)

The following table discloses movement of and TRBETEARR A Z AT R 2 &
weighted average exercise prices of the Company's B) R inwE T 1TE(E -

exercisable share option:

2017 2016
“E-t% —E-RF
Weighted Number of Weighted Number of
average  exercisable average exercisable
exercise price options  exercise price options
MEE Ky TS A7
TRE  BREZE IHE  EREHE
HKS$ HK$
per share per share
=3 Bk
B BT
Exercisable at the beginning ~ AJ A E 4]
of the year hRd 0.600 44,240,000 0.600 22,120,000
Share option become RERTTRL
exercisable during the year ~ BERREZ B - 26,914,393 - 22,120,000
Adjustments upon rights issue 7t AR B 352 - 78,930,841 - -
Adjustments upon share NSRS
consolidation AR - (132,357,263) - -
Share option forfeited RERERZ
during the year EREHE - (12,213,085) - -
Exercisable at the end ARER
of the year 1% 6.6235 5,514,886 0.600 44,240,000

Annual Report 2017 44t | CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % FE v 4 13 B # it 45 B 23 )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

50 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2017

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

The Consultants provided services related to
the development of logistics services business
and financing guarantee services business. The
consultants who solely rendered services and
reported their duties to the Group since the last
reporting period. Such services are similar as in
nature to those rendered by employees of the
Group.

The closing prices of the Company’s shares on 24
April 2013, 29 November 2013 and 17 December
2013 which are the dates of grant of Share Options
1, Share Options 2 and Share Option 3 respectively,
were HK$0.58 per share, HK$0.70 per share and
HK$0.68 per share, respectively.

The fair values of the Share Options 1, Share
Options 2 and Share Options 3 determined at the
respective dates of grant using the binomial option
pricing model were HK$33,794,000, HK$6,508,000
and HK$1,689,000, respectively.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

32.

BRERE (A)

% 5 B SR A B WD O AR A5 S A5 S b
BRERMRGEBER RS -ZFE
A B L {8 R 5 A R 1) AN S [ 32 L AR
BRERREZBE A BIREEAK
SHEHESRE ZRBEERE-

AABRHR T —=FN A -+
A Z2—=F+—HA=Z+hBE=
E-=F+-ATtR(DAAER
B BRE2REREIZ R L BE)
W mED R AER0SSE L B
0.70% 7T & & %0.68/E 7T

FRZEAAECEEXBET ZBR
B BRE2RBEREINSEEEAR
B2 N F1ED R A33,794,000% 7T

6,508,0007% 7T f21,689,000/% 7T °
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-%F—tF =] =+—HILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME 32. EmR#ESHE (&)
(continued)
The following assumptions were used to calculate

THRRID AR EBBRER R L A
i A/NS S

the fair values of share options at the date of grant:

Grant date share price
BB HKRE
Exercise price

TE(E

Expected life

Ta &t 5

Expected volatility

T8 B R &

Dividend yield
SN EIE S

Risk-free interest rate
12 [ e A =

Share Options 1

Share Options 2

Share Options 3

24 April 2013 29 November 2013 17 December 2013

B IR B B IR #E2 B8 IR A3

—E-=F —E—-=F —E-—=F
mMA=+mWmA +—A=+"NH +t=A++tH
HK$0.58/%& 7T HK$0.707%& 7T HK$0.687%5 T
HK$0.58/%& 7T HK$0.707%& 7T HK$0.68/% 7T

7.75 years — 8.75 years 7.75 years — 8.75 years 7.75 years — 8.75 years
7.75% - 8.75%F 7.75% - 8.75% 7.75% - 8.75%F
60.68% 57.50% 56.93%

0% 0% 0%

0.46% - 0.77%

1.70% - 1.81%

2.01% - 2.18%

WA 2 2 TEJYER A A
B R H BB ATE
B2 BB BR D ERAARE
YRR 2 5T 2 B AT A o
RBRBDASERBREL AT
EEE-

The binomial option pricing model has been used
to estimate the fair value of the share options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the
best assessment of the directors of the Company
on the valuer’s estimation. Changes in variables and
assumptions may result in changes in the fair value
of the share options.
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32.

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

The number of share options granted expected
to vest has been reduced to reflect historical
experience of forfeiture of 0.90% of options
granted prior to completion of vesting period and
accordingly the share option expense has been
adjusted. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in the profit and loss over the
remaining vesting period, with a corresponding

adjustment to the share options reserve.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 31 August 2015, the Group completed the
acquisition of (i) the entire issued share capital
of E-Innovation Limited (“E-Innovation”) whose
principal activity is leasing of properties, and (ii)
sale loan of a subsidiary of E-Innovation (the “Sale
Loan”) due to Sino Virtue Holdings Limited (“the
Vendor”) at a total consideration of approximately
HK$830,846,000.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

32.

33.

BRERE (A)

REBHEXA BHRBENE R
LHEERERBED RS UARBRZ K
0.90%EREBEREMNE L LR R
REREBRADEAR -RREHR
AEEBTRESEEBOGTER
EEE - EITREMTHNEE (E)
RHRTHERTEIEEER RFYE
iR EELARERAE

Whis—EKE AR
R-E—FRENA=Z+—B K&£H
7 Ak LA 42 (K fZ #7830,846,0007% JT Uk
BOBEIERAR (148 HEx2%
BAMERE) 2 2HEBITRAR
(16 Bl Z — R Y B A Bl 45 RO 1B AR
BRAB([EH]) ZHEER ([
EEX]) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(continued)

E-Innovation is a company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) on 7 July 2014 with limited
liability and was then wholly owned by the
Vendor. It is an investment holding company and
its principal asset is its investment in High Express
International Limited (“High Express”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong on 15 January 2014
with limited liability. High Express in turn holds
73.375% of the equity interest in R /ELE%E
BB AT (Xi'an Tang Rong Real Estate Limited)
(“Tang Rong”) whose principal activity is leasing of
properties, and 73.375% of the equity interest in
AZRAZBH/EMKXEERLQF (Xi'an Da Ming
Gong Ba Qiao Furniture and Fixture Limited) (“Ba
Qiao”) whose principal activities are operation and

management of commercial buildings.

Tang Rong owns a land parcel situated at the east
side of Banyin Road, Bagiao District, Xi'an City,
Shaanxi Province, PRC (A EIBRFAE AL T % 1B
[Z¥ 3| HE A ("the Land”) and the shopping
mall building with a total gross floor area of
approximately 190,000 square meters comprising
seven-storey above ground and two basement
floors, situated on the Land (namely, Daminggong
Construction Materials and Furniture Shopping
Centre (Dongshanhuan Branch)) (“the Commercial
Complex”) and Ba Qiao owns the fixed assets in
the Commercial Complex and is principally engaged
in operation, and management of Commercial

Complex.

33.
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BEE—RBMR_ZT—NFEFLAtH
REBERAHE ((RBEBREH
BRMKIzERAR BRiEBE
FEEBRA -EA—HEEER AR
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A(EE] —HAR=_E—mF— A
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ZIERE - SBENMBEALERESE
ERAAI([ER] EXEXKAMR
EYE) 273.375%R M N 7 L KA
EREREMREERAG (ER/] -
HFXrZXBAEEREEMNEET)
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33.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(continued)

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement
signed between the Company and the Vendor
on 18 February 2015, the consideration shall be
partly satisfied by (i) HK$30,000,000 in cash and
paid within two months after signing of the sale
and purchase agreement; (ii) HK$450,000,000
in cash upon completion of the acquisition (the
"Completion”); (iii) HK$120,000,000 settled by
procuring the Company to issue the bond in the
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 carrying
interest rate of 12.0% due on the fifth anniversary
of the date of issue of the bond to the Vendor (or
its nominee) upon Completion; and (iv) allot and
issue of 398,009,950 shares of the Company to the
Vendor (or its nominee) upon Completion. On 31
July 2015 and 31 August 2015, the Company and
the Vendor entered into supplemental agreements
pursuant to which the parties agreed to revise
the means of settlement of the remaining cash
consideration of HK$450,000,000 to be paid
upon Completion with the unsecured bond with
aggregate principal amount of HK$450,000,000.
All these details are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 18 February 2015, 31 July
2015 and 31 August 2015 as well as the circular
of the Company dated 6 May 2015. The carrying
amount of the Sale Loan at the Completion is
approximately HK$379,353,000.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

33.

Wis—ENEBAR (&)

BEBEARABEFR-_ZT—AHF
ZATNBEEBZEEHZE RE
HEBRBATARIEH? : (WVR2
30,000,000 TN EEEE %
I 1E B RS2 s (i1)3R £450,000,000
BTRREXRKEEE([THR])E
2 (1i)120,000,00058 JT LA 4R {8 A
RARFTERRRES (KHEREBA) B
174 %/120,000,0008 7 « FIR A
120%EREFETHH ZEZERESF
ERIHzESAAIN RV E
PREFMEH (SER A A) R R
17398,009,950 A A A RN c A= E
—hAFtEtA=F+—BER=ZZE—HFN
A=+—RH AXRAREEHFI LT
i B ST A ERE SR TR
% 2 # T3 & X {8450,000,000/%8
TS E] B LA AR & #4858 /450,000,000
BLoEERES A NEN -
ﬁa%%%ﬁﬁw“ﬂ HE A=
—REFZA+NH- ﬁitﬁ
:+—E&:%—£¢J\H:+—H
Z"ﬁﬁl«%&$"ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ:9§*£¢
AARNBZBEHAN REREZHEE
B EEY A379,353,0008 7T °

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % I it 4 B B #% 47 IR 24 %) | Annual Report 2017 454t



33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W ik W ek

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-%F—tF =] =+—HILFE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 33. WE—EMEBLT (&)
(continued)
The directors of the Company considered that RRBIEERR WEHBEIRENE
acquisition of equity interest in E-Innovation and NElZ RIEBKEBE O R A K E
its subsidiaries constitute a business combination EANEBBER G REMAWEESE
and adopted the acquisition method to account HREEERBRESEEZ NEE
for the transaction. After re-assessment, the R H 2 T U %5 T 7R £9309,966,000
provisional amount of gain on bargain purchase BT -EERA KEFELRETH
arising as a result of the acquisition amounting to AR ATRABEERE M&E
approximately HK$309,966,000, was recognised in WEKNRFZANMEFRE 2R
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income. BRiekBBRARE LKTEA
In the opinion of the directors, the consideration ESARNRERBSHARD o #E
of the acquisition was mutually agreed between Fir &k -
the parties in an arm’s length basis and the gain
on bargain purchase is mainly attributable to the
immediate exit opportunity offered to the Vendor
and the opportunity provided to the Vendor to
acquire a significant amount of equity shares of the
Company through this acquisition.
Consideration transferred EEERE
HK$'000
T T
Bonds consideration BEHRE
(details set out in note 30) (FFIBERN M FE30) 570,000
Shares consideration (Note 1) R RAE (K7at1) 230,846
Deposit paid of HK$30,000,000 during the HE-—ZT—HAF=A=+—HIFEZ
year ended 31 March 2015 2 {14% 430,000,000 7T 30,000
Total consideration transferred EEEARE 830,846
Assignment of the Sale Loan (Note 2) HRHEER (Wiz2) (379,353)
Amount attributable to the acquisition of  UEE 14 &l Z B #E fE(h =
equity interest in E-Innovation TR 451,493
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F —LHFE=H =+ —HIL4FEE

33. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(continued)
Consideration transferred (continued)

Notes:

(1) The shares consideration is approximately
HK$230,846,000, representing the fair value of
398,009,950 new shares as at 31 August 2015.
The fair value of the ordinary shares of the
Company was determined by reference to the
published closing market price of HK$0.58 per
share at date of Completion.

(2) Upon acquisition date, High Express assigned
the Sale Loan due by the acquiree to the
Vendor at carrying amount of approximately
HK$379,353,000 to the Company.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to
HK$3,786,000 had been excluded from the
consideration transferred and had been recognised
as an expense in the current year, within the
“other administrative expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

33.

Wiz —EHEAR (&)

EEERE(F)
it -

(1 B% 9 R {E 49 £230,846,0007% T
R =—ZF—AaFNA=+—RHZ
398,009,950/ #T IR0 2 A F{E » &K
AEIEBRZ AFETIZERTK
HE 2 B AU THESRO0.58%E T
EE -

(2) RKREBE S5 RA QR EEW
WEARERERZEASEALN
379,353,000/ 8 L Z SHEE R ©

UeBE tB ARk 753,786,000/ TE B B 8
ERENKR YERAFEEREE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-%F—tF =] =+—HILFE

33.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 33.

(continued)

Consideration transferred (continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed by the

Group at fair value at the date of acquisition

are as follows:

Wis—ENEBAR (&)

BEEEAE (&)

AEERKWBEAHELAFEWREZE
EREREzEBENT:

HK$'000
FAT
Interest in an associate (Note 3) R—EE AR 2 s (fi23) 3,001
Property, plant and equipment ME  HENEE 2,284
Investment properties mEYE 2,218,339
Deposit paid for construction of EEREYMEZ
investment properties Bfiee 1,516
Trade receivables fEWE HERIA 4,913
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments — H b FEURERIE « 174 N IB A 208 1,420
Tax recoverable A 4 Bl F 18 7
Bank balances and cash RITEFLES 24,482
Other creditors and accrued charges HMENMBEELESTE R (13,407)
Construction costs accruals FEEH IR SRR K (8,268)
Profits tax liabilities FMEHAE (837)
Receipts in advance T8 YR IR (72,838)
Deposits received from tenants mEFLPWE ZIESE (27,284)
Amount due to the Company R AR RN T Z KA (379,353)
Loans from staff BETEX (10,869)
Bank and other borrowings fEﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁm (373,443)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 4) B IBEEE (Mit4) (194,248)
Less: non-controlling interests (Note 5) VB SRR AE RS (B AES) (413,956)
Gain on bargain purchase BB (309,966)
Total consideration transferred gEEARE 451,493
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33.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

(continued)

Consideration transferred (continued)

Notes:

€)

The associate was deregistered in December
2015. Relevant investment cost of HK$3,001,000
had been classified as other receivable as at year
ended 31 March 2016.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation
arising from the Land and the Commercial
Complex that are measured using the fair value
model, the concessionary tax rate of 15% is
applied as Tang Rong and Ba Qiao are recognised
as “Go-west” region development programme
corporate which is entitled to apply the rate
of 15%. The directors of the Company believe
that the Company can keep applying the 15%
concessionary tax rate under “Go West” region

development programme.

The non-controlling interest in Tang Rong and Ba
Qiao recognised at the date of acquisition was
measured by reference to the proportionate share
of the recognised fair value of net assets of Tang
Rong and Ba Qiao.

33.
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BEEEAE (&)

Hrat:

(©)

H-REE_T—R"F=A=1+—
H1EFE - HHEER E R A<3,001,000
BLEsBEAEMBEWREEE-

RIERAIFEREAEZ 1
FMHERBELEZRERE AR
FERRBRERAR [EERAT] R
HERBELE BEZEH15%Z
BE BB RAEERE15%
H-ARBEERRARBR [E#
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ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 33. WE—EKHEBLT (&)
(continued)
Net cash inflow on acquisition of E-Innovation W laal 2B RAFE
HK$'000
T T
Total cash consideration paid EN@BESRE 30,000
Less: Deposit paid during the year ended  JBi:EE-ZT—RHF
31 March 2015 =A=+—BHIEFEZENESE (30,000)
Add: Bank balances and cash acquired mTREBZETEFELERS 24,482
24,482

Included in the profits for the year ended
31 March 2016 was approximately HK$5,246,000
attributable to the additional business generated
by property investment business. Revenue for the
year ended 31 March 2016 included approximately
HK$44,888,000 generated from property
investment business. Had the acquisition been
completed on 1 April 2015, total group revenue
and profit for the year ended 31 March 2016
would had been approximately HK$234,097,000
and HK$156,939,000, respectively. The pro forma
information was for illustrative purposes only and
was not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 April 2015, nor was it intended to

be a projection of future results.

HE-_TZ—XFZAZ+—HLFE
AN BIERIEMEREEBEL
2 FE( 3 F495,246,0008 T - B = —
T—RFZA=Zt+-—BULEFERAL
TR I B T E & 2 #)44,888,000
B WNBEEEER _T—RFMN
A—BZ% BAEEBEE-Z—~
FZA=-+—"BLEFEZHBRAK
i M #5958l 49 5234,097,00008 7T &
156,939,000/ 7T © & ERHEEF A
A mMA—EXRRWKEEFBEER
—ET-RAFEWNA—ARK AEEE
R EB WA REESEE 1T
BERIRSELE ZTEA
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #% % —

LA S+ —H IR

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 3. FHARAE

Corporate guarantee

Guarantee given to banks in
respect of financing guarantee
services provided to:

— Independent third parties
— Related parties

As at 31 March 2017, excluding the financing
guarantee contracts of approximately
HK$2,977,000 (2016: HK$2,418,000), the net
outstanding guarantee given to banks in respect of
financing guarantee services provided amounted
to approximately HK$401,696,000 (2016:

HK$326,316,000).

Details about the management of credit risk by the

Group regarding these financing guarantees are set

out in note 39.

AR
2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FExT
AT S GRS
BEERBREmMEERITIELZ
ER

—-BYE=H 390,563
—fEAL 14,110
404,673

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ A 4 1B B % 5 4 R 22 3] | Annual Report 2017 4 #t

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHET

303,603
25,131

328,734

R-ZE—tFEZA=Z+—H Ba¥g
EREHIH2,977,0008 T (ZZF— X
% :2,418,0008 70) N BLATR 2
BEERBRBARTIEL 2 W REE
R FEEL) A401,696,00087C (—F
—7N%F 326,316,000/ 7T ) °

AEERZEMEEREEEERR
Z A IEEN I EE39 ©
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of the relevant
payroll costs or capped at HK$1,500 (based on the
choice of employees) to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme in Hong Kong, which contribution is

matched by employees.

The employees of the Company's subsidiaries in the
PRC are members of retirement benefits schemes
operated by the PRC government. The relevant PRC
subsidiaries were required to contribute certain
percentages of the monthly salaries of their current
employees to fund the benefits. The employees
were entitled to retirement pension calculated
with reference to their basic salaries on retirement
and their length of service in accordance with
the relevant government regulations. The PRC
government was responsible for the pension liability
to the retired staff.

The employer’'s contributions to the retirement
benefits scheme charged to profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$811,000
for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK$916,000).

35.
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36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as

follows:
As lessee
Within one year —F RN
In the second to F_EFRF
fifth year inclusive (BHEEEMFLA)

Operating lease payments represent rental payable
by the Group for its office premises and equipment.

Leases are negotiated for a term ranging from one
to three years and rentals are fixed for the lease

period.

REHEERE

RI|MERR AEER AT RBEL S
MEZARKEEEN K2R EB 0
T

YA
2017 2016
—®—tF —F-AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHRT FHT
6,929 6,670
11,101 1,224
18,030 7,894

REMENFEARERINERST
BRhERENES -

BECHBMAR—E==F HEHR
e BEE -
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. REHEAE (&)
(continued)
As lessor ERHEA
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Within one year —F R 5,530 5,137
Operating lease income represents rental receivable KEBERAEREEREEELRE
by the Group for its leasing of retail shop, offices EXEBAZZEEREF HRAEREE
and car park in the Commercial Complex. Mm@k B -
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. BEXREIE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHEIT

Capital expenditure contracted BRI AME I R

but not provided for RE SRR

in the consolidated financial TEL B 2

statements in connection BEARRE

with the investment properties HERRE

under construction MEEH 77,986 240,014
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38.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of the
amounts due to related companies and a director,
10.0% convertible bonds, 7.5% coupon bonds and
bank and other borrowings which are disclosed in
notes 26, 31, 30 and 27, respectively and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves. The directors
of the Company monitor current and expected
liquidity requirement as well as the summary
compliance report on loan covenants regularly.
The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a continuous basis. As part of this
review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends and
issuance of new shares as well as raise of new
bank/other borrowings or advances from related
parties and the repayment of existing bank/other

borrowings or repayment to related companies.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

38.

EXERER

AEBEERAES UHARAEERN
ZERBEBEAUELE T ALE
[F] B 718 48 i BB A5 Bl i an 2 TR AR 1
ZFEMRRRFREAR R NE
B BEREEEFHLRFIE

REBE 2 EREBBRENE26 31 -
30R27TD R EBR BT REE R Al R
—REEHRFE10.0%A BRESE-
T5%EEEHFARRITREMER
RAEARNGIHEAELHERZ BED %
TRARFEHE ARRESTEHER
BREEBHARDESCTEURETE
RELEBR-ARFEERERTE
REB-EART 2 —BHD  AQFE
FEEREARZRAREEKRERZE
B AR ARRESZHBEER A&
B E BT E R EITH AR D A &
BSHRIT HMERKRERBES
ZERRREBRBRTHEMERRK
BEMBARFENEHEEREEAR
Ko
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. €@IT A
Categories of financial instruments ETRITANE
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Financial assets EHEE
Loans and receivables Bk pE AR IR
(including cash and (BEE2 X
cash equivalents) ReFMEIEAR) 736,107 425,796
Financial liabilities THBE
Amortised cost PR 1,699,612 1,732,117
Financial liabilities classified as NEREAVEITAERN
at FVTPL — conversion option TREE-BRANTBRRES
derivative embedded in i g
convertible bonds PTETA 121 7,891
Financing guarantee contracts BEERE L 2,977 2,418
Obligations under finance leases  &h & 0 & A& & 1,481 2,279
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, bills receivables, loan receivables,
other receivables and deposits, amounts due from/
to former subsidiaries, amounts due to related
companies, amount due to a director, amount
due to ultimate holding company, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
construction cost accruals, other payables and
accruals, loan from staff, obligations under
finance leases, bank and other borrowings, 10.0%
convertible bonds, conversion option derivative
embedded in convertible bonds, 7.5% coupon
bonds and financing guarantee contracts. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk, other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

39.

ERIHE (&)

PiERAKRERBZEEEE
AEBZFIEZSRIABERERKRES
BRI - EWEE BRER  EiERK
BRI IR S - Y e AT B A A
RIE - FENBEARRE BN —2E
ERIE BNEKERARRRE 2K
ARITERX ROTEELRS BN
B HHRIE - ERT AR - HAb e AR
BREGER BIER BMEHEER
2 RITREMEF10.0% TR E
FoMARBRBREFCBRETET
B 75%Z R BHRBMEEREGDN-
ZESRIAEFBREMTIHE M
Z%%QIEE@ZH& EmEE
B @R - = @ &EM?WH
»"2) 'f;ffﬂﬁA //\L@Jé(iﬂ
%%E\JB¢{K§2%HE§ZE§%°EEEE
BREZEZERE  ABRRERERR
HEREGEE < ik e

HP

ok ol
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. €@T R (&)
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies EREREIREBIERBCR (&)

(continued)

Market risk 7712 ] [

Currency risk ]

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign AATRETFHBRFAG NI ESE Y
currency sales, which expose the Group to foreign feE . SARE B EEEINE RS o o
currency risk. In addition, certain trade receivables, BEREBEE N EEI EF
bills receivables, bank balances and trade payables FEWE SRR EUNEYE  IRITREE R
are denominated in foreign currencies other than FERE 5 ERTEY LASNEESHE -

the functional currency of the respective group

entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign 2 (B TR B S 4 O S BB o SR T
currency hedging policy. However, management EHEeERIIERBICHETE
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will EEY I E AN ERE o

consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign PAGNEESHE R EBEBEER S
currency denominated monetary assets and BEARESHHAEmEN T :
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE &
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF —E-RF “2-t§ —T-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THRT TR TR
United States dollars ("US$") %7t ([%7]) 82,363 112 262,011 77,192
Renminbi (“RMB") ARE ([AR®]) 85,898 30,775 - -
168,261 30,887 262,011 77,192
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

For certain group entities whose functional currency
is either HK$ or MOP, the change in exchange
rate of its functional currency against MOP or US$
or HK$ respectively has not been considered in
the sensitivity analysis below as HK$ is pegged to
US$ and MOP is always stabilised with unchanged
value to HK$. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Group does not expect any
significant movements between the exchange rate
of US$ and MOP against HK$.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has significant
monetary assets denominated in RMB as the foreign
currency of the group entity. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end
for a 5% change in the foreign currency exchange
rate. A positive number below indicates increase in
post-tax profit (2016: increase in post-tax profit) for
the year where RMB strengthen 5% against HKS,
the functional currency of the group entity. For a
5% weakening of RMB against HK$, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
profit (2016: post-tax loss) for the year and the
balances below would be negative.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

ERIE (&)

R EREARREE (&)

R (&)

BEiEmE (F)

BREE D
METAEBETHRMITRNEEER
SEERMmME  EATMETEE m
R TEERBTEERBETE I
BEEE S RIMEEIRM T ETTIA T
2 PER GBI M E BRI T HURE
DA ARBEERE  FNEBETEH
ETXRBRMTHEES T ENESRT
gEERERE

RZIE—tF=A=+—RH X&H
BAUARE ((FAEEERZING)
AEZEREREE-MAZHBRE
LER5% ERENEESEBTR
THMEER 7 AT LB - FRE NN
EBEERFRINEFTEEREE I
MEWINEEXRSEPNFRFEZRSF
HHZBB -THEHEXRTEARE
SR EEERZIEERBETIHE
5% & < ANFERR BN (=
T—RFBREGNIZM) AR
BRBTTIES%  MEHARFREEN
BEMN(ZE-—RF - BKREEE)E
RERERZEZER T XEHRBRE
2o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39.

(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Increase in post-tax profit RNE BRI G N
for the year

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign currency risk in relation to RMB
impact as the end of the reporting period exposure

does not reflect the exposure during the year.

ERIHE (&)

R EREARREE (&)

w5 (&)
BEmEE (&)
BRRE DI (&)

RMB
AR
Year ended 31 March
BEZHA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—®—t&E —EAAE
HK$000 HK$'000
FHw Fi T
3,586 1,285

HRBEMR AR TRERERZ
Rz BARBEERBGRE DT
REBARB ZAEINERRTZEL
TEARMKE-
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to the impact of interest rate changes
on variable-rate bank borrowing, variable-rate bank
overdraft, variable-rate loan receivables, pledged

bank deposits and bank balances.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the impact of interest rate
changes on obligations under finance leases,
fixed-rate loan receivables, fixed-rate bank and
other borrowing, 7.5% coupon bonds and 10.0%

convertible bonds.

The Group's exposure to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section in this note. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of the HIBOR and PBOC
Rate arising from the Group’'s HK$ and RMB
denominated borrowings as well as the Group’s
HK$ denominated loan receivable.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need

arise.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

39.

ERIHE (&)

R ERARREE (&)

TSR ()
AEERFIEEHETLBTER
FRBTEY T ERMER  DHEA
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

For the variable-rate bank balances at 31 March
2017 and 2016, the directors consider the Group's
exposure to future cash flow interest rate risk is
minimal taking into account the minimal fluctuation
on market interest rate and the carrying amounts
at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, no

sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is presented.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below were determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
variable-rate bank borrowing, variable-rate bank
overdraft and variable-rate loan receivable at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis was
prepared assuming the amount of liability and asset
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis
point (2016: 25 basis point) increase or decrease
represented management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points (2016: 25
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 March 2017 would decrease/
increase by HK$2,127,000 (2016: post-tax profit
decrease/increase by HK$554,000).

39.

ERIHE (&)

R EREARREE (&)

5 EE (&)

= @ g ()
HMR-_FB—ttFRZZE-RF=A
=S+—RZEERITEFME - K5
KT 35 M) R B B /N R B A B R o R
AOEEE EFTRREAEBZRK
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2HBEBMERER 2 BEREDNT -

N

%

BRERE D
THSFREREDNTERERRE BRT
BRTER FERITBEIRZEE
WERZFERR - Z5H MEP“ﬁ
EHRzZEREEABEREESERN
BEFEHAEEMSIE - 25EE 2
ZE-NF25EEE) EASTHR
REEBREBEFIGFEABBRATHEZ
AREEE) o

ﬁ

WA EEF TH25EES(ZF

Aizﬂéﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm A B
WEHLE AEBEHZE —tF=
H:+—E¢¢§z%m&ﬁﬂgﬁ
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent interest rate risk as the end of the
reporting period exposure does not reflect the

exposure during the year.

Other price risk

The Group is required to estimate the fair value
of the conversion option derivative embedded in
the convertible note at the end of each reporting
period with changes in fair value to be recognised
in the profit or loss as long as the convertible note
is outstanding. The fair value adjustment will be
affected either positively or negatively, amongst
others, by the changes in market interest rate,
the Company’s share market price and share price

volatility.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk and volatility risk arising from conversion option
derivative at the end of the reporting period only
as the directors of the Company consider that
the change in market interest rate may not have
significant financial impact on the fair value of
conversion option derivative.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

ERIE (&)

R EREARREE (&)

w5 (&)
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ARAEERR WHRE D3 E
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. @I R (&)

(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies EREREIREBIERBCR (&)

(continued)

Market risk (continued) 5 e (B

Other price risk (continued) Eu B (&)

Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRREDN (&)

0) Changes in share price (i) fi% (8 & &)
If the Company’s share price had been 5% WARARE LA TBS%
higher/lower and all other variables were i P 7B b B B s 5 & Al
held constant, the Group's profit for the AEBARFERMNE (BBK
year (as a result of changes in fair value of BUETARAFENESmME
conversion option derivative) would decrease H )R #96,00058 7T, 8 AN 4D
by approximately HK$6,000/increase by 6,000/ JT °

approximately HK$6,000.

(i) Changes in volatility iy  FEE
If the volatility of the Company’s share price fif A8 X A R 18 /O R IR 38 R
had been 5% higher/lower while all other 5% - AT A Ho At B B T
variables were held constant, the Group's g OAAEEAFEN RS
profit for the year (as a result of changes in (AR ETETIAEATENE
fair value of conversion option derivative) &) if = 4E ) 18 h1 496,000/ 7T,
would increase by approximately HK$6,000/ WL #)6,000/8 7T ©

decrease by approximately HK$6,000.
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financing guarantees provided
by the Group arises from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financing guarantees provided by the Group as
disclosed in the note 34.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation
to receivable generated from interior decoration
work and trading of consumer goods, regarding
counterparties failure to discharge the obligation
to the Group, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt as stated above, loan receivable and
amounts due from former subsidiaries at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

39.

EWMITR (&)
BBERERRBREE (&)

=B mR
AEBERER S AREBITRERK
SERHCBEERMIZPHELX
ZERBEERR TIRBEEHEHBR
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. €@T R (&)

(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies EREREIREBIERBCR (&)
(continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERE (&)

Regarding the policies in order to minimise the RAEREERER ZEERBEIGN
credit risks of the loan receivable, only referral BHEMS AEBEESENEENR
customers and short term borrowing requests REHIEREES - AN EEEBPI B B
are accepted. Besides, the credit department is EHEMEERSR THITIBEERE
responsible for formulating appropriate credit EREURBITEEN G RAART
policies. It also conducts background and credit BITESRERZAUHRE— PR E-
searches and carries out credit assessment and RERRBRITESTLEZSTERK
submits proposal to executive directors of the TEEBRENEPT B  UE
Company for further consideration. Then the EEAHEER - Hig FEMBFIEH
executive directors of the Company take reference ETEREBEERIUTHESEATE
of these information and assess the financial EAMAREREZ ERZ AT BRI -

position of each referral customer to consider if
the loan is approved. Subsequently, the credit
department performs subsequent loan review
regularly to assess if any outstanding loan requires
attention to its collectability.
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk (continued)

In relation to the Group’s provision of guarantees
to secure obligations of customers for repayment
of their bank borrowings, if there is a default
in repayment by these customers, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding bank
borrowings together with any accrued interests
and penalties owed by the customers to banks.
Such guarantees will be released by banks upon
the repayment of the underlying loans. In order to
minimise the credit risks of these loans, only referral
customers are accepted and short term guarantees
are granted. Besides, the credit department conduct
background and credit searches and submit to
executive directors of the Company for further
consideration. Then the executive directors of the
Company take reference of these information
and assess the financial position of each referral
customer before the guarantee is granted. In
addition, the credit department performs site visit
and loan review regularly to ensure follow up
action is taken to recover overdue debts, if any.
Further, certain portion of those loans had been
settled by the customers to banks subsequently. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk on such guarantees is
significantly reduced. Detailed disclosure of these

guarantees is set out in note 34.

The Group's bank balances and pledged bank
deposits, are placed with banks of high credit rating
and reputation and the Group has limited exposure

to any single financial institution.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

39.

EWMIR (&)
BBERERRBREE (&)

=EmRE (&)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is in Hong Kong and Macau,
which accounts for 38.9% (2016: 28.6%) of the
trade and bills receivables and 64% of the loan
receivable (2016: 100%). Further, the Group has
concentration of credit risk of the refundable
deposit paid for prepaid lease payments for land. In
the opinion of directors of the Company, given such
deposit is placed at the PRC government authority

directly, relevant credit risk is limited.

At 31 March 2017, the Group has the
concentration of credit risk as 51% (2016: 85%)
from the loan receivable is due from an individual
borrower which is owner of a coal mine company
with sound financial position and an individual
borrower which is a non-controlling shareholder
of a related company with sound financial position
(2016: a company which is the subsidiary of a
listed company in Hong Kong with sound financial
position and owner of a construction company
with sound financial position). Management of
the Company assigned a team to closely follow
up the debts due. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company consider the risk has been properly
addressed. Other than that, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers.

39.

EWMIR (&)
BBERERRBREE (&)

EEREE (&)
AEBZEREERRZHENE
B DERRBBERRM  E@EME
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R-E—+tFE=ZA=Z+—HB K&£H
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Other than the concentration of credit risk on bank
balances, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills
receivables, loan receivable and amounts due from
former subsidiaries, the Group has no significant

concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank and other

borrowings.

The Group relied on bank and other borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. The Group
monitored and reviewed periodically the conditions
of loan covenants of the existing banking facilities
and tried all efforts to comply with the loan
covenants. In case of any breach of the loan
covenants noted, the Group would communicate
with the respective bank to discuss the possibility of
revising the relevant loan covenants and arranging

for waiver of immediate repayment.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

39.

EWMITR (&)
BBERERRBREE (&)

=EmERE (&)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The directors of the Company closely monitor the

liquidity of the Group. Taken into account of:

(i)

(iii)

internal financial resources;

the availability of the Group’s credit facilities
of approximately HK$1,010,522,000 as at 31
March 2017, of which HK$977,251,000 has
been drawn down subsequently; and

loan facilities from Mr. Li and a company
controlled by Mr. Li totaling approximately
HK$626,400,000 pursuant to the loan
agreements entered into between the
Company and these parties on 16 June 2016
and 1 September 2016 respectively and
the supplementary agreements on 3 March
2017.

The directors of the Company consider that the

Group will have sufficient working capital to

finance its operations and to meet its financial

obligations as and when they fall due for the

foreseeable future. On this basis, the consolidated

financial statements have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

39.

50 W i W

WE=F—LEZA = — AL
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for financial liabilities are based on

the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting

period.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

39.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. &@TI R (&)
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies EREREIREBIERBCR (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) BBz AR (F)
Liquidity tables HEE2IFK
Weighted Total
average  On demand Total carrying
effective  orless than 3 months to 1-2 Over undiscounted ~ amounts at
interest rate 3 months 1 year years 2 years cash flows 31.3.2017
R=-Z-t&
MERS RER, =fA *¥E =ZA=t-RH
31.3.2017 EBAE  HRZER 2-F -ZWE BBME BRERENE CHRER
—Z-tE=fA=t+-H % per annum HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERE% TR TER FERL TER TEn FER
Trade payables ENESEE - 27,841 10,824 - - 38,665 38,665
Other payables and accruals — EfENEERENER - 42,497 14,577 - - 57,074 57,074
Construction cost accruals EHBERA - 25,368 - - - 25,368 25,368
Amount due to a director ER-2EFHEE - - 1,000 - - 1,000 1,000
Amounts due to related ERBEARRE
companies - 203,912 - - - 203,912 203,912
Amount due to ultimate ER&REERA KR
holding company - 844 - - - 844 844
Amount due to former ERRIHBARSRE
subsidiaries - - - 7,337 - 7,337 7,337
Loans from staff BIEH 12.5 248 5,552 - - 5,800 5,155
Other borrowing - fixed rate ~ EEH-E & 12~12.5 5,589 51,576 5,057 - 62,222 58,060
Bank borrowing - variable rate  $TE 28 1.25~75 151,447 200,258 298,526 395,591 1,045,822 968,477
Borrowings related to bills BHEEREZRHT
discounted with recourse EEEMIER 1.55~1.66 45,369 - - - 45,369 45,308
Bank overdraft - variable rate  $ETEX %8 5.25 5,001 - - - 5,001 5,001
Obligations under finance leases 347 & &
- fixed rate —ER 2.75 216 648 720 - 1,584 1,481
7.5% coupon honds 15%REEH
- fixed rate -8 15 - 215,000 - - 215,000 206,688
10.0% convertible bonds, 10.0% AR ES -
included the embedded BENERESZ
derivative components of RARITETLASH
convertible bonds 24,94 81,714 - - - 81,714 76,844
Financing quarantee contracts ~ BE A ERAL
issued
- Maximum amount guarantee  — S B BER
(note 34) (Hi#34) - 404,673 - - - 404,673 -
994,719 499,435 311,640 395,591 2,201,385 1,701,214
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39.
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity tables (continued)

¢RI HE (&)

R ERARREE (&)

mEBETEE (B
REEZ K (&)

Weighted On demand Total
average or 3 months Total aarrying
effective less than to 1-2 Over  undiscounted amounts at

interest rate 3 months 1 year years 2 years cash flows 31.3.2016

RZE-R%F

METH RERK “fEA KE®E =A=1+-AH

3132016 ERAE  HRZEA B-F —EWE BBME ReNBLE BBEE

“E-R"5ZA=t+-H % per annum HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFEY TR TER T FHL FEL FET

Trade payables ENESEE - 13,664 - - - 13,664 13,664

Other payables and accruals Bt ENEEREBRE - 18,146 16,262 - - 34,408 34,408

Construction cost accruals JESHREN K - 206,134 - - - 206,134 206,134

Amount due to a director Eff-2ZSHRE - 16,320 - - - 16,320 16,320
Amounts due to related ERBEARRE

companies - 37,817 - - - 37,817 37,817
Amounts due to former EREREARRE

subsidiaries - - - - 6,436 6,436 6,436
Loans from staff BIE 12,5 11,838 - - - 11,838 11,838
Other borrowing - fixed rate  EtEH-T & 1247 5,944 65,646 5,361 - 76,951 71,041
Bank borrowing - variable rate  $TE 28 8.16 30,017 13,859 62,824 206,455 313,155 303,785
Bank overdraft - variable rate  $R{TEX 38 5.25 4,875 - - - 4,875 4,875
Obligations under finance leases & & 7 &%

- fixed rate ) 277 234 705 865 720 2,524 2,219
7.5% coupon bonds - fixed rate 7.5%ZEEH-T & 11.61 - 15,000 215,000 - 230,000 198,546
8.0% coupon bonds - fixed rate 8.0%Z&E% -8 1213 - 216,000 - - 216,000 201,684
12.0% coupon bonds - fixed rate 12.0%Z & EH -7 & 12 443,011 14,400 14,400 163,200 635,011 558,886
10.0% convertible bonds, 10.0%M A& ES

included the embedded BENHRRESZ

derivative components of RAATETERS

convertible bonds 24.94 3,877 3,877 89,314 - 97,068 74,574

Financing quarantee BELREERAD

contracts issued
- Maximum amount guarantee  — S B BIER
(note 34) (Hit34) - 328,734 - - - 328,734 -
1,120,611 345,749 387,764 376,811 2,230,935 1,742,281

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ A 4 I8 B % 5t 4 R 22 3] | Annual Report 2017 4E#t



39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

50 W i W
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity tables (continued)

The amount included above for financing guarantee
contracts is the maximum amount the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period,
the directors of the Company consider that it is
less likely that the amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are

guaranteed suffer credit losses.

39.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity tables (continued)

As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, the
bank borrowing with a repayment on demand
clause was included in the “on demand or less
than 3 months” time band in the above maturity
analysis. The aggregate carrying amounts of this
bank borrowing amounted to HK$5,393,000
(2016: HK$6,245,000). Taking into account the
Group’s financial position, the directors of the
Company did not believe that it was probable
that the bank would exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such bank
borrowing would be repaid one to six years (2016:
one to seven years) after the reporting date in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreement. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
would amount to HK$5,832,000 (HK$1,006,000
repayable within 1 year, HK$1,006,000 repayable
1 to 2 years, HK$3,016,000 repayable 2 to 5
years and HK$804,000 repayable over 5 years)
(2016: HK$6,837,000 (HK$1,001,000 repayable
within 1 year, HK$1,001,000 repayable 1 to 2
years, HK$3,003,000 repayable 2 to 5 years and
HK$ 1,832,000 repayable over 5 years).

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

EWMITR (&)
BBERERRBREE (&)

///usﬁﬁﬁ_f” (Zi)
TBERE (&)
RZE—+tF=ZA=+—B k=%
—RNEFEZA=Z+-—8B HEEAKE
KEBIERZBITERDE LEXRE
MNP ATRERSI LR =@
AlZEBEBR -ZBTEREmMER
% /55,393,000 L (Z T — K F:
6,245,000 L) - & R A K E K
BSAR ARARESHERITTKX
ARETEERNEREERANFEER
RARREEHEZRITERERR
ARG —E=2~F(ZE—X~F:
—ELF)ARBEERBHETMEE
EREOHEE-ER X2 REMNER
& 255 55,832,000 T (—
FNE(EIE1,006,0008L — W
FREEE,006,0008C MEFR
F N FE(EE3,016,000/8 7T & L F LA
+ FE{838804,000/ 7T) (:;:*
% 16,837,000 0 (— F R FEL
1,001,000 L —E M F AN E
1,001,000 L MERFANERE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. &@TI R (&)

(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies EREREIREBIERBCR (&)

(continued)

Fair value - FE

This note provides information about how the AMFRUEBAESEEEZESH

Group determines fair value of various financial BERSBABBEATENAENE

assets and financial liabilities. #} o

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities (1) REF AL BN F (A
that are measured at fair value on a FTEREFR EA) N FE

recurring basis

The conversion option derivative embedded REREHR RAATBRKRE
in convertible bonds is measured at fair HFZBMBRETETAERATE
value at the end of each reporting period. FEC-TERMHFENREMHEH
The following table gives information about ZHRRETETI AN TFENE
how the fair value of this conversion option ERAEMER (LERMEKA
derivative is determined (in particular, the WEERERBAMB) -

valuation technique and inputs used).

Fair value at Fair value Valuation technique and Significant
Financial liability 31 March 2017 hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs
RZB-t%
ZAZT-BH
SREE AYVE AYEER HEFEARTERAE BEXTUEERAE
Conversion option Conversion option Level 3 Binominal option pricing model Volatility of the share price of
derivative derivative embedded in ~ E=[E “HEASEEERE the comparable companies,
embedded in convertible bonds: determined by reference to
convertible bonds US$15,600 (equivalent The fair value is estimated based on the historical share price of
RATSRES 2% to HK$121,000) the key inputs: risk-free interest the comparable companies
RENTETAR (as at 31 March 2017) rate, discount rate, share price (from  (Note)
RATRRES 2 BRENT observable market date), volatility of T & LB A FIRERELLR
ATA 1560057 (1 the share price of the comparable AENBRAABERER
F5121,000870) (R companies, dividend yield and exercise B (47:2)
ZE-tFZA=T- price
) RETEGAE: BERAE HRE R

B(RUBRTEUEEL)
AEHBRABRERE REXR
IRERFATE
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Fair value (continued)
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis (continued)

Fair value at Fair value
Financial liability 31 March 2017 hierarchy
R-ZE-tf
ZA=+-H#
tRAR AYE ATEER
Conversion option Conversion option Level 3
derivative derivative embedded in =~ £=E
embedded in convertible bonds:

convertible bonds US$1,018,000
RATRRES 2 (equivalent to
BRENETE HK$7,891,000)
(as at 31 March 2017)
RATRRES 2
BRENAETE:
1,018,000 7 (A5 H
7,891,000%7T)
(RZZT—t%F
=A=+-A)

Note: The higher the volatility of the share price
of the comparable company, the higher
the fair value of the conversion option
derivative. The volatility of the share price
of the Company used in the fair value
measurement is 137.73% (2016: 55.62%).
Details of the sensitivity analysis is set out
in “other price risk”.

39.

EWMIA (&)
BBERERRBREE (&)

NFE(E)
(i) NI B A pE M B E

EFfEN TR ENLFE
(%)

Valuation technique and Significant

key inputs

unobservable inputs

HEFEREERAE EXTTERBAE

Binominal option pricing model Volatility of the share price of
“HEABEEERY the comparable companies,

determined by reference to

The fair value is estimated based on the historical share price of
the key inputs: risk-free interest rate, ~ the comparable companies
discount rate, share price (Note)

(from observable market date),

volatility of the share price of the ~ ATE LB A B RERBLLRT
comparable companies, dividend yield ~ &Lt EIARRAKERET
and exercise price (Bis)

BEFEGAE: BARAE BRE-R
B(RITBETAHESL) TELR
DARERE REERTEERTA

7

MiF: AELBRAFKRERER
R -BBEETETAAQF
BERm AFETFEMHE
ARARRREKREA
137.73% (=& — N4 :
55.62% ) ° BRE D ITEEIE
R TEMERRR] A -
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HWE-F—-EtF=H=+—HILFE

39. &¢@TH (&)

(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies EREREIREBIERBCR (&)
(continued)

Fair value (continued) NFE(E)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities (1) I B LA B N

that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

measurements of financial liabilities

At 30 December 2015 (date of
issue of convertible bonds)

Fair value gain recognised in
profit or loss

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2016
Fair value gain recognised
in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2017

RZE—RF+=-A=+H
(AT AR EAETRE)

WBR R Y ATEYE
E %
R-ZE—RF=ZA=+—H
WER R Y ATEYS
FE 3

VA
EFfEN TR ENLFE
(%)
TREBEF-ERATVEFEY
B

]

Conversion
option derivative
embedded in
convertible
bonds
BRATBRRESZ
BRRETETR
HK$'000

TFHET

12,246

(4,324)
31

7,891

(7,753)
(17)

121
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Fair value (continued)

()

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

The Group engages qualified external
valuers to perform valuations for financial
instruments. The accounting officer reports
the findings of the valuation prepared by
the qualified external valuers to the board
of directors of the Group every half year
and explain the cause of fluctuations in
the fair value of the financial instruments.
Information about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value
of various assets and liabilities are disclosed

above.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
that are not measured on a recurring basis
The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
As at 30 December 2015, the fair values of
Convertible Bonds (categorised within Level
3 hierarchy) of approximately US$8,426,000
(equivalent to HK$65,307,000) have been
determined using discounted cash flows at
an appropriate debt yield which being the
sum of base interest rate, based on the yield
of Exchange Fund Bills & Notes.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

39.
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RREEBRREEK (&)
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(i) PEEBAE T 1 EE N
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(%)
AT EHEREERF

AEEERIEAERIIBMEE
M emITEETHE 25
TEBFFALAKEESTSR
ERERINEHEMRRNMG
BER UMESHRTARYF
BRBNERERE- - BREGES X
UEEESEREERBEBRF
EBEfANBAENERERE
SRR

WA R B2 H
BEREBENLTFE

EERAE REEUBHHRRIL
B ALENEMSRE
EksREENET BN
HEAFEMERE-R=_Z—*h
F+_A=+8 "BRE
FMATE(FEAE=E)
#4158,426,000% 7T (1 & R
65,307,000/ 7T ) « JofF FA1&iE
BrEBRER (AEERNE
B BIBINEE € TR 2 W
RAENUIBRESREET -
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40.

41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

50 W i W

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2016,
110,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company,
with aggregate par value of HK$1,375,000,
were issued upon the partial conversion of 7.5%
convertible bonds. Besides, 398,009,950 ordinary
shares of the Company with aggregate par value
of approximately HK$4,975,000, and 12.0%
coupon bonds with aggregated principal amount
of HK$570,000,000 were allotted and issued as
partial consideration in acquisition of a subsidiary
respectively. Details are set out in note 33.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with related parties

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
provided financing guarantee services to the related
companies which are constituted as continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and
the amounts as listed in the table below:

m (#ri)

o

Related Companies (Note) =

Note: Companies in which the controlling shareholder
of the Company (who is also a director of the
Company) or the relatives of this controlling
shareholder has significant influence to these
companies (“Related Companies”).

40.

41.

FEHFRERS
REE-_ZE—X<XF=ZA=+—81
FEAN AREIHEEE375000%8
JL2110,000,0000% & 3@ % E 5 2
DT 5% ] AR & FH R BT o Ut
AN+ NN E) HE T {E 494,975,000 7T
2.398,009,9500% & i X K AN & 42 58
570,000,000/ L 212.0% % B &%
BRIl R ETUEAKEN B A
Al2HARE - FBEHNHFE33 -

BEALXRS

HEBEALZRS
REBEE-_T—tF=A=T—HIF
BEA AEERBERRREBEE
IR MARE EHARA BERSE
T ERER 5 - @M TRF IR :

Revenue from financing

guarantee services

REMERR
R 25 1 A
2017 2016
—F-tF ZE-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
833 1,675

e ARBERBRR (BRTAEREE
F)RZERERZRBEH LA
BREE I z2ZE R ([BER
al) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 0 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2017

41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

Apart from the transactions as listed in the
table above, the amount of financing guarantee
provided to the Related Companies for the year
ended 31 March 2017 was RMB12,500,000 (2016:
RMB21,000,000) (equivalent to HK$14,110,000
(2016: HK$25,131,000)). Details of the guarantee
amount are set out in note 34.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has loan facilities
provided by Mr. Li and a company controlled by
Mr. Li totaling approximately HK$626,400,000
pursuant to the loan agreements entered into
between the Company and these parties on 16
June 2016 and 1 September 2016 respectively and

the supplementary agreements on 3 March 2017.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group received a
corporate guarantee RMB9,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$10,770,000) (2017: nil) from a related
company, in which the controlling shareholder
of the Company (who is also a director of the
Company) has significant influence to this related
company regarding a financial guarantee provided
to one of the Related Companies, in obtaining a
bank loan.

Balances with Related Companies

Details of the balance with Related Companies
which is trade in nature and non-trade in nature as
at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are set out in note 21

and note 26, respectively.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

41.

BEALXRS (&)

HBEALTIRS (&)

br EMURBFRII 2R ZN REEC
E—tHF-A=+—HLEFE RNH
ERARIEHIBMEEREEA/AARE
12,500,000c (= ZE—RF: AR
21,000,0007t) (#E%7214,110,000
BT (ZF— /X% :25,131,000%
TL) ) RSB HBEHNM T3S -

RZE—tF=ZA=+—H &~&EH
HEEERFTEERSZARREZ
EREE S H£45626,400,00078 7T
TIRBEARRNRHBZEATHBR-F
—NERNATARBR-ZE—XRENA
—RINZEFRBREER T —LF
ARz HERBEET

RZE—RF=ZA=+T—H F&%&H
REEF—HEEARREZBEE
REKEIRE —HMBEERR (AARZ
ERBRER (MARRRES) RZEE
RABERFEN) ZEEERAR
#9,000,0007T (% 510,770,000/
L) (ZFE—+F ) URBRTE

A FE21 M 5E26 ©
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41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41.
(continued)

Compensation of key management personnel

50 W i W

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

BEALXRS (&)

TEEEABZME

Salaries and other short-term Fre kAR
employee benefits & 818 7
Post-employment benefits B RiEEH

Equity-settled share-based

payments

s S AR AR 2
e

All the directors are considered as key management
of the Group. During both years, certain managerial
employee have been authorised to plan, direct
and control activities of the Group. Accordingly,
compensation to those managerial employee has
been included as part of compensation of key

management personnel.

The remuneration of key management is
determined by the Company’s nomination and
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

2017 2016
ZE—tF ZE-RF
HKS HK$

BT AT

9,918 8,251

110 72

1,582 2,702
11,610 11,025

MTEESHERAKREZERZER
RMEFER ETERERED
EREAE - ERMERAREZE
2EP-Ril ZFEEERE 2HE
BEEFREEEBEABZAEZ —#D
A e

REBABZHFMBEARA 2R
EHMEZBEeRABAAXRR LTSS

ZEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 0 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. MIBLRAFHE

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March
2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued
share capital/
paid up registered

INTFTARARR-_ZE—+ER-ZE
—RNE=ZA=+—"BZ2HBRARZH#

:|EE.
El

Proportion of
nominal value of issued
capital/registered capital

Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
EMARL/ RIR BRTRE/ ARRFBEEERITELR/
ARER EEBE BAEMER A E A E 2 A TEEH
2017 2016
—B—t& ZE-RF
Acelin Investments Limited BVI 4 shares of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
ABABRES 4R AR 1R REZR
FREEIXT
Acme Power Holdings Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
HERERBERAR ABABRER 1R AR5 REZR
FREEIXT
Alpha Yield Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRERRA ABABRER 1R AR5 REZR
FREEIXT
Alphamount Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
JEEERRA ABABRES 1R AR5 REZR
FREEIXT
Blessing China Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Property holding
HEBRDT s HK$1 each NERE
1REER
BREEVET
Chinlink Alpha Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERBEERAT B HK$1 each REAZR
TREER
BREEIET
Chinlink Capital Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
LEFEERBRAT s HK$1 each RERR
1REER
BREEVET
Chinlink E-commerce PRC Nil 100% 100%  E-commerce
(Xian) Company Limited F z BEFEB
EETEEFHL (AR)
BRAR
Chinlink Finance Lease PRC Nil 100% 100%  Finance lease
Company Limited FE z BERE
EETERARERRRA
Chinlink Group Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Inactive
LEFSEBEZRERLA Bk HK$1 each EEex
1REER
BREEVET
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Name of company

DAEE

Chinlink Hanzhong Logistics
Limited
EETEETNRBERAF

Chinlink International
Trade Centre (Hanzhong)
Company Limited

LEFEEBZHHD
(EH)BRAA

Chinlink Hong Kong Company
Limited
BERE (BE)ERAH

Chinlink Management
Consulting (Xi'an)
Company Limited

BEREEREH (AR)
BRAA

Chinlink Mega Limited
ERkEARAR

Chinlink Property Management
(Shaanxi) Company Limited

LR eMEERE (BRAE)
ARRA

Chinlink Supreme Limited
(Note (a))

EETEEHERAA
(Hfita)

Chinlink Supply Chain Services
(Shaanxi) Company Limited

LEPEHERER
(BRAE)BRAH

Chinlink Strategic Limited
EETERBERAA

Chinlink Tian Hui Company
Limited (Note (b))
BERREBRAA (Hib)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations
EMEL HIR
EELE

Hong Kong
EE

PRC
HE

Hong Kong
BB

PRC
PHE

Hong Kong
BB

PRC
HE

Hong Kong
EiE

PRC
HE

Hong Kong
EiE

Hong Kong
EE

Issued

share capital/
paid up registered
capital
BRITRE/
EHEMER

1 ordinary share of
HK$1 each
R E @R

BREEIET

RMB264,000,000
AE#264,000,0007C

1 ordinary share of
HK$1 each
[E&:30

BREBIET

Nil

£3

1 ordinary share of
HK$1 each
R E @R

BREEIET

Nil
z

1 ordinary share of
HK$1 each
R E @R

BREEIET

US$4,000,000
4,000,000% 7T

1 ordinary share of
HK$1 each
R E @R

BREEIET

1 ordinary share of
HK$1 each
i3

SREEET

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

MEBARFS (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of issued
capital/registered capital

held by the Company

KARMBEERTES/
EMEREEZ LA

2017 2016

ZB-tF —E-RE
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% -
100% 100%
100% -
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activity

TEER

Investment holding
REZR

Provision of logistics
services

RAEDIR RS

Investment holding

RARR

Consulting
L

Inactive
Emes

Inactive
EE i

Investment holding
REZR

Provision of logistics
services

RAEIR RS

Investment holding
REZR

Trading of electronic
products
BEFERES
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. MEA RS (&)

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued
share capital/
paid up registered

Proportion of
nominal value of issued
capital/registered capita

Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
SRR HIR BRITRE,/ ARRFBEERITELR/
DRER BEHBH EHEMER HMERHEEZ LA TEER
2017 2016
“E-t% —E-RF
CLI Design (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Trading of furniture and
EER (BB)BRDA B HK$1 each fixtures
2REBAR GRNEEES
BREEVET
CLI Design (Macau) Limited Macau 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Interior decoration work
EERE (RPT)BERAHF R MOP 15,000 each EREMHTRE
2MREBR
BREE15,000
R
CLI Design Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Interior decoration work
ERREBRAT B HK$1 each EREHTRE
MR E B
BREEVET
E-Innovation Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
fREIER AR RBAARES 8 REER
BREBIET
Esteemed Zone Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
LEERRA RBAARES 8 REER
BREBIET
Galactic Power Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Financial services
FRAR AR ‘ RBAARES 8 LRR%
(R BB TRRERA R BREEIET
RF 2 BRETER)
Giant Success International BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited ABABRES 1R AR5 RERR
EREBRERRAF SREBIET
Glorious Harvest Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
BWEERRA ABABRES 1R AR5 RERR
FREEIET
Goal Achiever Investments BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited ABABRES 1R AR5 RERR
FERABRAA BREEIET
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % —“F—LFE=H =+ —H IL4FHE

42.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ share capital/
establishment paid up registered

MEBARFS (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of issued
capital/registered capital

Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
SRR HIR BRITRE,/ ARRFBEERITELR/
DRER BEHBH EHEMER HMERHEEZ LA TEER
2017 2016
“E-t% —E-RF
High Express International Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited e HK$1 each REER
BHERERAR 1REER
BREEVET
Mega Zone Investments Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
KEREBRAA HBABRER 1R AR5 REZR
FREEIZT
Shaanxi Chinlink Financial PRC US$30,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of financing
Guarantee Limited H 30,000,000 7T guarantee services
REEETCBALER REBEERRS
BRRA
Sino Yield Enterprise Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
HREXBRAF RBARBARES 1R R REZR
BREBIET
Tian Hui Global Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERKRBRDF HBERRES AR AR 19 REER
BREBIET
Trillion Up Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
LEERRA RBARBARES 1R R REZR
BREBIET
Xi'an Da Ming Gong Ba Qiao PRC RMB80,000,000 73.375% 73.375% Property investment
Furniture and Fixture Limited f AR #80,000,0007T MERE
EESNE L 2P
BRAR
Xi'an Tang Rong Real PRC RMB320,000,000 73.375% 73.375%  Property investment
Estate Limited i AR #320,000,0007C NERE

ARERBEXERAA
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
Note:

(a) The company was formerly known as Chinlink Real
Estate Services (HK) Limited in 2016.

(b) The company was formerly known as Chinlink
Supply Chain (Hong Kong) Company Limited in
2016.

All the subsidiaries are owned indirectly by the
Company except for Acelin Investments Limited,
Trillion Up Limited, Chinlink Hong Kong Company
Limited, Sino Yield Enterprise Limited, Goal
Achiever Investments Limited, Esteemed Zone
Limited and Glorious Harvest Limited which are

owned directly by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities during the year or at 31 March 2017 and
2016.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:

Place of Proportion of
establishment ownership interests and
and principal voting rights held by
Name of subsidiary place of business  non-controlling interests
B3t R FERERREZ
WEARER TREXBE BEREERREB LA
2017 2016
“E-tE  ZTR%
Tang Rong and Ba Qiao PRC
ERRER HE 26.625% 26.625%

42.

MEQRFRE (&)

(a) ZRARZE-RERREEFE
R% (FE)BRAF -

(b) ZRARB-RER/EET S
HrEsE (FE)BRAF -

B Acelin Investments Limited * F{88
RAF-EEFRES (FB)BRAF
FROCEBRAR EEREBRA
A2 AERAFLMEBR ARG MR
AAREEZEHEAIIN FTENERRY
MADRIMERS -

TRINEAEE 2 A BRI AR
BZHEEMBRRZFE:

Profit attributable to Accumulated

non-controlling interests non-controlling interests

FERBHES 2B Rt FERER

2017 2016 2017 2016

“E-t§ “Z-RF ZB-tf “T-5F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TEx TR

23,487 1,397 413,616 414,055
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of
each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material
non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

42.

MEARFRE (&)

BERARB 28 HEERFERER
ZWBLRZMBERBEERS M
T-UTHBEHNRZHEEEARA
LESF ekt

Tang Rong and Ba Qiao FEERER
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T
Current assets TENE E 54,979 13,712
Non-current assets FmBEE 2,178,508 2,220,445
Current liabilities mBafsk (370,979) (187,916)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE (309,034) (491,104)
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ANQA A #HA A
the Company el 2= 1,139,858 1,141,082
Non-controlling interests JEIE R HE = 413,616 414,055
Revenue A 77,564 44,031
Gain on fair value change of BREWMEZ NFE
investment properties )= 87,752 5,714
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. MEA RS (&)

(continued)

Tang Rong and Ba Qiao (continued)

BEREBRE (&)

2017 2016
—E—tHF —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT

Expenses 3 (77.103) (44,499)
Profit for the year KEE i F 88,213 5,246
Profit attributable to owners of the 7K X & A A FE1E

Company 2 64,726 3,849
Profit attributable to the non- PRI R B

controlling interests iyl 23,487 1,397
Profit for the year NFE & 88,213 5,246
Other comprehensive expense KRARHEE A

attributable to owners of the FEAE 2 Eftb

Company 2 HEF X (65,937) (3,576)
Other comprehensive expense AR R =

attributable to the non- FEAE 2 EAth

controlling interests 2HEAX (23,926) (1,298)
Other comprehensive expense for N4 [Z H ftb

the year 2HEHRX (89,863) (4,874)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Tang Rong and Ba Qiao (continued)

MEARFRE (&)

BEREBRE (&)

HWE-F—-EtF=H=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T
Total comprehensive (expense) KR BHEAE AFEAS
income attributable to owners of Z#%2MH
the Company (FAX) W= (1,211) 273
Total comprehensive (expense) IR R B
income attributable to the non-  Z#&2MH
controlling interests (FAsZ ) as (439) 99
Total comprehensive (expense) AEFHEDTHE
income for the year (FX) k= (1,650) 372
Dividends paid to non-controlling A FE4% A% 4 25 % f+F
interests fi&% 2 - -
Net cash inflow from operating REEEHEMEB2ES
activities MAERR 32,461 10,581
Net cash inflow from investing WEEBPEZRE
activities MAFRE 137 (853)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from BEEBFFE RSN
financing activities @ini==Ph: 3 6,442 (27,268)
Net cash inflow (outflow) WEMA (R) FE 39,040 (17,540)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY

Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment
Deposit paid for prepaid lease
payments for land
Rental deposits
Amounts due from
former subsidiaries

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Loan receivables due
from subsidiaries
Bank balances and cash

FRBEE

RIB QR ZIRE

ME - BEREE

BN HEERRZ
EffRE

Heks

& 45 7 Bt /8 A )
BRI

JE UL I /B8 2 R AR TR

MENEE

HiEMRE e Rk
B RIR
= PN
& U B+ /& 2 )
LN

RITEFRAS

43,

2017

—2—-+tF

HK$'000
FERT

34,899
1,895

28,220
1,359

615
1,058,281

1,125,269

7,518

83,227
1,264

92,009

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ A 4 I8 B % 5t 4 R 22 3] | Annual Report 2017 4E#t

RARZMBRRARE FHE

2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
FAET

34,899

29,918

539
1,376,274

1,441,630

418
26,653

87,515
969

115,555
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43.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 43,
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

RARZMBRRARE FHE

(#&)

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FH T
Current liabilities mENBE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTBTE A R BRIE - 33,320
Amount due to a director BN —REEERIE 1,000 16,320
Other payables and accruals EMEMAERBELETER 3,679 5,143
10.0% convertible bonds 10.0% Al & & % 76,723 -
Conversion option BmARMRES 2
derivative embedded in AR DT E
convertible bonds TA 121 -
12.0% coupon bonds 12.0%EEEH - 430,506
8.0% coupon bonds B.O%ZEEEH - 201,684
7.5% coupon bonds 75%ZE B EH 206,688 -
288,211 686,973
Net current liabilities mBAEFE (196,202) (571,418)
Total assets less current liabilities #@&ER T AE 929,067 870,212
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B % —F—LHFE=H =+ —HIL4EE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 43. ARB 2 HBRRREREE

POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (#&)
COMPANY (continued)

2017
—E—+tF
HK$000
FET
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
10.0% convertible bonds 10.0% ] % & F -
Conversion option derivative MAFRRES 2
embedded in convertible IR REDT
bonds THE _
12.0% coupon bonds 12.0%R B EH -
7.5% coupon bonds 75%E B EH -
Amounts due to former FEA ROFT B 2 R BRIE
subsidiaries 7,337
7,337
921,730
Capital and reserves BERR B
Share capital [ 209,376
Reserves ] 712,354
Equity attributable to KARHEE A
owners of the Company JE1h 2 #Ew 921,730
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—E-RF
HK$'000
FAT

66,683

7,891
128,380
198,546

6,437

407,937

462,275

34,896
427,379

462,275
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 43, XATzMBRRKR K FEE
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (#&)
COMPANY (continued)
Movement in the Company's reserves RAGHEEE
Convertible
Share  bonds and
Share Share options warrants Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve losses equity
ARRES
BhE RIRER
AEN ROEE M 1] 2 BB ERAE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

At 1 April 2015 R_Z—hEF
MA—H 28,546 290,101 27,386 45,889 (131,481) 260,441
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - (116,267) (116,267)
Issue of shares upon REEIAT 5%7]
conversion of 7.5% BEHEET
convertible bonds g 1,375 91,056 - (12,898) - 79,533
Derecognition of REEHT 5% 2R
deferred tax liabilities EHFEEILE
on conversion of BRELEHE
7.5% convertible bonds ~ &f& - - - 383 - 383
Derecognition of RE| HRRS % 1 B3R
equity component of 7.5% A
7.5% convertible bonds  RfEZER
upon maturity 5 - - - (32,995) 32,995 -
Issue of shares BIIRG 4,975 225,871 - - - 230,846
Recognition of BREERLEE
equity-settled PARR 17 7 A
share-based payments PARE:S - - 7,339 - - 7,339
Transfer B - - - (379) 379 -
At 31 March 2016 RZZ—RF
=R=1t—"H 34,896 607,028 34,725 - (214,374) 462,275
Loss for the year FEFE - - - - (94,483) (94,483)
Issue of shares IR M 174,480 375,147 - - - 549,627
Recognition of RiRERREE
equity-settled MR A ETE
share-based payments pArE S - - 4311 - - 4,311
Forfeiture of share options )& 4 i ik & - - (3,201) - 3,201 -
At 31 March 2017 RZT—+F
ZA=t—H 209,376 982,175 35,835 - (305,656) 921,730
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

44,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD
On 2 February 2017,

Harvest Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

the Company, Glorious

Company) (the “Purchaser”), Bestwin International
Investment Limited (a company wholly owned by
Mr. Li Weibin, Chief Executive of the Company)
(the "Vendor”) and Mr. Li (as guarantor to the
Vendor) entered into the acquisition agreement
(the "Acquisition Agreement”) in relation to the
proposed acquisition (the “Possible Acquisition”)
of the entire issued share capital of Zhong
Hui Global Limited (the

wholly owned by the Vendor) and its subsidiaries

“Target”) (a company

(collectively the “Target Group”) at a consideration
of HK$96.0 million. Simultaneously, the Company,
the Purchaser and Mr. Li entered into the loan
purchase and financing agreement (the “Loan
Purchase and Financing Agreement”) in relation
to the proposed acquisition of all obligations,
liabilities and debts (the

incurred by the Target Group to Mr. Li and his

“Sale Loan"”) owing or

affiliated companies at a consideration of HK$216
million and the possible provision of financing (the
“Possible Financing”) by Mr. Li to the Group of
HK$58 million. The Acquisition Agreement and the
Loan Purchase and Financing Agreement are inter-
conditional and shall complete contemporaneously.

The Target Group owned a parcel of land situated
in Xi‘an City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC, with
construction in progress of a commercial building
with total gross floor area of approximately 55,491

sg.m.

WE=F—LEZA = — AL

44,

HmEMBRBR
RZB—tF-A-H ARQF-8

LERAA (ARRIZEMBRR)
(TEF]) mBEBEEBRAF
(RRRIITHRETERLEZER
Bznm) ([EF])EFRE (ER
B2 ERA)BLIE R {E96,000,000
BrERWEPERKERAR (B
BaRl) (BEF2EHEBZRRA)
FEMBARA(SABIEEEE]) 2
2HEETRA([ATEKESEE])
v ERZ(TWEBHZE]) -F
K ARE - BARFREERZRE
N60mﬂm&%xi_1&%EH$%l
ERERERNHEBBERARZMBE
E ETE&TEIE(H#EE x1) RF%
B M) 72N & [ 42 4 A4 & 58,000,000
;‘%ﬁ(ﬁﬁ&%ﬂﬁnﬂigﬁﬁ%f&@
Enz ((ERBERBEHR]) -
BHENEREELBEREERIE
4 - I & A B 52

B2EEFEETREMRAEALMZ —
PRttt FAEMSEEHFEEF BEER
FE#) A55,491F J7 K o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % _-F—tHF =] =+—HILFE

44, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD (continued)

In return for the Possible Acquisition, the
acquisition of Sale Loan and Possible Financing,
the Company will issue convertible bonds (the
“Convertible Bonds"”) with principal amounts
of HK$96 million, HK$216 million and HK$58
million respectively. The Convertible Bonds will bear
interest at 3.0% per annum and will mature on the
day falling on the second anniversary of the date of
issue of the relevant bonds. The initial conversion
price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$0.565 per

conversion share.

The Possible Acquisition and the acquisition of
the Sale Loan were completed on 22 May 2017.
For details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 7 February 2017, 13 March
2017, 28 March 2017 and 28 April 2017, and the
Company circular dated 30 March 2017.

44,

BREWRER (HF)
f’H%T EWBER KWESFEER
BEREZEE AR AT

$ @ %E A £96,000,000/% 7T

216,000,000 7t }58,000,000/% 7T

ZAmkES ([TRKRES]) o7
BRESFERFNE3I0%:TE BRE
AESFETHERTAMESF 2B E
H-AMREF 2N THBRERER
AR (H0.56578 7T °

EWEEERMEFEERER
%—tiﬁﬂ_+_5ﬁﬁ°ﬁﬁﬁ
B HB2HARFBHA-_T—tF
ZAtH-ZZE—tF=A+=H-=

—+tF=ZHAZt+NBERZE—+F
WAZ+NBzAMREARGARA
—+E=ZA=F+HEZBX
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Group Properties

EJLIEYE S

MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD FOR

INVESTMENT

Location
B

Junction of Jinger Road and
Weiyi Road, Baohe
Logistic Park, Hantai District,
Hanzhong City,
Shaanxi Province, The PRC
hERFEEERTEE REAYR
BRQE g - R ER

Junction of Jinger Road and
Weiyi Road, Baohe
Logistic Park, Hantai District,
Hanzhong City,
Shaanxi Province, The PRC
hERFEEERTES REAYR
BR& g - R ER

The eastern side of Ban Yin Road,
Ba Qiao District, Xi'an City,
Shaanxi Province, The PRC

R EIPR P& PR %S = 5| R R A

Lot number

i BR 4 5

61070200900G-
S00285

61070200900G-
500285

61070200900G-
500286

61070200900G-
500286

BQ3-4-11

BQ3-4-11

FEREZEE
LYE S

Existing use

RERAR

Under development

for commercial use

BRES
(FEES6ES

Under development

for residential use

BRES
EEEA®E

Commercial Complex

held for rental purpose

FEL ARG 2 mEAE
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Term of lease

A

Medium

T

Long

=5

Medium

T
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